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Operational Highlights
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Financial Highlights

Revenue Underlying operating profit margint:
£m %
o)
£671.6m 10%

FY17 660.9
FY18 635.9
FY15 485.7

Profit before tax

Em

£58¥.1 m

FYi8

%

FY17
FY16
FY15

Year end net cash/{(debt)>> Earnings per share

£m Pence

£4.0m 8.6p

Fri
Frs
FY15 FY15

1 Underlying operating prof! margin and return on capital employed have been reconciled within note 5 to the consolidated financial statements
2 Net castv{debt) has been reconciled within note 22 to the consolidated financial statement

3 This melnc s @ nan-GAAP Alternative Perforrmanca Measure (‘APMY) prasented (o provide adoitonal useful mformation - see further detail an
the relevance of APMs within note 1 to the financial stalements




Creating retirement communities
that enrich the quality of life for our
customers and their families
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1 Custorners of Wingfield Court, Sherborne with pupiis
frem Sherborne Abbay Primary School

2 Calgbrating the vesit of HRH Prince Charfes at
Bowes Lyon Court, Poundbury
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To create retirement communities that enrich the quality
of life for our customers and their families.

Retirement fiving invalves much more than simply deciding

to move to a new home that's better suited to our customers’
needs, it's an opportunity to embrace a new way of life: tc have
the freedom to live a lifestyle with more cheices ang more time
to do the things they enjoy.

At McCarthy & Stone, we create retirement comrmunities that
enrich the quality of life for our customers and their families,
and believe that life is for fiving, whatever your age.

As the inQustry leader with unique expertise in planning,
design and construction, we predominantly furn brownfield
sites into retirement communities with our two core praducts:
Retirement Living and Retirerment Living PLUS, which are
aimed at those aged 60+ angd 70+ respectively.

These communities are more than just places to live.

They help our customers maintain their independence while
providing peace of ming that assistance is on hand if neeged.
We alsc offer a wide range of on-site social activities, helping
our customers to create new friendships and experiences to
enhanrce their guality of life.

For those who need additional help, we provide 24-hour
on-site assistance and specialist care packages, tailored
to our customers' needs.

47 %

47% increase in
over 68s by 2037

1 YouGov for McCarthy & Sione (2018)

2 ONS, Popuiation projections: 2016-based (2018)

3 Voluntas, Homecwnar Survey for McCarihy & Stone (2017)
4 EAC, Specalst housing (2018)

We build beautiful homes in stunning locations, but we are
more than just a housebuilder. Our communities are managed
by our dedicated teams, with House and Estate Managers
who support our customers every step of the way. By taking
care of daily chores, our customers can enjoy more time for
themselves and with their loved ones.

With more than 40 years' experience providing high quality
homes to exacting specifications, we have sold over 56,000
homes in the UK, across more than 1,200 developments.

There are currently 4.1 million* adults aged 65 and over who
are considering downsizing. With only 733,000 retirement
properties across all tenure types that have ever been built
for older customers, we are weli-placed to continue to benefit
from the high demand for our retirement communities.

We have an unparalleisd understanding of the needs of our
customers and are proud winners of the HBF Five Star award
for customer satisfaction for the past 13 years, which is every
year since the survey started.

That's our purpose - creating retirement communities that
enrich the guality of life for our customers and their families.

/10 .8/10

customers have customers take part in
made new friends onganised events within
and socialisa more’ our deveiopments®

® v

McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Report
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To be the leading developer, manager
and owner of retirement communities

To create even deeper and longer relationships

with our customers by transitioning the business from
a housebuilder to the UK’s leading developer, manager
and owner of retirement communities

This new vision is underpinned by the following three principles:

1. Flexibility: We want to respond better to our customers’
evolving needs by providing flexible care and ways to pay
for our services

2. Choice: We want to provide our customers with more options
in order to move into one of our properties: ownership, shared
ownership or rental

3. Affordability: We want 1o ensure our products and services
are affcrdable for our customers

Our Customer Research’

Customer research was instrumental in helping us formulate
our new wision and strategic plan, with the following customer
values being at the heart of our dscision making:

Independence:
Praximity to transport, privacy and own outdoor space.

¢ 91% of our customers value gocd access to local
amenities and facilities

Support:
Saocial activities and healthcare.

¢ 92% of our customers feel their House and Estate Manager
is approachable and listens to their issues. They are also
provided with 24-hour suppart

1%

92%

Convenience:
Having features that are easy to use and enhance our
customers' lifestyle and safety.

* 949 of our customars now feel their new property is
easy to maintain

* 52% of our customers move into our properties
because of concerns about home maintenance in
their previous property

Community:
Naot teeling isolated and being part of a community are vital.

s .7/10 customers have made new friends and socialise more

s ¢.8/10 customers take part in organised events within our
developments

Affordability:

Value for money is a key deciding factor.
» 1in 5 list price as a primary reason for not purchasing

* 1in 10 are concarned about service costs and half of
them would consider renting

94% 52%

ol customers said they of custamers feel that thelr of customers said of customers move into our
have good access House and Estate Managers tha their new home properties bacause of concerns
to local amanities* listen to thefr neegs’ is easier to maintain' about homa maintenance

in previous properties*

1 Voluntas, Homaowner Survay for McCarthy & Stone (2017)

McCanhy & Stane plc Annual Report 7



B Customer Satisfaction
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Case study

From world traveller to home bird: former
professional dancer Sheila Groves relaxes
in style at The Clockhouse.

Former professional dancer, Sheila, who has a love of ballroom,
tap and ballet, has been on quite a journey. Having performed
across the UK in places such as Plymouth and Blackpool, and
travelled the worlg, Sheila has lived in America, Gresce and
Paris. She eventually settled back in the UK, before making

the move to MeCarthy & Stone's Retirement Living PLUS
Develcpment in Guildford to enjoy her retirernent.

1 Sheila Grovas, The Clockhousa, Guitifard

8 McCarthy & Stone plc

Despite having lived at the development for just a short
time, Sheila is making the most of the thriving sacial scene
at The Clockhouse and has forged great friendships with
other homeowners.

Talking about her new-found social life at the development,
Sheila said: "l can honestly say that moving to The Clockhouse
has completely changed my life - Fve made fantastic new
friends and | haven't once felt lonely since moving in.

Everyone at the development has been s¢ warm and
welcoming, and there's always someocne to chat to in the
hameowners' Iounge - often over a nice bottle of winet"
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More than 93% of our customers
would recommend us to a friend

.
[ - N

In 2018 we again received the

full Five Star award for customer

satisfaction for our products and

services in the independent
Graphic removed survey by the HBF and NHBC.

N ]

Graphicremoved

I
I

We are the only housebuilder of any size or type to have achieved this accolade for a
record thirteenth consecutive year - every year since the survey started. The HBF yearly
questionnaire is one of the largest customer surveys of its type. We were awarded the
Five Star rating in March 2018, in which more than 93% of the 1,457 McCarthy & Stone

customers who responded to the survey would recommend us to a friend.
This compared favourably with the industry average of 86%.

Graphic removed

We are also pleased that almost nine out of ten of our customers feel that moving
to one of our davelopments has improved their quality of life. As well as the general
lifestyle we provide, this is testament to our sales approach and our management

L —I services expertise that ensures customers and their farmilies are supported and guided
through the purchasing process and receive all the support they need while Iving with us.

910 985% 83% 96% 33,500

of our custamers said thair of cur customers of our customers of aur customers social svents were held
new property improved would recommend said they experienced sa'd thay feel safe in our managed properties
thair quality of life' us to a friend® a sense of community and secure in their over the tast 12 months
in their new property? hew groperty? (FY17: c.27 600

@) (i

1 Survey of naw homeawners by the NHBC ang HBF (2018)
2 Homeowner sunay (2017) and research by Demos (2016)
3 Voluntas, Homeownar Survay for McCarthy & Stone (2017)

McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Report 9



B Our Strategy

Strategic targets at a glance

On 25 Septembier 20718 the Group announced a business transformation strategy. The strategy is directiy aligned with our
vision to create even deeper and longer relationships with our customers by transitioning the business from a housebuilder to
the UK's leading developer, manager and owner of retirement communities. This transformation will be delivered in two phases:

Phase 1: by FY21
Optimising our operations for strong financial performance

Operating Return on
profit margin capital employed

Cost Cash
savings savings

10 McCarthy & Stone plc
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Phase 2: by FY23
Leveraging our strategic opportunities

Flexibility of care Choice of
and ways to pay ownership

>20%

Grow Management Rental or shared ownership

Services to >5% to represent up to 20%
of Group revenue of annual transactions

Affordability of
products and services

Lower cost praduct
to represent c15%
of land bank

McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Report
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B Our Stra’(egy continued

Graphicremoved

L

Paul Lester, CBE Goup Non-Executive Chairman

introducing our business transformation strategy

As Chairman of McCarthy & Stone since 24 January 2018 | strongly
believa in our operational capabilities and our unique potential to
help respond to a structural undersupply of retirement communities
for our rapidly ageing population.

>£40. >15% >£90.

Caost saving between Cash saving batween
FY18 and FY21 . DyFYEl FY18 and F¥21

® B 06

12 McCarthy & Stane plc
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Transformation Strategy

Projected UK population growth’, million

Aged 65+ Aged 85+

Spacialist retirement housing?, thousand

For
rent

For
sale

For shared

ownership 17

We have a great business with strong
operational capabilities

We are the UK's leading developer and manager of retirement
communities with a significant market share. The Group has
built and sold more than 56,000 properties across more than
1,200 retirement developments since 1877 and we are
renowned for our widely recognised and well respected brand.

All developments buitt since 2010 are managed by our
established in-house management services team and during
FY18 achieved 98% "Good" Care Quality Commission (‘CQC"
ratings for our registered Retirement Living PLUS developments.

Qur commitment to quality and customer service continues
to be recognised by customers. In March 2018 we received
the full Five Star rating for customer satisfaction from the
Home Builders Federation for the thirteenth consecutive
year - making us the only UK housebuilder, of any size or
type, to achieve this accolade.

Market environment

! am acutsly aware that the last two years have been
chaftenging for the business, which is evidenced in the
financial results contained in this report.

1 ONS, Popuiation projections: 2016-based (2018)
2 EAC, Speciakst housing (2018

3 GFK for consumer confidence index

4 ONS for housing volumes per month

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Since the Company's IPO in November 2015, the business
has faced a number of market headwinds including political
and economic uncertainty following the ocutcome of the

vote 1o leave the European Union. These heagwinds have
resulted in a challenging econcmic backdrop, lower consurmer
confidence and reduced volumes in the secondary housing
market with UK housing transactions showing a dectine of
¢.40% since 2015,

In hindsight, the business should have responded sooner -
to the deteriorating market conditions and adepted a more
modest medium-term business trajectory and consequently
areduced cost base.

The Board announced earlier this year that it would be
undertaking a strategic review under my leadership.

On 25 September 2018 we anncunced the results of that
review which will position the business to succeed in this
more challenging market environment.

UK consumer confidence index®

=

=

Graphic removed

L _J

UK housing volumes?, number of transactions per month

N ]

Graphic removed

L _
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Bl Our Strategy contived

Below are the key operational and financial highlights of the transformation

Key operational highlights of the three year
transformation programme

Key financial highlights of the transformation

+ Shift in business mindset from growth to increasing
ROCE and margins

* Realigning the workflow and rightsizing the operational
cost base to deliver steady state volumes ot ¢.2,100

« Focus on build cost reduction and developing a more
efficient sales and marketing model ’

= Improved offering through increasing affordability,
flexibility and choeice for our customers

* Focus on two core products, Retirement Living and
Ratiremesnt Living PLUS

* Change of year end to 31 October 2019 to decouple
from peak holiday season

* ROCE improvermnent to more than 15% by FY21,
increasing to over 20% by FY23

* Improvement in operating margins to more than 15%
by FY21

s Total cost savings of more than £40m per annum by FY21

« Total cumulative cash savings in excess of c.£90m between
FY19 - Fy21

= The Group will focus on reducing its capital employed by
at least £70m between FY18 and FY21

How we are going to deliver our business transformation
There are two stages to our business transformation strategy: 1) optimising cur operations to deliver strong financial performance,

and 2} leveraging our strategic oppertunities.

Stage 1: Optimising operations to deliver strong
financial performance

Firstly, we are focusing on optirnising our operations for

strong financial performance over the next three years. By FY21,
we intend to deliver cost savings of more than £40 miliion per
annum, ROCE improvernent 1o more than 15% an improvement
in operating margin to meore than 15% and total cumulative cash
savings of in excess of ¢.£90m between FY19 and FY21.

There are four parts to this plan:
Workfiow realignment

= Workflow realignment is the backbone of the plan, working
on a much mare stable fliow of land exchanges, build starts
and first occupations

Rightsizing the business

* We will rightsize gur organisation and its cost base in line with
the new steady state praduction and sales volumes of ¢.2,100
units per annum. As part of this plan we have made a
decision to mave from nine to seven operating regions and
flex the resources in those regions in line with their production
requitements over three years. We will also align our support

14 McCarthy & Stone plc

functions in line with the new steady state volurmes and
strengthen Group oversight, making sure regional operational
models are more consistent, moving away from a
decentralised housebuilding mode!

Efficient sales and marketing model

* We wil drive significant improvements to our sales
and marketing functions. The sales process will be
standardised through the introduction of the Salesforce
Customer Relationship Management system that will
enhance the customer sales experience to be more
persanalised and tailored to their needs. Marketing will be
centralised and benefit from a new website and content
management system that will improve the effectiveness
of the function and reduce the cost per lead

* With the introduction of these new sales and marketing
systems, we will be able to further leverage insight from
our customers and provide analytics which we will use
to further develop our business model and offering
to the customer
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Build cost reduction
“The build cost reduction programme includes:

» Design efficiency through standard designs and specifications
guidelines and the introduction of compact design solutions

* Vaiue engineering - preliminary construction costs
standardisation and optimising of technical specifications

* Procurement initiatives through increased framework
agreements and stronger competitive tendering processes

The initiatives are also tackling the affordability of our properties
and will provide the opportunity to really change the way we
build, both in terms of products we are fabricating and their
method of construction.

Stage 2: Leveraging our strategic opportunities

Stage two of our business transformation is about unlocking our
strategic opportunities. Here we will look beyond the three-year
plan to a five-year vision for the business with returns on capital
employed of mare than 20%, fundamentally increasing the way
we broaden and access our marketplace, delivering new
revenue streams for the business and reducing sorme of the
cyclicality that the business is exposed to as we stand today.

The long-term aim will be to create retirement communities that
enrich the quality of lite for our customers and their families and
to become the UK's leading developer, manager and owner of
retirement communities.

Our proposition is underpinned by three key principles:

Flexibility

* We will increase flexibility within our services to respond
to evolving customer needs and increase revenue. This will
include the introduction of a new tiered service for new and
existing customers, expanding our care offering, opening up
new developments for wider cormmunity use and integrating
technology enabled services (e.g. motion monitoring,
medication control sensors and home automation)

Choice

= Moving forward, we believe there is a big opportunity to
introduce a mutti-tenure offering, including much more rental
and shared ownership. As our customer research reveals,
50% of customers would be interested in a rental proposition.
Importantly, as we enter the rental market, we will retain a
part share in this whilst exploring opportunities to bring
institutional investrment, Real Estate Investment Trust {'REIT")
funds and various other vehicles into this industry

1 ONS, Population projections: 2016-based (2018)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Affordability

* The business will seek to maintain its mass market appeal
by increasing the affordability of its products. This wilt be
achieved by reducing build costs, increasing efficiencies and
introducing new contempaorary and optimised apartment
designs, incorporating, where appropriate, open plan living.
We are going to go back to first principles and redesign our
offering. We wili achieve this through standardised designs
that we will tabricate in a different way, uitimately reducing
the average selling price and increasing the depth and size
of our addressable market

Moving forward, we think there is a way of creating signaturg
designs in this new space. It is an important part of the
initiatives in the build cost reduction programme mentioned
above, developing high-quaiity, attractive developments
using modern meathods of construction ('MMC?, to really
accelerate both our buitd programmes and the roll out of
these new initiatives,

Summary

We are building on our unique capabilities and positioning
the business to succeed in the current challenging market
environment, We await the Government's confirmation that
the retirement sector will be exempt from the proposed cap
on ground rents and look forward to the new planning policy
on housing for older psople.

Over the next three years we will be focusing on increasing
returns for all our stakeholders by optimising our operations to
deliver strong financial performance. in parallel, we will also aim
to leverage our longer term strategic opportunities to increase
our customer appeal, diversify our revenue streams and reduce
our exposure the market cyclicality.

We believe that our new Group strategy will further build
upon the strong fundamentals already present within our
business, which include our significant share of the owner-
occupied retirement market, our industry-leading levels of
customer satisfaction and build quality and an expected
¢.87.8%' increase in the number of pecple aged 85 and
over by 2037.

Qur new Group strategy is aimed at improving our standard
ways of working and providing greater clarity for our staff,
suppliers, sub-contractors and other stakeholders, as well
as improving our financial results.

McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Report 15
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Paul Lester, CBE Group Non-Exebutive Chairman

0672, £58. 5.4,

i Profit before tax Dividand per share
FY17: E561m) (FY17: £92m) FY17. £5.4p)

L NI )
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Overview

The last financial year has been chaltenging for McCarthy

& Stone with the current markst environment continuing

o have an impact on the business. A sluggish secondary
housing market and lower consumer confidence following
the outcome of the 2016 EU referendum have all contributec
to this more difficult market backdrop. In light of these
continuing headwinds, the Group began a strategic review
of the businass in April 2018 and announced its new
trangformation strategy on 25 September 2018.

Despite these external challenges, the Group delivered a 2%
increase in revenue to £672m (FY17: £661m) as it continued
to capitalise on the attractive undertying demographic
opportunity and structyral shortage of supply of retirement
communities in the UK. This was driven by a 10% increase

in average selling prices to L300k (FY17: £273k) offsat by a
lower volume of legal completions at 2,134 units (FY17: 2,302).

Underlying operating profit decreased to £68m (FY17: £96m)

in the year while profit before tax decreased to £58m (FY17:
£92m}. This reduction in profitabifity was mainly driven by the
slowdown in sales, reduced margins, build cost increases,
increased usage of part-exchange to counteract subdued
market conditions, additional marketing activity and an ingrease
in operating costs in suppart of our previous growth strategy.

The Group remains the UK's ieading developer and manager
of retirement communities, with a significant market share of
the private owner-occupied retirement market. Our strength of
brand and continual striving for operational excellence ensures
that we can continue to deliver reasonable resulls even when
operating in a challenging market. We are building a strong and
experienced managemasnt team that is focused on delivering
the Group's new strategic objectives.

In addition, McCarthy & Stane continues to lead the sectar
on customer satisfaction. We are the only developer of any
size or type to have received the full Five Star rating in the
Home Builders Federation ('HBF') custorner satisfaction
survey for 13 consecutive years, in which mare than 93% of
our customers would recommend us to a friend.

! ONS househoid poections: 2016-based (2018)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE { FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Post year end, we were pleased to note that the Ministry of
Housing, Communities and Local Government (MHCLG")
announced that it is proposing to aliow the retirement
community sector to continue o charge ground rents after
they are capped elsewhere, subject to potential buyers having
the choice to either pay a higher sale price at a ground rent of
£10 per annum or a lower sale price with a specified economic
ground rent. This proposal recognises the unique way the
sector uses ground rents compared to the mainstream
housebuilding industry. Whitst we are mindful that this
propesal stilt remains at the consultation stage, we see this as
a positive step for our customers and a strong indication from
Government that our industry has a valuable contribution to
make in providing much needed specialist housing for the older
generation. We will continue to work closely with Government
throughout the consultation period and are pleased with its
initial findings in this area.

Economic and political environment

Since the Group's IPO in November 2015, the business

has faced several market headwinds including political
uncertainty following the outcome of the vote to leave the ELL
These headwinds have resulted in a challenging economic
backdrop, lowering consumer confidence and conseguently
reducing volumes in the secondary housing market with UK
housing transactions showing a decline of c.40% since 2015,

Despite this backdrop, the market for retirement communities
rernains highly attractive, underpinned by strong demand.
New research by the Office of National Statistics { ONS')
recognises that around 88% of household growth in the UK
to 2041 is expected to come from those aged 65 and over®
and McCarthy & Stone remains uniquely placed to capitalise
an this unprecedented demographic opportunity.

McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Report 17



New Business Transformation strategy

On 25 September 2018, the Group anncunced its new
business transformation strategy ‘creating retirement
communities that errich the quality of life of our customers
and their lamilies' with a strong focus on increasing ROCE,
margins and cash generation.

The key highlights of the transformation are.

* Shift in business mindset from growth ta increasing
ROCE and margins

* Realigning the workflow and rightsizing the cperationat
cost base to deliver steady state volumes

* Focus on build cost reduction and developing a more
efficient sales and rmarketing rmodel

s Improved offering through increasing affordabliity,
flexibility and choice for our customers

* Focus on two care products, Retirerment Living and
Retirerent Living PLUS

¢ Change of year end to 31 Qctober 2019 to decouple
from peak holiday season

Dividend

We continued our focus on careful cash management
throughout the year and this has enabled the Directors to
propose a final dividend of 3.5p per share, making the total
dividend for the year 5.4p per share. This payment is in ling
with the dividend paid in the prior year {FY17: 5.4p per share)
despite the Group's lower profits and signals the Board's
confidence in its new strategy.

Board changes
There were a number of Board changes during the year:

1 October 2017
John Carter joined as a Non-Executive Director

3 January 2018
Paul Lester joined the Board as Chairman designate

24 January 2018
John White stoed down as Chairmar at the end of the
Annual General Meating

18 McCarthy & Stone plc

Bl Chairman’s Statement contived

24 January 2018
Pau! Lester appointed Chairman

17 May 2018
Arun Nagwaney joined as a Non-Executive Director

31 Aug 2018
Clive Fenton retired as Chief Executive Officer

25 September 2018
John Torkiss appointed as Chief Executive Officer
{John was previcusly Chief Operating Officer)

| would like to welcame John as the new Chief Executive Officer
of McCarthy & Stone. John has served on the Board since

the Group's [PQ in November 2015, hecame Chief Operating
QOfficer in June 2017 and was previously chief operating officer
at Unite Student Housing Group for ten years and before that,
chief executive officer of Human Recognition Systems.

He has been instrumental in leading the development of our
new strategic plan since April 2018 and is therefore well-placed
to lead the Executive Board in the delivery of its new strategy
‘creating retirement communities that enrich the quality of life
for our customers and their families'.

We have continued to strengthen our management team

and now have a strong platform from which 1o take the Group
through its transformation from a retirement housebuilder to

an efficient developer and manager of retirement communities
and to deliver enhanced returns for our shareholders, suppfiers,
employees and other stakeholders.

Paul Lester
Non-Executive Chairman
12 Novernber 2018

Soid Lo
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Our results

Against a backdrop ¢f a particufarly challenging market, the
Group delivered full year revenue of £672m (FY17; £661m),
supported by a 10% improvement in average selling price,
which increased during the year to £300k {FY17: £273k)
reflecting improvernerts in the quality and lecations af our
developments.

The Group achieved 2,134 legal completions during the year
(FY17: 2,302), with volumes constrained, as expected, by the
heavy H2 weighting of first occupations, continuing economic
uncertainty coupled with a slower secondary market and a
softening of pricing, particularly in the South East, during the
second half of the year.

Market demand

The structural imbalance between supply and demand within
the housing market continues to provide us with an exceptignal
market opportunity. Despite the recent growth in housebuilging
activity, there remains a significant and growing shortage of
housing supply in the UK. This imbalance is particularty acute
in the market for retirament housing where the demand is
estimated at 30,000 retirement units per annum and supply

in 2018 is likely to be in the region of just 6,000 units across

all tenures’ McCarthy & Stone stands akone among the national
housebuilders as the only one that focuses entirely on this
market,

During four decades as the retirement housing market ieader,
the Group has formulated a tailored approach to sales, site
acquisition, design, securing detalled planning consents and
construction that mainstream housebuilders have been unable
to replicate. We also ensure that our customers receive the
highest standards of ongoing support through cur management
services offering which now provides services for ¢,16,800
homeowners within 379 developments - one of the largest
operations of its kind in the UK. These high barriers to entry

in our market ensure that we maintain a unique position as

the only developer capable of meeting the nationwide need

for high-quality specialist communities for the growing number
of oider people who are looking to move to properties mare
suited to their needs and lifestyle.

Strategic initiatives

Over the last three years our continued efforts on achieving
operational excellence 10 support our growth objectives by
accelerating our working capital cycle have been focused
on our three key strategic initiatives: improving sales rates,

T Kright Frank, Retimment Housing {2018)
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reducing time taken between securing land and starting build
and implementing build programme efficiencies. We made
good progress across all three areas during FY18 and our
strateqgic transformation plan announced in September 2018
builds on these previous initiatives.

Sales initiative

The sales initiative sets out to deliver off-plan reservations
of 50% or more by the date of first occupation, and then to
reserve out all remaining apartments within an average
12-month pericd.

We have consistently delivered our 50% off-plan reservation
target over the last few years but delivered a slightiy lower rasuit
this year at 49% (FY17: 53%). While this is marginally lower than
our pravious three-year average of 51%, it has been influenced
by the increased mix of larger Retirement Living PLUS sites and
remains a good performance in the context of the weaker
market backdrop - Retirement Living 60% (FY17: 76%),
Retirement Living PLUS 28% (FY17: 16%) and Lifestyle Living
12% (FY17: B%).

FY18 was a year of integration for our sales initiative, as our
Nationat Training Academy became fully operational, running
5C courses over 120 days, training more than 420 delegates.
Our outsourced call handiing was also fully embedded.
Furthermore, we were able to build our brand awareness

with the introduction of our nationwide multi-channel marketing
campaign, ‘Retirernent Living to the Full' which we launched

in January 2018.

Our average time to seil out continued to fall behind our
12 month target but was in line with the last two years at
18 months (FY17: 19). Again, a good perfarmance in light
of the current challenging market backdrop.

FY18 saw an increase in part-exchange transactions to 35%
(FY17: 279} of total legal completions reflecting the ongoing
subdued secondary market and a full year national roll-out of
our in-house part-exchangse schema. Our in-house part-
exchange scheme has proved tQ be a valuable tool for the
business and defivered a saving of c.£7m (FY17: c.€1m)

when compared to the costs associated with using third-party
part-exchange providers. As at 31 August 2018, we held 147
properties (FY17: 114 properties) on the balance sheet at a
net carrying value of £42m (FY17: £32m}. Qur in-house part-
exchange properties resold on average ¢.13.1 weeks after
buy-in (FY17: ¢.B.5 weeks), with the slightly longer selling time
in line with our 13 week target and a reflection of the full year
national roll-out.
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Strategic initiatives continued

Development initiative

Qur development initiative was established to reduce the
development cycle time by recucing the time taken between
land exchange and the build start process. This involved the
implementation of a number of process improvements with
particular focus on ‘ways of working', the planning process and
increased standardisation. This has enabled the business to
bring forward profitable developments more quickly, accelerate
growth plans and imprave capital turn. The initiative is now
embedded in all regions and is beginning t¢ produce positive
results.

A number of changes designed to accelerate this cycle were
imptemented during the year. In particular, we focused on
embedding our FUSION process and improving our
development capacity and responsiveness. FUSION is a
development initiative which aims to reduce the time taken
between securing land and starting build. Progress on this
initiative has translated into a similar development cycle time
as last year of 18.3 months (FY17: 18.1 months) for standard
sites achieving first-time detailed planning censent. In tuture
years, we will be facusing on the elements within our
development initiative that align with cur new strategy, ensuring
that we are optimising margin on all sites at the design stage.
A consequence of this may be that we achieve fewer first time
planning consents, but the returns generated should be higher.

Build initiative

The build initiative continued to drive improvements to the build
process during the year, to accelerate build timescales, reduce
build costs and enharce margins. This resulted in build cycle
time reduction from 14.4 months in FY17 to 13.9 months in
FY18. Specific focus has been placed on imgroving our
material procurement practices through increased framework
agreements and we have plans to introduce stronger
competitive tendering processes, particularty for our sub-
contractors. in addition, we introduced DATUM, our industry
leading product management platform with technical
specification libraries fully established to improve the value
engineering around such areas as foundations, balconies,

wall structures etc. This will create a strong foundation for our
buld cost reduction workstream within our new strategy.

2 McCarthy & Stone pie

New strategic direction

Faced with the continued challenging economic backdrop,
the Board undertcok a strategic review of the business and
in September 2018 we announced our new strategy ‘creating
retirement communities to enrich the quality of lite for our
customers and their families”.

This new strategy represents a shift in the business mindset
from growth to increasing our return on capital employed
and margins. We are positioning the business to succeed in
the current challenging market environment and, cver the
next three years, we will be focusing on increasing returns by
optimising our operations to deliver strong financial
performance across four fundamental pillars, for the benefit
of all our shareholders:

+ Workflow realignment is aimed at generating a stable
moenthly flow of land exchanges, build starts, sales
refeases and first occupations, all of which are
fundamental to our operational efficiency

We have already completed the necessary planning
actions within gur Group three year plan, while continuing
to maintain land bank optionality

+ Rightsizing the business seeks to align the gperational
cost base to reflect steady state volumes, while retaining
the ahility to respond if market conditions improve

We have now completed the formal collective consultation
process for reducing our footprint from nine to seven
regions with the total headcount reduction resuiting in an
annualised cash saving of c.£10m

+ Efficient sales and marketing model involves a
reorganisation of our sales teams and a centralised
approach to Group marketing
We have now set up the operating mede! and intend
to compiete roll out by the end of December. Our new
Salesforce CRM system will be pilcted in December
with full rollout in February 2019. This will allow us to
standardise sales processes, leverage customer insights
and analytics resulting in improved marketing effectiveness
and reduced cost per lead, while allowing us to enhance
personalised customer experience

+ Build cost reduction programme involves increasing
standardisation, mere efficient designs and optimising
subcontract procurement practices
Design efficiency reviews are currently being undertaken
on all FY20 developments and we expect the majority of
savings to come through the income statement in FY21
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In paraftel, we will also aim to leverage our longer term strategic
opportunities within our services and product offering. We will
aim to create even deeper and longer retationships with
custamers to increase our custemer appeal, diversify our
revenue streams and reduce our exposure 10 market cyclicality.

The long-term aim will be to create retirement communities that
enrich the quality of fife for our customers and their families and
to become the UK's leading developer, manager and cwner of
retirement communities,

The Group's proposition is underpinned by three key principles:

+ Flexibility within our services to respond to evolving
customer needs and increase revenue. This will include
the introduction of a new tiered service for new and existing
homeowners, expanding our care offering, opening up new
developments for wider comrmunity use and integrating
technoiogy enabled services (e.g. motion menitoring,
medication control sensors and home automation)

+ Choice of ownership through multi-tenure options,
including cutright ownership, shared ownership and rental.
Moving forward, we believe there is a big opportunity to have
a multi tenure offering and our customer research indicated
that 50% of customers are interested in a rental proposition.
Importantly, as we enter the rental market, we intenc to sell
our rental properties on 1o investors whilst retaining an
interest. Over time, there is likely to be an opportunity to
tring institutional investment, Real Estate Investment Trust
{'REIT") funds and various cther vehicles inte this space

- Affordability - to maximise the mass market appeal by
increasing the affordability of our products. This will be
achieved by reducing bulld costs, increasing efficiencies
and introducing new contemporary and compact designs

New strategic targets:
* Steady state volume of ¢.2,900 units per annum

* ROCE improvement of greater than 15% by FY21,
increasing to over 20% by FY23

* Improvement in operating margins tc more than 15% by FY21

* Total cost savings of more than £40m per annum by FY21

¢ Total curnulative cash savings in excess of £90m between
FY19-FY21

* The Group will focus on reduction in capital employed by at
least £70m between FY18 and FY21

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Land bank

During the year, we invested £112m (FY17: £156m) in fand and
our land bartk now stands at 9,797 units, which equates o over
4.6 years’ supply based on current unit sales volumes. 54 high
quality sites with attractivea embedded margins were added to
the land bank during the year (FY17: 75} in line with our new
strategy focusing on a more measured trajectory and smoother
workflow objectives.

Our product ranges

We sold three products during the year. Qur two core progucts,
Retirement Living and Retirement Living PLUS {which will be the
focus of our business going forward post our strategy update),
alongside our Lifestyle Living offering.

During the year we brought to market 41 (FY17: 37) Retirement
Living developments and 19 (FY17: B) Retirement Living PLUS
developments, including 72 (FY17: 0} bungalow units. There is
a growing need for modern, low-maintenance and well-
connected bungalows among the older population and the
appropriateness of this form of housing in later life is well-
proven. The particular shortage of bungalows and other houses
for older people means thay are likely to attract a high level of
dernand. In response to this demand, we are intending to
provide more bungalows and cottages on larger schemes,
opening up exciting new possibilities for maximising
development potential on certain sites, as well as providing for
completely new land opportunities. As of 31 August 2018, we
had 364 (FY17: 222) bungalow units within our (and bank.

Going forward we will focus on our two core product lines,
Retirement Living and Retirement Living PLUS, that bast fit our
new strategy and enable us to provide custorners flexibility and
choice through product innovations, Cur Lifestyle Living offering
will be phased out over time and our bungaiow range will be
incorporated into our core product offerings.

Our Management Services business

The rapid growth of cur Management Services business
continued during the year, adding 68 new developments to

its portiolio, which as of 31 August 2018 totals 379 (FY17: 312)
managed developments. Providing our own management
services allows us to establish a unique relationship with our
customers, ensuring that they receive the highest standards of
ongoing support, providing personal and efficient services that
not enly help themn, but also support the point of sale, and
allowing us to deliver industry-leading standards of customer
satisfaction.
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Our Management Services business continued Health and safety
Wa now have ¢.16,900 (FY17: c.14,600) homeowners to whom 1 am pleased 10 report that we have continued to make good
we provide €.31,000 (FY17: ¢.24,000) hours of care and support progress with developing a culture of excellence in health and
and ¢.60,900 (FY17: ¢.60,500) meals per manth. safety across the Group. Our vision is not just t0 achieve

! ) ) heatth and safety compliance but to lead our sector with a
In line with our new strategy, we see a Management Services robust and consistent safety culture across our organisation.
affering that responds 10 evolving customer needs carmbined Our internal monitoring regime is supported by a rigorous,
with flexible payment options as the key to delivering an independent site inspection programme including regular
enhanced customer experience. reporting updates ta the Board,

Our customers During FY18 we received 3 BSG Health and Safety awards,
including one award for Best Use of Technology for aqur

We are delighted to report that, once again, we achieved the pioneering work using drones for roof inspection to reduce

full Five Star rating in the Home Builders Federation ('HBF) the need for work at height.

customer satisfaction survey for 2018. This marks the thirteenth

consecutive year in which we have achieved a Five Star rating

and this year 93.5% of our customers have said that they would Government consultation on ground rents

recommend us to a friend. We are the only housebwilder of any tn June 2017, the Government launched a consultation on

size or type to win this award every year since it was introduced tackfing unfair practices in the leasehold market with

in 2005. This sustained recognition by our customers of the particular reference to leasehold housing and unfair

quality of product and service we deliver is a strong escalation clauses for ground rents. We understand and

endarsement of our continued desire to design, build, selt and support the need for action in this area and welcome the

manage the very best retirement developments. Government's recent announcement, post the year end, o
propose allowing an exemption for the retirement community

Our employees sector to continue to charge ground rents after they are

) ) capped elsewhere. Qur ground rents are on fair and stable

Our perfarmance this year would not have been possible terms as thay are fixed for 15 years and increases are linked

without the dedication, enthusiasm and expertise of pur pegple. 1o the higher of 2% or RPI. There have undoubtedly been

They are critical to the cortinued evolution of the business. cases where the system has been abused by some, including

We are in the process of building a culture of excellence that with ground rents that double every ten years and the sale of

provides turther opportunities for development and recognises leasehold houses, and we understand why the MHCLG is

achievernenis by regularly cefebrating those employess who go taking action to protect homebuyers.

the extra mile for a customer or colleague, through our instant,

quarterly and annual PRIDE awards for Passion, Responsibility, We were therefore pleased that on 15 October 2018,

Innovation, Determination and Excellence. The Board is mindful Government announced that it is proposing to allow the

that 2018 has been a particularly challenging vear for the Group retirement community sector fo continue charging ground

and its employees and would like to place on record their rents after they are capped elsewhers, subject to offering

appreciation of the huge efforts undertaken by all employees customers a choice between paying a higher sale price or a

across the Group, particularly against the backdrep of a difficult ground rent. While the proposal remains at the consultation

market. stage, this is a positive step for our customers and we will
continue to work closely with Government for the remainder

Al the beginning of FY18, we launched our new management of the congultaticn pe;iod_

development programme which has seen nearly 400 attendeas.
We also launched our inaugural Future Leaders programme,
which is designed to equip our future sector leaders to lead
strategy execution and transformational changes.

We have also launched an apprenticeship scheme for site
managemeant and quantity surveying.
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Outlook and current trading

We are seeing continued resilience within our lead indicators,
which are currently running moderatefy anead of the prior
year on a per outlet basis, but the secondary market remains
challenging, especially in the South East, where customers
continue to exercise caution due to economic uncertainty.

Qur forward order book as at 9 November 2018 (week 10} is
in ling with rmanagement expectations and currently stands
c.4% behind the prior year at ¢.267m (10 November 2017;
£277m) reflecting 4 sales releases since 1 Septernber 2018
(FY18: 17 sales releases). Recent trading has also been
impacted as expectad by organisational changes within

our sales function across the iast 6 weeks.

We have a 14 month accounting period in FY19, with a new
year end date of 31 Cctober 2019. Our expected FY19 out-turn
assumes that FY19 FRI sales go ahead as planned and remains
in ling with the Board's expectations. The Group reiterates the
FY19 savings range announced as part of our new strategy (c.
20-30% of the FY21 target P&L saving of ¢.£40m), Cur build
programmes ara currently ail on track to deliver more than

40 first occupations in FY18,

We will continue to apply a measured approach to land
acquisitions at attractive margins to add to our existing quality
tand bank, in line with the new strategy.

Cur main focus for FY19 will be on rolling out our new strategy,
achieving key milgstones and delivering savings in accordance
with our new strategic plan.

John Tonkiss
Chief Executive Officer
12 November 2018
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T Open day for customears of Langton Houss, Warlington
2 Custorners of Wingfiedd Court, Sherborne with pupis from

Shertiarme Abbey Primary Schoo!
3 The Rt Hon Theresa May MF, Frime Minister, mesting McCarthy & Stone’s
Management Services team at Swift Housa, Maidenhead, on 13 October 2017
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There is an undersupply of suitable
housing options for older people in the UK
|
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The UK population is ageing rapidly and
there has been a long-term undersupply of
suitable housing options for older people.
These two factors mean there is growing
demand for new retirement communities
across the country.

We remain the sector leader in the retirement living market with an offering that

is built around creating high-quality retirement cormmunities that improve the
quality of life for our customers and their families. This means we are well-placed
to benefit from the UK's ageing population and the structural shortage of specialist
properties for older people.

Undersupply

In 2018, just 6,000 new retirement units will come to the market in the UK across

all tenures and while there is understandable interest in the retirement sector from
new operators, unit delivery remains low when set against potential demand of up
to 30,000 units a year'. The sector has significant barriers to entry and developers
need to have an in-depth knowledge and understanding of all aspects of this market
to deliver successful products and services (o older people.

This shortage of retirement properties is one part of the wider hgusing crisis.

It is estimated that England alone needs ¢.300,000 new homes a year? to match
demand, but there were just ¢.217,000 net additions in 2016/17%. This creates a
significant annual shortfall and pent up demand.

An ageing popuiation

The number of older peaple living in the UK far exceeds the supply of suitable
retirement housing. The number of people aged 65 or over stands at 11.8 million -
rising ta 17.3 million over the next 20 years, while those aged 85 ar over will rise
from 1.6 million to 3.0 million*. These figures suggest that demand for retirement
communities will increase rapidly.

1 Knght Frank, Retimment Housing (2018)

2 HM Traasury (2077)

3 ONS, Housing supply: net additional dwellings, Englard: 2016-17, (2017)
4 ONS, Popuiation projections: 2016-tased (2018)
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Strong demand to downsize s “|ncai planning authorities shou!d ensure that the pelicies
A sianificant prooortion of alder people are also lookin in their Local Plan recognise the diverse types of h_ousing
dosv?nsi Zc;a_noﬁr?lggﬂ; opinion surrireypwith YouGol\?% 2[?1:30 needed in their area and, where appropriate, identify specific
found that 35% of people aged B85 or over are considering snles_for alt typefs of hougung to mt_aet their anticipated 'housmg
downsizing, equating to 41 milion peaple. The survey also requirement. This could include sites for older people’s
found that 22%, or 2.7 mifion, would consider moving to a housing including accessible mainstream housing such as
retirernant community, providing confidence in the long-tarm bungalows and step-free apartments, sheltered or extra care
potentia! of this market'. housing, retirement housing and residential care homes.
Partiament’s Communities and Local Government Seglect
Tapping into the broader retirement Compmittee also published a report on Housing for Clder
housing market Peaple® in February 2018 calling far:

As part of our new Group strategy and ta leverage the = A national strategy to improve Government palicy on housing

undersupply and ever increasing demand for retrerment for clder people
living accommaodation, we will provide greater choice * The Naticnal Planning Policy Framework to be amended to
for customers by offering multi-tenure soluticns incfuding: emphasise the key importance of the provision of housing

for clder people

* Specialist housing tc be designated as a sub-category of the
C2 planning classification or have a new use class to lower

¢ Qutright ownership
* Shared ownership

* Aental its planning gontributions

In July 2017, we surveyed potential customers on our = Councils to publish a strategy explaining how they intend
database. c.50% of these said that they would consider to meet the housing needs of older people in their area
rerting. Assuming this can be applied to the 578,000 and identify a target for new housing for older people

projected retirement homes demanded by 2028, it could
create a potertial market of ¢.289,500 rental retrement
homes over the next decade'.

While 1ot Goverriment policy, the report provides a usetul
route map to increasing delivery in this sector.

Political support

There have been several pasitive political devetopments
relating to retirsment communities in the year. National
Planning Practice Guidance? was updated in Septermnber
2018 and contained several positive changes, noting that:

We also note the Government’s consultation paper en
ground rent ratorm, which was published in October
2018. We are pleased with the proposal to exempt the
retirement sector from the proposed cap on ground
rents. The proposal recognises the unigue way the

« “The need to provige housing for older people is critical sector uses ground rents compared to the mainstream
as people are living longer lives and the praporfion of hausebuilding industry, Howaver, we note that this
older people in the population is increasing... Supporting remains a proposal and is subject to further cansultation
independent living can help o reduce the costs to health and and passage through Parliament.
social services, and providing more options for oider people
o mave could also free up houses that are under-occupied.” We also await the Government's proposed new planning

guidance on housing for older people and the Green
Paper on Social Care, which are both expected o be
published by the end of 2018.

1 YouGov for McCarthy & Stona [2078)
2 MHULG, National Planning Practice Guidance, para 020 (2018)
3 Partiament, Housing for Okter People (2018)
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1 Housebuider Awarts 2018

2 RVS fund raising, South East

3 Head Office Choir at the ‘Sing Your Heart Out’ concert for VS
4 RVYS lund raising, West Midlanas

5 RVS fund raising, West Midlands

6 FRIDE Award Winner, Fiers Cullis
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- Equal opportunities for all

At the end of FY18, the Group employed a total of 2,512
pecple (FY17: 2,264). This figure excludes subcontractors
and agency workers.

Equal opportunities for all our employees

The charts below show that we currently have a higher
proportion of men working in senior management positions
than female. The charts also show that females represent
69% of our workforce. This is primarily because our
Maragement Services and Care division employs significantly
more females than males. Also shown is the split between
men and women on the Board. We have published our
gender pay gap information which can be found within

the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 102 to 125.
The full gender pay gap report is published on our website:
www.mccarthyandstonegroup.ca.uk

Employees in senior management positions
{including Directors of related undertakings)

Female (FY18) Male (FY18)
29 (22%) 103 (78%,
Femnale {FY17) Male (FY17)

27 (20%}) 103 (79%)

Total employees of the Group
{exciuding Non Executive Directors)

Fernale (FY18) Male (FY18)
1,736 (69%) 776 (31%)
Female (FY17) Male (FY17)

1,508 (66%) 756 (33%)

Our people are vital to the performance of our business and will be pivotal
in supporting the delivery of the new strategy. The Group recognises that
attracting and retaining employees is only possible if we provide the right
working environment, appropriate reward and recognition schemes and
opportunities for personal development and training.

17,646

Onhne ang
face toface

rawning
courses
completed
FY17 i3 5000

The table below shows qur total employees excluding
Non-Executive Directors by age group.

Employees by age analysis

Total emplayees of the Group 25 and under 189
Total employees of the Group 26-49 1,227
Total empioyees of the Group 50 and over 1,096

Our standards of working

We are committed to achieving the highest legal and ethical
standards and it is our policy to conduct business in a fair,
honest and open way, without the use of bribery or corrupt
praclices in order to obtain an unfair advantage.

The Group has policies in relation to whistleblowing, anti-tiribery
and corruption, fraud and anti-money laundering and aii staff
are required to undertake training on these matters.

The Group's policy and statement in relation to slavery and
human trafficking as required under the Madern Slavery Act
2015 are available to view on our website:
www.mccarthyandstonegroup.co.uk

Employee split by business area
FY18

Management and Care Services 1.418

Housebuilding 1,094

FY17

Management and Care Services 1,209

Housebuilding 1,055

McCarthy & Stone pic Annural Report k2l
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Recognition of achievements

Our values, which were chosen by our employees, are
the standards to which we hold oursetves accountable
and reflect the way we work, the way we communicate
and the way we act. Our values are;

Passion 681
Responsibility
PRICE
wards

Innovation A
Delermination ¢
Excellence EXT A

We celebrate and recognise employees who go the extra
mile for a customer or colleague through our guarterly and
annual PRIDE awards.

Any staff member can nominate a colleague for an instant
PRIDE award which is judged by our regionat PRICE
champions. Each quarter, instant PRIDE winners are then
put forward for quarterly awards with overall winners being
judged on an annual basis. During FY18, 681 PRIDE awards
were presented (FY17: 674},

As always our thanks go to our workers - the drivers, the
managers, the Directors, our site teams, the sales teams
and all the hard working people at McCarthy & Stone

up and down the country.

Apprentices and trainees

We have partnered with apprenticeship training providers to
deliver a range of qualifications within the business. We have
aspiring Sita Managers, Surveyors and Tearmn Leaders on the
programme, with agreements in place with providers to deliver
a range of other apprenticeships including, but not limited to,
project management, finance and customer services. We
also participate in a Shared Trade Apprentice Scheme, which
places apprentices within our supply chain and provides work
experience to help them achieve their qualification. We hope
that, once qualified, the apprentices will continue working for
the Group, thus helping to alleviate national shortagas in
skilled labour the industry is currently experiencing.

We also offer trainee contracts in other departments such
as sales, finance and legal services.

Student placement scheme

The Group has continued its work on developing the next
generation of housebuilders in FY18 through a student
placement scheme run In conjunction with Northurmbria

a2 McCarthy & Stone pic

University. As part of the scheme, which has been running
since 1991, students studying for the BSc Hons in Construction
Project Management have the oppaortunity to spend a year
working at McCarthy & Stone. This works well for both the
students, who gain on-site experience, and for McCarthy

& Stong, with many students competing for placements.

In total, over 130 people have compieted the scheme with us
since it was launched. Several scheme participants continued
10 work for us after cormnpleting their degrees. Some of these
have risen to senior roles within the organisation.

Opportunities for development

We have an ongoing commitment to training and personal
development. Performance against objectives is faormally
reviewed on an annual basis, and, as well as setting objectives,
identifies learning and development opportunities that will
increase employees' effectiveness in their current role, or
prepare individuals for a future role.

All employees have access to a range of both internal and
external training and development and professional qualification
courses. The key management and leadership development
programmes we delivered during FY18 and will continue in
FY19, were:

Management Development Programme (MDP), which
provides new and existing managers the opportunity to
develop their skills in a number of areas including: ieadership,
performance coaching, performance management and team
effectiveness. We are pleased to have seen high attendance
levels at MDP events in FY18 of ¢.400 attendees; 43% of
which were female.

Our Future Leaders Programme, which is aimed at our
existing Director level employees, with the objective of
developing them to take on more senior leadership roles in
the future. This programme has been recognised as a finalist
in the best training category in the HBF annual awards 2018.

We are an approved CM! Centre (enabling us to deliver
Chartered Management Institute qualifications). People
attending many of the Management Development waorkshops
have the opportunity to continue their development and
progress to Level 3 or Level 5 CMI Certificate or Diploma

in Leadership and Management.

Qur new sales academy opened in FY17. Since its opening at
the end of August 2018 55 sales courses have been run with
408 delegates attending.
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Awards

NHBC Pride in the Job Awards

We are extremely pleased that our high standards are
recognised externally. In 2018, 20 (FY17: 15) of the Group's

Site Managers were awarded NHBC Pride in the Job Awards.
The result was unprecedented for McCarthy & Stone as it is
the largest number of awards we have ever received and marks
a33% (FY17: 50%) increase from last year.

In addition to the 20 Pride in the Job awards, five of the winrers
went on to win Seals of Excellence and one Regional Award for
the Scuth Wast which now goes through to the National
Awards which are 1o be presented in January 2019.

These awards are the industry's most prestigious awards
programme and recagnise Site Managers who achieve

the highest standards of housebuilding and wha demenstrate
the highest qualities of workmanship, leadership, technical
expertise and health and satety awareness.

I
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The cnly housebuiltler to receive
the full Five Star rating from the
HBF for 13 years
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Horizons, Poole
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WhatHousé Awards - Bronze in the
Best Retirement Scheme category
for Bowes Lyon Court, Poundbury
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HBF/Housebuilder Awards -
Best Retirement Scheme for
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ARMA ACE Awards

In July 2018, we were pleased 1o win two awards at the ABMA
{Association of Residential Managing Agents) national awards.

The awards were for ARMA's On-site Staff Memiber of the year
and Service Charge Accountant of the year. We were also cne
of the finalists for ARMA’s National Managing Agent of the year.

The Awards ceiebrate excellence and exceptional achievement
by the UK's leading managing agents and suppliers and the
work of their pecple in improving the lives of thousands of
customers,

.
|

Graphic removed
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2018 ARMA ACE Awards - Winner
of Onsite Staff Member of the year
and winner of Service Charge
Accountant of the year, as well as
finalist for National Managing Agent
of the year

.
|
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Pride in the Job - 20 site managers
won the coveted Pride in the Job
Award from the NHBC, five site

managers won Seals of Excellence
and ore Regional Winner

MeCarthy & Stone plc Annual Report 3
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Creating retirement communities

Two retirement accommodation products, incorporating
highly desirable apartments and bungalows at selected
sites, catering exclusively for older people

We offer well-cesigned properties in stunning focations,
where every detail has been carefully thought through with
our customers' needs in mind, frem access 1o local amenities
to internal laycuts and combired with just the right level of
service and support.

Cur offer to our customers extands beyond just the built
environment. Through our in-house management services
teams, we have long term relationships with Qur customers.
This enables us to pravide flexible services and support,
throughout the whole time that they live with us.

Whilst our products and services offer genuineg benefits to aur
customers, as part of our strategy, we have responded with

a new long-term customer centric vision for the business to
broaden our services, preduct and multi-tenure offering to
better cater for our customers’ needs.

60,900 16,900

As well as undertaking the day-to-day running of developmenis,
a key part of the role far cur House and Estate Management
teams is fostering and developing the community. All new
developments receive an initial community fund ta help support
social events and activities - based on the interests of residents.
C.33,500 social events were held in our managed properties
over the last 12 months. The impact of this on the lives of
residents is clear from our fast customers' survey - 83% of our
customers szid that they experienced a sense of community in
their new property, compared to 51% of older people in general.

We also have a number of sites currently under development
that offer bungalows alongside apartment living. Adding the
availabifity of on-site services enhances the enduring appeal
of owning a bungalow for our target age group.

379 31,000

Meals sarved Number of Developments Hours of cane and domestic
per month residents under managenent suppor! per month
{FY17: 60,500 {Fri7. 14.600) Fyi7: 312 FY17: 24,000

McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Repart 35



Bl Our Products and Services contirued

Providing fiexibility, choice and affordable options

QOur homes and communities rneet a range of needs of our To further develop our offering, we will be pitating and
customers and we provide them with a variety of properties introducing new services as part of our ongaoing business
and differing levels of flexible care and services, transformation which will buiid on our current Management

) ) . R Services proposition and demonstrate that we are evolving
Multi tenure options will also create choice for our customers, with our customers’ needs and values. These may include:
ranging from outright ownership to rental and shared
ownership solutions. Quality of life
Peace of mind and a sense of community is created through * Expanding our care offering into cur Retirement Living
our well-established management and care services teams developments
providing social activities and services for cur existing * New partnerships with local fitness centres
cus.tomers. ] ) ) + Sleep quality sensors with remaote monitoring
Whilst our homes provide customers with the independence . .
and convenience that they require, they also have call support * Activity detection sensars
on all sites and 24-hcur on site staffing at our Retirement Living » Agreater rals for techrology and artificiat intelligence
PLUS developments.

Convenience

l_ _| * New tiered levels of services and support

+ New partnerships with the NHS

* Home automation control such as lighting,
heating and home appliances

« Medication contrgl sensors

* Change of charging madel into an all-inclusive
management fee model

* New, flexible ways to pay for services including

Graphit removed pay as you go, deferred and hybrid options

Community

+ Opening our new developments for wider
community use

« Video communication
s Community challenges

Safety

* Fall awareness sensors

I_ 1_| * Security cameras

1 Lito Grange, Prestatyn

36 McCarthy & Stona plc
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Retirement Living Retirement Living PLUS
The perfect blend for many buyers - their own All the benefits of Retirement Living with
apartment, maintenance taken care of and the support and on-site catering for those
chance to socialise wanting a little more help
Graphic removed Graphic removed
« Minimum age of 60 and a current average buyers' = Minimum age 70 and a current average buyers' age of 83
ageof 79 * Typical number of homes per site: 50-70 with 1, 2 or 3
* Typical number of homes per site: 30-50 with 1, 2 bedroom options
or 3 bedrcom options * FY18 completions: 583, (FY17: 479)
* FY18 completions: 1,412 {FY17: 1,722) » Similar services to Retirement Living, with the added
* Housé Manager and shared facilities, including benefit of a restaurant or bistro, domestic support and
custorners’ lounge, guest suite’ and communal gardens flexitle care packages, among other facilities and services'

s 24-hour staffing

For more information see pages 38 to 41 For more information see pages 42 to 45

Bungalows

Within our Retirement Living and Retirement Living PLUS developments,
we will be providing the option of bungalow homes at selected sites

l—‘ _] » Typically 1, 2 or 3 bedroom opticns
* FY18 completicns: 21, (FY17: 0)

+ QOffers similar services 1o Retirernent Living
and Retirement Living PLUS at selected sites

Graphic removed
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1 Facititias and servicas may vary by site
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Retirement Living

-
n B

Key features

For those aged 60+

On-site House Manager

Customers’ lounge

Guest suite

Extensive ‘andscaped grounds

Typically 30-50 homes per site
Bungalows as an option at selected sites'

Graphic removed

Homes feature one, two or three bedrooms, spacious lounges,

fitted kitchens, level access, extra storage, en-suite bathrooms for

our classic designs and, typically, private outside space in the form of
balconies, terraces or patios. Every aspect is specifically designed with
our customers in mind, from the slip-resistant flooring in the bathrooms,
and the lever taps for easier operation, to the electric plug sockets at

a more convenient height.

1
=

Qur apartment developments have camera-door entry and a 24-hour
emergency call system with pendant alarms.

They also feature 2 large amount of communal space to help build -
a sense of community, including a shared lounge, guest suite to
Graphic removed accommeodate visiting family and friends, and landscaped grounds.

Bungalows are also an option for our customers within several
Retirement Living developments.

Each of our Retirement Living developments has a dedicated House
Manager working five days a week during office hours, managing the
day-to-cday running of the development while also helping to facilitate

various social activities.

1 Faciites and services may vary by stg

44 1,412

Mew Retirernant Living Units sold in Fr18
develgpmans sales released FY17:1,722)
in FY18{FY17: 36}

2N

P
A

PN

1 Applegate House, Trowbiridge
2 Chestarton Coun, fidey
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Retirement Living

Case study

Age is just a number for one seasaned traveller
and Solihull retiree

Sotihull retiree, Betty Chinnock (82), is proving age is just a
number when it comes ¢ enjoying retirement to the full, Having
rmade the decision to downsize to McCarthy & Stone's Brueton
Place development gn Blossamfield Road, Solihull, Betty is
making the most of the opporturity 1o do more of what she
loves - to travel the world.

Known for her adventurous spirit and having lived by the
motto, “if you don't ask you don't get”, Betty has been on
many fantastic overseas expeditions throughout her life,

From an on-going tove affair with ltaly to a Canadian road trip
in her 70s, 1t is difficult to find a place Betty hasn't travelled to.
Having moved 1o an age exclusive apartment, Betty is now
gearing up for more exciting adventures both home and away.

Betty explained what prompted her recent move: *| first heard
about the McCarthy & Stone development in Solihult when a
friend of mine suggested gaing to an Open Day.

‘._'

Graphic removed

“| was immediately impressed, | left the event with a spring in
my step and proceeded with the exchange process which only
took 10 days!”

According to Betty, she has had the support of her nearest and
dearest throughout her move. “My family have been incregibly
supportive throughout the whole process,” Betty said, “There
was an incredibiy fast turnaround, as | soid my property and
bought at Brueton Place in just over a week. Without the
superb assistance | received from McCarthy & Stone and

the unparalieled backing of my family, none of this would have
been possible.”

McCarthy & Stone’s age exclusive developments are designed
to offer customers the very best in independent living within a
safe and secure environment, with the opportunity to benefit
from companionship when they want it anrf privary and
assistance when they need it.

“My one-bedrocm apartment is perfect, it has a Juliet balcony
which looks over an abundance of trees and the beautifully
landscaped gardens which [ adore waking up to every morning.

“There are lots of events here at Brueton Place that | love
attending”, Betty continued. *We have a weekly coffee
morning on Wednesday, and it's great to socialise with other
homeowners. The community aspect of life at McCarthy &
Stone was very appealing to me, all of the fellow homeowners
at Brueton Piace are very friendly and happy to chat. | have the
pertect balance of a private life and a social life, and I've made
lots of fantastic new friends here.”

Betty Chinnock
Bruetan Place
Solihuil

McCarthy & Stone pic Annual Report LAl
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Retirement Living PLUS

-
N 1

Key features
@ For those aged 70+
B Estate Manager and on-site team
B Customers’ lounge
) B Restaurant/bistro

Graphic removed B Well-being suite
B Built to Wheelchair Accessibility Standards
B Mobility scooter store
B CQC registered, 24-hour support
8 Typically 50-70 homes in each development
B Bungaiows as an opticn for Retirement Living PLUS

developments and available at selected sites’

I
=

Our Retirement Living PLUS developments offer retirement properties
with management services, domestic assistance and personal care on
site. They are an attractive alternative far pecople seeking additional
support whilst maintaining their independence.

Developments are similar to Retirerment Living but have a nurmber of
additional features, including a full table service restaurant or bistro
) with meals freshly prepared on-site, a function rcom, laundry, and
Graphic removed secure mobility scoater store roam,

As with Retrernent Living schermes, bungalows are also an opticn
within Retirement Living PLUS develcpments at selected sites'.

There is also a dedicated estate management team on-site 24-hours a
day, 365 days a year, which is led by the Estate Manager. They provide
‘ extra support if and when it is needed, whether it is shopping, cleaning
|_ —J or care services. Tailored and flexible care and support packages mean
customers only pay for the additicnal help they use.

1 Facilities and services may vary by site

18 583

New Ratirernent Living PLUS Units soid in Y18
sales released [FY17: 479)
inFY18 FY17:12)

P~

Akl

PN

1 Augusius House, Virgima Water
2 Albart Court, Harilay
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Retirement Living PLUS

Case study

The magic of the Savoy Ballroom lives on 63 years’ later .
Having raised a family and iived in the Linited States of Pieter said: "l would go to the Savoy Baliroom every Friday

America and Halland, Pieter (84) and Monica (82) Paursum and Saturgay evening and one night | had the pleasure of
have returmned to Scouthsea - to the very spot where their life dancing with Monica.”

together began, more than 63 ye .
9 roeg an b3 years ago Mr and Mrs Peursum decided to move back ic Southsea,

The couple first met at the iconic Scuthsea Ballroom in 1853 - which is when thay heard about McCarthy & Stone’s Tudor
a building which is now enjoying a new lease of life, having Rose Court, situated on the seafront. Designed tor the over
being transformed into a McCarthy & Stone Retirement Living 70s, the Retirement Living PLLUS development is perfect
PLUS development, Tudor Rose Court. for those who want to own their property, with the added

A . . advantage of access to a little extra support when reguired
Having met when Pieter was stationed 1o the area to complete and all the benefits of living in a community of ike-minded

his national service in the Dutch Navy, the couple had a individuais.

whirlwind romance and decided to get married so they could

stay in the country together. Mr and Mrs Peursum are making the maost of the thriving social
community that has formed at Tudor Rose Court. “The staff
and hcmecwners at the development are all wonderful and

I_ —| we enjoy being part of an active community,” Pieter explained,

“We like to get involved in as many activities as possible,
incluging gala evenings, the Valentine's Day tea dance and
weekly organised walks to the pier.”

“We're s0 happy to now be settled into our stunning apartment
and we feel truly blessed with the life that we've had together.
We have enjoyed every minute - which is why it feels extra
special as we are back to the exact place where it &l began

Graphic removed for us!”

l._ J Mr & Mrs Peursum

Tudor Rose Court
Southsea
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Core elements of our business model

By ensuring that our customers are at the heart of our business we will continue to build our business model
on five important principles - each designed to provide the very best product, service and on-going support.

1. Targeted land buying

Creating refirement
communities that enrich
the qualiy of e for
our customers and
their families

5. Supportive management and care services

How we fund our business

Cur business is funded from cash generated by selling retirement properties, freehold reversions and providing management and
care services. From time to time we also issue promissory notes to fund the acquisition of selected land sites. Additionaily, we have
in place a Revolving Credit Facility (RCF’) which has been extended during the year from £200m to £250m for a period of 12 months
from February 2018 and matures in May 2021.

The levels of drawdown fluctuate during the year reflecting the Group seasonality in revenue and working capital requirements to
fundg our investrment in land, build and sales and marketing expenditure.

N i

Graphicremaved Graphicremoved

1 Cranbsrry Coud, Paterborough
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1. Targeted land buying l——

We target difterent land:

» Centrally located brownfield sites
* (lose to amenities
* Fragmented competitive landscape

2. Effective planning and design {_

We have significant planning and design expertise:

+ Specialist in-house planning team

* Strong reputation with local authorities

* |ncreased government recognition of benefits of our products

* Limited on-site affordable housing reguirements I_

3. High quality construction |—

We deliver high-qguality construction:

* [ndustry-leading quality and performance
* Lkxperienced subcontractors and established supply chain
* Repeatabis build process

4. Specialist sales and marketing r

An industry-leading trusted brand:

* Specialist trained sales force
* Trusted brand - 40 years’ experience
* Dedicated customer service teams

5. Supportive management and care services ‘—

Well-established management and catering services:

* Dedicated in-house management services team
e House and Estate Management teams undertake
day-to-day running of developments
* Proviges added peace of mind for customers l—
* Ongoing service quality underpins McCarthy & Stone brand

Graphic removed

Graphic removed
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Targeted land buying
.
Highlights in the year

Qur investment model for our Retirement Living and Retirement
Living PLUS products incorporates the ability of the site to
generate ground rent incoma to fund the provision of the
extensive non-saleable communal spaces that are an essentiat
ingredient to the lifestyle that we offer to our customers.

Overview

We identify and secure high-quality land to create retirement
communities that are located within towns and cities, close
to amenities, which meet the needs of our customers and
their famities.

The market for land remains relatively benign and competition
for our typical brownfield sites is still nighly fragmented.
However, the business continues t© maintain operational
focus and discipline in the assessment of its land purchases
tc ensure that returns continue to flow to shareholders.

As aresult of the Government’s announcement on 21 Cecember
2017 of its intention to abolish ground rents, we adopted g maore

cautious approach towards our land buying activity, with all sites
secured after the Government's annocuncement making no

There are four key eiements that differentiate cur land allowance for ground rents in the financial appraisals.

acquisition model. Following our extensive discussions with government officials
and politicians, in Ocigber 2018 the government issued a further

1. Strict sit rch iteria:
Strict site purchase criteria consultation document on leasehold reform and ground rents,

* Sites are typically small (c.1-2 acres}, centrally located
within towns and cities, close to amenities

= Optimised development density through reduced

proposing that retirement housing be exempt from the intention
1o restrict ground rents to a peppercorn. This is good news, but
until the propesed exemption has been re-confirmed following

the outcome of that consultation, and conseguently taken
through parliament and embedded in legislation, we will
continue to adopt a cautious approach to our financial
appraisals at the point of land acquisition.

on-site parking and amenity space requirements

» Limited on-site affcrdable housing requirements and
mitigated impact of Section 106 and Community

Infrastructure Levy (‘CIL) payments
54 high quality sites with attractive embedded margins

were acded to the land bank in FY18 (FY17: 75). The 54
sites secured in the year accerd with the more measured
trajectory and smoother workflow objectives in line with our
Group's new strategy.

2. Conditionality of our purchase agreements

3. Less compatition for our sites from traditional
housebuilders, who tend to be focused on larger,
usuaily greenfield locations

Of the 54 land exchanges, only two sites were secured on

an unconditional contract basis; twelve sites were secured by

means of Option Agreements; and 40 sites were secured

under conditional contracts {the principal condition being
cbtaining a satistactory planning consent) with 13 of these
having a non-viabiity clause and/or other flexibility in the
contract terms enabling terménation at our discretion.

54 9,797 £112.

4, Significart planning and design expertise

Number of Number of Investrmant in land
land axchanges land bank units during the year
FY17:75) FY 7. 8,960 FY17: £156m)

2 &
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1 Riersida Court, Abergavenny
2 Brownfietd site, Honeylands House, Exeter
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Targeted land buying

Strategic focus

Targeting land that meets our customers' needs
and ROCE targets

To identify and secure land bank that meets our customers'
needs as well as a return on capital employed of more than
15% by FY21 and more than 20% by FY23.

Strategic objectives

Operational efficiency and rightsizing the business

Improve operational efficiency by providing a stable monthiy
flow of land exchanges to support the steady state volumes
required under the new Group strategy.

Financial hurdle rates will be strictly in line with strategic
objectives for bath return on capital employed and margin.

How will we achieve this

Deliver our new strategic objectives:

» Shift away from volume fowards buying quality land
with margin enhancing potential as oppossed to being
focused on quantity of sites

= Actively manage our land bank to less than 4 years
supply to meet our new steady state volume targets
of €.2,100 units per annum

* Introduce our new incentive scheme designed to
deliver the smoothed workflow objactive

* Expand the membership of the Group Investment
Comrmittee te include Divisional Finance Directors in
order to provide greater link and challenge of regional
investment proposals

Build on our existing strengths and initiatives:

» Significant local knowledge

+ Cormprehensive understanding of our customars’
needs in terms of locality and amenities

* A well-astablished and tailored approach to land
buying with clear criteria for land acquisitions including
a comprehensive review and approval process prior to
any acquisition

« Expertise in securing optionality in conditional land
purchase contracts

Manage our risks, challenges and uncertainties
= Economic conditions * Workflow = Government legislation
* Employees ¢ Carrying of land value * Land acquisition and planning
* Delivery of new strategy
See pages 74-77
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T Limwood, Hayling istand
2 Boweas Lyon Court, Poundbury
3 William Braeord Court, Doncastar
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Effective planning and design

Overview

We operate an efficient and effective planning process and
design high quality homes that mest our customers' evolving
needs, improving thair quality of life.

The Group's in house specialist planning team deals with zll
aspects of the planning process including informing, preparing
and executing its planning appiications and the monitoring and
influencing of emerging relevant naticnal and tacal planning
policies. Our Planners become involved in a site from the

initial high level suitability appraisal and then work with our
design team to develop beautiful homes for our customers.

Government is increasingly recognising the role of older person’s
housing in addressing the national housing shortfall through
efficiently and effectively providing more housing and in recycling
the housing market. There is also increasing understanding of
the heafth and social benefits that come with it and in turn the
savings that this presents to the public purse, particularly in
savings to the NHS. For these reasons, revised National
Planning Pelicy Guicance continues to refer to housing for

older people as being “critical” and it is the only this form of
housing that is referred to in this way. It also now refers to the
need to realise those sccial and heaith benefits. Through our
Public Affairs initiatives and direct lobbying, the Group continues
to work closely with Government to progress even greater
appreciation of the social and economic benefits of retirement
housing and to reduce some of the barriers that can hamper
our ability to deliver.

Changes at the national level to planning policy aimed at
ensuring Local Plans play a greater role in decision making
means an increasing importance in invohvement in the
formulation of those plans. This includes greater scrutiny
of their detail particularly in matters of viability. The Group
is taking the unusual step of joint working with some of our
competitors, pooling expertise and resources to present a
combined respanse to emerging pelicies on behalf of the
industry. This should enhance our ability and resource

to make representations and ensure a

stronger hearing and influence.

37

An example of this is making comprehensive representations
cn the Mayor of London's Draft Pian and ensuring that

we have the right support in place to present these to the
appointed Inspectors who will examine the Plan.

Achieving planning permissions continues to present challenges
and has contributed to a drop in planning permissions being
granted in FY18. The ground rent issue has also impacted

on our timely achievement of planning permissions where we
have had to review submitted schemaes and request reduced
contributions or more apartrnents to ensure financial viability

of cur schemes.

Highlights in the year

During FY18 37 detailed planning consents were granted,
compared with 64 in FY17.

The development cycle time increased slightly from 18.1
months for FY17 ta 18.3 months for FY18, primarily as a result
of delays by the planning authcrities, in the planning process.

N B
L |

2017 What House Awards

In November 2017, we were pleased that our new development
at Bowes Lyon Court in Poundbury picked up Bronze award for
Best Retirement Development at the 2017 What House Awards.

Graphic removed

Five Star 18.3

Detailed pianning Retained customer Development cycie
consents satisfaction rating time in months
{FY17: 64) (FY17: Rve Sta) (FY17:18.1)

) @
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1 Apartment at Crocus Court, Pouitan-ia-Fyide
2 Wuharn Bragiord Court, Doncastar
3 Cryous Court, Poulton-lg-Fyide
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Effective planning and design

Strategic focus

Achieve more standardised and efficient designs and
continue our planning efforts to deliver new steady
state volume targets of ¢.2,100 units per annum.

Strategic objectives

Workflow realignment, build cost reduction and
afferdable product offering

Workflow management is fundamental to our operational
efficiency. We will create a monthly flow of quality land
acquistion and planning application submissions to facilitate
stabilised build starts threughout the year and steady state
sales volumes moving forward.

How wilt we achieve this
Deliver our new strategic objectives:

We wiil operate an efficient and effective planning process
whereby we achieve the best possible planning consents
as quickly as we can, providing for efficient, high guality and
affordable retirement developments

We will adopt a systemised development approach across
both the planning and design functions and design new,
affordable, standardised, streamlined, contemporary and
compact solutions - the McCarthy & Stone signature designs

Our designs will be simplified, while meeting planning policy
reguirements which will support our build cost reduction
strategic objective and achieve our return on capital empioyed
target of more than 15% by FY21 and more than 20% by FY23

QOur new designs wilt promote apen plan living and pravide full
depth daylight with a hrgher quality finish

We will broaden our market appeal by designing our products
to be more affordable ta the mass market and adopt different
building types with a modular approach which can also be
extended to our bungalow designs and we will continue to
optimise development density through reduced on-site car
parking and amenity space requirements

The designs will be able to utilise standard components which
can be bolted to modules extending to additional rooms or
storage and create customer options which are easy to
manage such as walk in wardrcbes

We will ensure a stable monthly flow of build starts
and first occupations. These will be supported by
conditional land acquisitions and subject to planning
and commercial viability.

Wa will drive value engineering preliminary through
standardisation and optimising technical specifications
especially focused on foundations, balconies and wall
structures

In addition, we will move away from the mindset of first
time consents at whatever cost, and ensure appropriate
balance between our workflow and margin objsctives.
The new incentive scheme will be rolled out across the
business which will be specifically designed to smooth
out the work flow across the develepment and build
cycles and suppart margin and ROCE key objectives

Building on our strengths and initiatives:

Spegdialist in-house planning team

Strong reputation with local autherities
Comprehensive local knowledge

Limited on-site affordable housing requirements

s |ncreased government recegnition of the social

and economic benefits of our products

Increasing national and tocal planning presumption in
favour of high density development on centrally located
brownfield sites and greater recognition of the social
and economic benefits of our products

Manage our risks, challenges and uncertainties

* Economic conditicns ¢ Workflow e Government legistation

* Employees * Carrying of land value = Land acquisition and planning
* Delivery of new strategy

See pages 74-77

MeCarthy & Stone plke Annual Report 55



STRATEGIC REPORT CORPORATE GOVERNANGE | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

High quality construction

Overview Health and Safety
We deliver exceptional build quality whilst maintaining Health and safety continues to be cne of our tap priorities with
robust health and safety standards. the Health and Safety commitiee meeting on a quarterly basis.

On our sites we emphasise a proactive approach to health
and safety as well as reinforcing the individual responsibility

H ig h l lg htS N th e year that every site worker has for their own and their colleagues'

i i . : . wellbeing. All staff (both employess and contractors)
The high quality of aur Ganstrugtion services is one of the are required to have adequate health and safety quatifications
griving forces behinc us being the only housebuilder of any before starting wark on our sites and all contractors are required
type that has achieved a Five Star rating in the HBF Customer to hofd valid Construction Skills Certification Scheme cards.

Service Surveys for the last 13 years since its inception. )
! . ‘ The Board receives regular updates on Healith and Safety
During FY18 construction cormmanced on 53 sites compared including aur Annuat Injury Incidence Rate (AIR).

to 86 for FY17, reflecting our reduced volume requirements. . ) )
The AIIR is a commonly used metric for caiculating reportable

Last year our continued focus on improving our operating 4 ‘ I
efficiency resulted in further improvements in our build cycle accident rates amongst House Builders Federation members

with a reduction from 14.4 to 13.9 months between FY17 and and the wider construction industry.

FY18. This has been delivered through a continued focus on McCarthy & Stone's AR was 543 for the year untit 31 March

improving the critical path for our developments together with 2018, which is a 35% improvement on the period ending

improvements to the quality and depth of our supply chain. a1 M:'m:h 2017,

The gross profit margin saw a decre;se from 20% jn FY1 7. to In August 2018, we appointed NHEBC to carry out monthly

16‘_% in FY18 as a result of geographical sales mix, increasing independent health and safety inspections on all cur ive

build costs and increased usage of part exchange schemes to construction sites. The data these reports praduce will allow us

coqn}eract subdued market conditions. Additional marketing to compare our sites against a 60% benchmark score NHBC

activity to suppor( B9 (FY_1 7. 5_2} sales releases also contributed have set as compliant, and also to compare ourselves directly

towards the margin deterioration. against other housebuilders through their system of All Advisor
Average cComparison.

Awards Reducing injuries in the workplace

2018 NHBC Health & Satety awards To continue to drive down our current AlIR we have introduced

I June 2018, we were pleased to receive three NHBC Health & a new housekeeping document which has improved both the
Safety Awards. The awards recognise and reward the very best standards and culture on Qur sites aver the past 12 months.

in health and safety in the housebuilding sector, and three site . .
Annual Injury Incidence Rate

managers, Rick Egerton, Mick Walters and Tony Barrowclough, sors ,
were commended. The awards are testament to the continued a0
care and attention we put into all of our developments. MeCarthy & Stone 643 993
UK Construction industry’ 397 398
NHBC Pride in The Job awards -
Home Builder Peer Group? 334 335

In May 2018, 20 site managers received
a coveted Pride in the Job Quality Award

from the Nationa! House Builders' Councit 0
(NHBC'). Of these five went on to win /0
Seals of Excellence and one to win a -

Regional Award, This year's result is Build starts In the yaar Bulld cycle in months Gross profit mangin
unprecedented for McCarthy & Stone Fy17: 66) FYi7:144) (FY17: 20%)

as it is the largest number of awards
ever received by the Group.

1 Health and Safety Executive

2 Homa Buildsrs Fedsration
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High guality construction

Minimising our impact on the environment

Environmental Policy

The Group has implementec an Erwironmental Policy designed
to minimise our impact on the ervironment and promote a
sustainable and ethical approach 1o managing its business
activities.

There are clear erwironmental and business benefits to
designing energy efficient homes, using responsibly sourced
and efficient materials, and with the minimum of waste sent
to landfill. Having a clear understanding of where our maney
is being spent and how much waste we create during the
construction and operation of our Cevelopments allows us to
make better informed business decisions while ensuring we
minimise our environmental impact.

We are committed to minimising as far as possible levels of
waste generated by our construction sites as this brings both
financial and environmentat benefits. Of the 26,655 tonnes of
waste generated on our construction sites in FY18, only 1.8%
{being 485 tonnes) went to landfill, the rest being recycled. We
continue to wark with our waste management companies to try
and further improve this figure, as well as with our suppliers to
reduce waste further up the supply chain.

Strategic focus

Redesigning and re-engineering the way we build

We will deploy more cost-effective building solutions and
streamiine procurement practices by redesigning and
re-engirneering the way we build. In order to achieve this we
will further develop our value engineering and procurement
initiatives.

Strategic objectives

Operational efficiency through rightsizing our business

and build cost reduction

As part of the new Group strategy, our primary objectives are to
optimise our balance sheet and right size our operational cost
base to deliver build cost saving.

We will also to aim to reduce the pressure on our suppliers and
employees to deliver during peak periods.

How will we achieve this

We will recuce the number of units in development and
in finished stock over the next three years. We will also
match production levels with sales rates and create a
stable monthly fiow of build starts and first occupations

Staff will be incentivised to deliver a smoothed workflow
and will focus on optimising subcontractor procurement
practices which facilitate further build cost reductions anc
margin improvermnents

We have introduced improved tocis to allow further
development of our supply chain through enhanced
tendering processes, particularty on the subcontract
elements.

Various value engineering opportunities have been
identified, the move towards additional modern methods
of construction and proposals to streamline our preliminary
costs will give us the ability to not only mitigate inflationary
pressures but to reduce our base costs

We will aim to reduce our finished stock to ¢.1,100
units by Fy21

We will build on our existing strengths and initiatives:

Full capability to deliver on steacly volumes
Experienued subtunlraciors

Estabiished supply chain

Repeatable build process
Custormer-focused buid

DATUM - industry leading product management platform
with technical specification libraries fully established

Bidcon - construction estimating tool now tully
operational across the business

Manage our risks, challenges and uncertainties

* Reputation and customer satisfaction e« Workflow

* Government legislation = Build programmes and cost

* Employees * Health and Safety « Delivery of new strategy

See pages 74-77
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Specialist sales and marketing

Overview

We make our sales process as easy as possible for our
customers and their families ensuring that they are fully
supported from the initial enquiry right through to tegal
completion.

Highlights in the year

Investing in our sales staff is vital, As such we have set up
our national training academy which s now operational and
offers high quality and consistent training for all our sales staff.

Increased brand awareness has been achieved through
our naticnwide “Retirement living to the full” multi-channel
marketing campaign, with TV bursts in January to March
2018 and September to October 2018.

The Group delivered fuli year revenue of E672m (FY17: £661m),

supported by a 10% improvement in average selling price,
which increased during the year to £300k (FY17: £273k).
This reflected substantial improvements in the guality and
location of our developments.

The Group achieved total legal completions of 2,134 units
{FY17: 2,302} during the year, with volumes constrained,

as expected and by the heavy weighting of first occupations,
continuing economic uncertainty coupled with a slower
secondary housing market and a softening of pricing,
‘particularly in the South, during the second half of the year.
This also had an acverse impact on our off-plan reservation
rates which reduced from 53% in FY17 to 49% in FY18,

Qur volurnes included the sale of 25 units (FY17: 126 units)
across 9 developments to PP Capital. Additionally, 43 units
(FY17: nil) across 23 developments were sold to heylo housing
as part of their Homereach product range which provides

customers with a shared ownership tenure option. Our in-house

shared ownership pilot delivered the fiest three units (FY17: nil)
under this initiative in Q4 FY18.

Views on YouTube:

1,600,679

Web calls attributed
to the TV ad:

c.2,482

Web sessions during
the TV campaign:

up 16%
year on year

2134 £300k 49%

Lagai compigtions {units) Average sdling price Off-plan resarvation rate

FY17.2.302)

..

(FY17:£2734 {EY17: 53%)

McCarthy & Stone pic Annual Repor?
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Specialist sales and marketing

Strategic focus

Leveraging customers’ insight to provide an enrhanced Build on our existing strengths and initiatives:
customer experience = Significant iocal knowledge and a trusted brand
Listening to our customer feedback and learning about their with over 40 years experience

purchasing experience with McCarthy & Stone will help us 1o « Dedicated customer service teams

develop a better customer focused and efficient sales and
marketing sclution that supports our strategic objectives
going forward.

= National training academy fully set up and
operational

Strategic objectives
Create an efficient and effective sales and
marketing model

Enhanced sales efficiency and effectiveness with a streamlined
approach to delivering a stable flow of first occupations and
will support the delivery of ROCE of mare than 15% by FY21
and maore than 20% by FY23.

How will we achieve this

Deliver our new strategic objectives:
= Salesforce technology
Implementation of the new Salesferce Customer Relationship

Managerment platform will standardise the sales process and
pravide an enhanced personalised customer experience.

The Salesforce technology is due fc be launched in the North

West region in December 2018, with all regions going live in .
early 2019. Standardised sales and marketing processes will

be implemented alongside the new technology.

» Benefits of the new system include;
- Improved customer insight
- Enhanced personalised customer experience
- Improved marketing effectiveress

- Oplimisec sales operating medel creating streamlined
sales staffing and the development of an impraved
sales website and content management sysiem

* Centralise the marketing functicn:

- Marketing will be centralised to promote a consistent
message, improved effectiveness and reduction in
the cost per lead

= We will also strengthen Group oversight and
controt in key areas of sales and marketing

Manage our risks, challenges and uncertainties

» Economic canditions = Reputation and ¢ustomer satisfaction
» Sales performance * Workflow e Government legistation

* Employees ¢ Cyber/data

See pages 74-77
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Bl Our Business Model contiues

Graphic remaved

Case study

Nick Twigger is a shining example of what our Estate Managers do on a daily basis. Nick has made
it his primary objective to ensure that everyone at Wilton Court, Kenilworth feeis welcome, whether [_ _l
that be the team of 13 staff he manages or the 70 customers who live there. Custormers describe

living at Wilton Court as being part of one big happy family. Graphic removed
Nick manages a varied and stimulating range of entertainments and activities at Wilton Court, all

tailored ta the difierent interests and the heaith and mobility needs of our customers. Wilton Court

is recognised in the local community for its charity fund-raising exploits and Nick is at the heim of L —l

this, with many charities and local organisations benefiting from events and activities at Wilton Court.

Nick Twigger
Estate Manager, Wilton Court, Kenilworth

64  McCarthy & Stone pic
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Supportive management and care services

Overview

Through our in-house Management and Care Services team,
we develop a long term relationship with our customers. This
enables us to provide flexible services and support, throughaout
the whole time they spend in our development. Amost nine out
of ten of our customers say that their quality of (iffe has actually
improved after living with us for nine months.

Qur customers have peace on mind safe in the knowledge that
our dedicated in-house teams are on hand to assist should they
need it. This s key to ensuring that our customers can relax and
enjcy their retiremeant to the full.

Our management, catering and care teams support
a wide range of services including:

* ¢.60,900 meais served each month'
* ¢.31,000 hours of care and support each month’
* €.33,500 social activities held during FY18*

Highlights in the year

98%?2 of our Retirement Living PLUS registered developments
inspected have been rated “Good" by the CQC.

379

As well as undertaking the day-to-day runming of developrnents,
a key part of the role for cur management and care services
tearns is fostering and developing the community. All new
developments receive an initial community fund to help support
social events and activities. Based on the interests of customers
€.33,500 (FY17: ¢.27,600)" social events were held in our
managed properties over the last 12 months. The impact of

this upon the lives of customers is clear from our last customer
survey - 83% of our customers said that they experienced a
sense of community in their new property, compared to 51%'

of older pecple in general.

Awards

At this year's Association of Residential Managing Agents
Awards we were delighted to win twa awards and be shartlisted
in the headline category:

* ARMA Onsite Staff Member of the year:
Nick Twigger, Estate Manager, Wilton Court

» ARMA Service Charge Accountant of the year:
Julija Bizna, Management Services Head Office

¢ Finalist - ARMA National Managing Agent of the year

Graphicremoved

L |

16,900 98%

Devetapments Number of QG scom
under management customers rated “Good™
(FY17: 312) FY17: <. 14,800 FY17. 88%)

1 Homeowner survey (2017)
antf research by Demos (2616)

2 CQe
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Graphic removed

B

Graphicremoved

1 Buikding mainterance
2 Dedicated to ioaking affer our customers
3 Keeping the developrnent looking its besi all year round

66 McCarthy & Stona plc
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Supportive management and care services

Strategic focus

Service offering that responds to evelving customer
needs and creates retirement communities

Having run focus groups with current customers, prospective
custommiers and their family members, we are looking to expand
our offering to provide greater flexibility around the payment

of service charges, provide more choice of additional filestyle
support and activities and increase oppaortunities to open up
our developments to wider community use.

Strategic objectives

Evolving our business

Develop our service proposdion to align with cur long-term
vision and purpose of creating even deeper and longer
relationships with our customers and create retirement
communities that enrich the guality of life for our customers
and their families.

We are seeking to develop our management and care services
so that they are well placed to develop our business rmodel
which can be flexitile and future proofed and evoive with the
actual needs of our customers, offering what our customers
are seeking from within their communities including:

* |ndependence and proximity to transportation, privacy
and their own autdoor space

* Support during life transitions, including social activities
and healthcare

= Convenience as customers value features that are easy
to use and enhance their lifestyle and satety

Cornmunity 8s our customers don't want tc be isclated

Affordability a5 our customers want different options of
service and payment metheds

[ -

Graphic removed

L ]

How will we achieve this

Delivery of our new strategic objectives:

Leveraging customer involvement, insights and
analytics at every stage of our business development.

Enhance the personalised customer experience by
intreducing more flexibility, choice and affordability.

The key initiatives to create the enhanced customer
experience include;

* Management and caré services will be mare
customer facing

= Intreduction of differing opticns for levels of service

¢ Introduction of flexible payment options and charging
model into an all-inclusive management fee model.
Customer feedback shows the peace of ming given
by a fixed fee model is highly valued and preferred
o a varable model

Introduce technology enabled services to help improve

the quaiity of life, community, safety and convenfence

for the customer

« Provision of new offerings to give support and inclusion
of the community which will include new partnerships,
opening our developments to the public and expanded
care opticns

* Build management and care services into a fuily-fledged

profit generating segment of our business

Build on our existing strengths and initiatives:

s Dedicated in-house Management and Care Services

team and a strong service platform

Mouse and Estate Management teams undertake

day-to-day running of developments

* Providing added peace of mind for customers, including
social events, care support services, safety and security

« Ongoing service quality underpins the McCarthy & Stone
brand by achieving 'Good' CQC ratings in 98%' of
registered Retirement Living PLUS developments in FY18

1 cac

Manage our risks, challenges and uncertainties

* Covernment legislation * Employees e« Heaith and Safety
» Cyber/data « Delivery of new strategy

See pages 74-77
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Rowan Baker Chief Financial Officer
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Our performance

During the last financial year, the business continued to face
considerable market headwinds including continuing poiitical and
aconomic uncertainty following the outcome of the vote to leave

the EU. These headwinds have resulted in a lowering of consumer
confidence, a challenging secondary housing market and scme
softening of pricing in the South East. The above axternal faciors,
tegether with our continued investment in operating costs in support
of our previous growth strategy, have resulted in a 30% reciuction in
uniderlying operating profit and a 33% reduction in operating profit
compared to the prior year.
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Revenue

The Group delivered full year revenue of £672m {FY17: £661m),
supported by a 10% improvement in average seling price,
which increased during the period to £300k (FY17: £273k).
This reflected substantial improvements in the quality and
location of our developments. Our revenue for the year
included FR! revenue of £29m (FY17: £28m).

The Group achieved total legal completions of 2,134 units
{FY17: 2,302} during the year, with volumes constrained,

as expectad, by the heavy H2 weighting of first occupations,
continuing econamic uncertainty coupled with a slower
secondary market, especially in the South East, during the
second half of the year.

Ouwr volurmnas included the sate of 25 units (FY17: 126 units}
across 9 developments to PP Capital as we continued to
leverage the opportunity to access the growing rental market.
Additionally, 43 units (FY17: nil) across 23 developments were
sold to heyla housing as part of their Homereach praduct range
as a means by which 10 provide customers with a shared
ownership tenure gption.

Profit

Consistent with guidance given in June, underlying

operating profit decreased to £E68m (FY17: £96m) in the

year, whilst operating profit decreased to £64m (FY17: £94m).
Our underlying operating profit margin decreased to 10% (FY17:
15%) and our operating profit margin decreased to 9% (FY17:
14%). This reduction in profitability and margin percentage
was mainly driven by build cost increases, increased usage of
part-exchange and incentives 10 counteract subtued market
conditions, addittonal marketing activity to promote the higher
level of current year sales releases (FY18: 69, FY17: 52} and
our continued investment in gperaling costs in support of

Qur previous growth strategy.

26 72 m

Revenue
FYi7: BB61m)
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During the year, we saw an increase in the volume of part-
exchange transactions reaching 753, 35% of legal completions
(FY17: 627, 27% of legal completions), as a reflection of the
ongoing subdued secondary market. 335 of these transactions
were on balance sheet PX (FY17; 163) rasulting from the
national roll-out of in-house part-exchange solutions with tight
controls in place 1o ensure regions do not exceed their capital
allocation. This transiated into a saving of ¢.£7m (FY17: ¢.£1m)
compared 1o use of third-party PX with average capital
employed of £27m (FY17: E10m) over the year. 335 properties
(FY17: 163 properties) were purchased during the year at

an average of 86% (FY17. 96%;) of market vatue with 302
(FY17: 49) properties re-sold within the year. The average

tire taken to resell these properties was ¢.13.1 weeks

(FY17: c.8.5 weeks).

Total administrative expenses for the year amounted to £40m
(FY17: £37m), excluding exceptional items and amortisation of
brand and remained at the sarme proportion of revenue as last
year of 6% (FY17: 6%)

Underlying profit before tax decreased to £62m (FY17: £94m)
during the year with statutory profit before tax of £58m

(FY17: £92m). This was impacted by a net £ revaluation loss
(FY17: net £2m revaluation gain) of our shared equity portfolio
which contributed 1o an increase in net finance expenses to
£25m (FY17: £2m} reflecting an agverse change in the forward
looking HPI assumptions. Statutory profit before tax has been
further impacted by £2m (FY17: £nil) ot exceptional costs
incurred in FY18 as we commenced our business
transformation programme.

£64.,

Operating profit
{FY17: £54m)

10%

{FY17: 16%)

aea
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Capital structure and interest

The Group saw its tangible gross asset value increase to
£692m (FY17: £646m} and its tangible net asset value increase
to £696m (FY17: £676m) during the year. This was primarily
driven by a £147m increase in finished stock excluding in-house
part-exchange properties reflecting 52 first occupations
delivered in the second half of FY18 (FY17: 30 first occupations
delivered in the second half of FY17).

Anincrease in trade and other receivables due in less than

1 year from £10m in FY17 to £22m in FY18 primarily reflects
balances due from heylo housing for the bulk sale transaction.
Trade and other payables have increased from £85m in FY17
to £115m in FY18 due to higher deferred income balances
reflecting the FRI transaction in August 2018 and high level

ot accruals due to August buitd activity.

Curing the year we continued to maintain a robust financial
position with net cash of £4m (FY17: £31m) as at 31 August
2018. This resulted in 8 negative gearing of 2% (FY17: 4%),
reflecting management’s angoing focus on disciplined tand
acquisition in response to continuing economic uncertainty
and was achieved notwithstanding the negative cash impact
of increased build spend and owr in-house part-exchange tool
which resulted in £42m part-exchange assets being hsld on
the balance sheet at the year end {FY17: £32m).

We maintained appropriate headroom against our revolving
credit facility (RCF") throughout the year, This facility was
increased from £200m to £250m for 12 months from February
2018, The level of drawdown fluctuated during the year with the
maximum draw down of £195m in June 2018 (FY17: £166m in
July 2017} reflecting the Group's revenue peak in August and
working capital requirements to fund our investment in tand,
build and sales and marketing expenditure. The average draw
down during the year was £137m (FY17. £100m).

The Group incurred net finance expenses of £5m during the
year (FY17: £2m), impacted by a net £1m revaluation loss

{FY17: net £2m revaluation gain) of our shared equity peortiolio
which resufted in an increase in financs expenses to £6m
(FY17: £4amj reflecting an adverse change in the forward looking
HP| assumptions.

Exceptional costs
Exceptional costs of £2m (FY17: £nil} were recognised within the

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income during FY18,

These costs related ta advisory fees and redundancies incurred
on commencement of the Group's strategic review in the year.

70 McCarthy & Stonae pic

Taxation

The effactive tax rate was close 10 the statutory rate during
the current financial year. The total tax charge for the year was
£12m (FY17: £18m) which represents an effective tax rate of
20% (FY17: 19%) based on a profit before tax of £58m (FY17:
£32m). The rate of corporation tax was lowered to 19% from

1 April 2017 and will be at 17% with effect from 1 April 2020.

Earnings per share and dividend

Underlying basic earnings per share decreased by 35% to
9.2p (FY17: 14.2p) refiecting the reduction in underlying profit
before tax from £94m in FY17 10 £62m in £Y18. Basic earnings
per share for FY18 were 8.6p (FY17; 13.8p). Details of the
calculation of underlying earnings per share can be found

in note 5 to the financial statements. Details of the calculation
of earnings per share can be found in note 11 to the

financial statements.

The Directors are proposing a final dividend of 3.5p per share.
This follows the interim dividerd of 1.9p per share, giving a total
dividend for the year of 5.4p per share (FY17: 5.4p per share).
This maintains our dividend at the same level as the prior year
despite the lower level of profitability and reflects the Board's
confidence in its new strategy. The proposed total annual
dividend is covered 1.6x times by FY18 earnings. Subject to
shareholder approval at the Annual General Meeting (AGM’),
the dividend wilt be paid on 1 February 2019 to shareholders
on the register at 4 January 2019.

The total cost of the final dividend is £19m, resulting in a total
dividend cost relating to the year of £29m (FY17. £29m).

Target returns

Cur investment in build to defiver our previous growth strategy
resulted in a £157m increase in finished stock {including on
balance sheet part exchange properties). This increase,
together with a £29m reduction in undertying operating profit,
led to a decrease in ROCE by 6 ppis to 10% {FY17. 16%) and a
reduction in capital turn to 1.0x {(FY17. 1.1x}). Qur new strategy,
however, focuses on increasing ROCE, margin and cash
generation with the targel of delivering a greater than 15%
ROCE by FY21 and a further Spp improvement to greater than
20% ROCE by FY23.

QOur new strategic targets reported on 25 September are as
follows:

* ROCE improvement of greater than 15% by FY21, increasing
to over 20% by FY23
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* |mprovement in cperating margins to more than 15% by FY21
* Total cost savings of mora than £40m per annum by FY21

¢ Total cumulative cash savings in excess of £90m between
FY19-Fy21

* The Group will focus on a reduction of its capital employed
by at least £70rn between FY18 and FY21

Change of auditors and financial year end

In June 2018 the Board completed the external audit tender
process in line with the ten year statutory requirerent and
appointed Ernst & Young LLF as the Group's statutory auditors
for the period ending 31 October 2019. This appointment
remains subject to approvai by shareholders of the Group at
the Annual General Meeting to be held on 23 January 2019.
As part of the business transformation strategy announced on
25 September 2018, the Directors decided to change the
Group's financial year end from 31 August to 31 October.

This will altow us to decoupie our year end activities from

the peak August holiday season and will serve to accelerate
the process of rebalancing workflow and sales volumes
throughout the year. FY18 will be the first financial year
reported to 31 October and therefore will be a 14 month period
of account. Our first half reporting will cover the six months to
28 February 2019 and our second half, the eight months from
1 March to 31 October 20189.

Post balance sheet event

On 25 September 2018 the Group announced its new business
strategy aimed at improving margins, rightsizing the operational
cost base and evalving the business model to mest the
changing needs of our customers. Total exceptional costs

of ¢.£25m are expected across the life of the business
transformation programme, with £2m already incurred in FY18.
The majority of the exceptional costs are expected to come
through in the first half of FY19, representing the cost of land
that will no longer be developed, redundancy costs and further
consultants' fees. There were no events after the reporting
period that required adjustment in the FY18 financial statements.

Risk management

The Group maintains a robust risk management framework,
providing a clear link between its strategy and the strategic,
operational and financial risks faced by the business.

The approach to risk is set by the Board, which maimains a
close involvement in identifying and mitigating risk and monitors

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE | FINANGIAL STATEMENTS

certain key risk indicators at Board meetings on a regular basis.

As part of managing the financial risk in the business, the
potential impact of a downturn in the housing market or the
broader UK ecenomic envirgnment is regularly evaluated and
we have a number of key risk indicators that are used at Board
level in order to assess this. Our gecgraphic coverage and
diversified portfolic of land ensures that we are not overty
dependent on particular local markets or individual
developments. In addition, our distinct business model helps
to insulate our business from a downturn, with land acquisition
normally contracted subject to planning and also often subject
to commercial viability or by way of option, enabling us to review
land acquisitton decisions in light of ptanning outcomes and
latest market conditions prior to committing significant capital.

The following risks have been identified by the Board with
respect to delivering the new Group stralegy:

» Unit compietion pattern continues to be lumpy with a
significant proportion delivered towards the year end

* Land buying and build programmes are not successfully
calibrated to deliver a steady state production

* Failure to deliver required cost savings through changes to
the crganisational design

* The build cost reduction programme is not fully achieved

« Fazilure to streamline the sales model and centralise the
rmarketing function

Liquidity risk is the risk the Group will encounter difficulty

in meeting obligations associated with financial lizbilities.

The Graup's strategy in retation to managing liquidity risk is to
ensure that the Group has sufficient liquid funds to meet altits
potential Kabilities as they fall due. The liguidity ot the Group is
dependant on achieving the level of szles volumes, prices in ling
with current forecasts and strategic objectives as annocunced
on the 25 September 2018, Liquidity risks are managed through
the regular review of detailed short term and long term cash
How forecasts to monitor the expected reguirements of the
Group against the available facilities, principally the revolving
credit facility in place, and by maintaining adequate committed
banking facilities to ensure appropriate headroom.

Rowan Baker
Chief Financial Officer
12 November 2018
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B Risk Management

How we manage the risks to our business

Effective management of risk is integral to the successful delivery of our strategy
and could have an adverse impact on shareholder value and the Group reputation

Risk is managed through a five-step risk management process, led by the Board

1. Identify risk 2. Determine

risk appetite

3. Treat,
tolerate or
transter risk

5. Review risk

4. Monitor risk

Board assessmant Risk heat map

and score cards

Key controls
framework

Assurance
programme

Key risk indicators

The maintenance of formal risk dashboards, risk scorecards,
the management of key control frameworks, the monitoring of
risk indicators for the principal risks and ths pursuit of a broad
assurance programme provide all levels of management with
a clear framework within which to operate.

The Directors have carried out a robust assessment of the
principal risks facing the Group, including those that would
threaten our business model, achievement of strategic
chijectives, solvency or liguidity.

Principat risks and uncertainties are formally identified, reviewed
and updated by the Executive Board every six months using a
risk scoring methodolagy. Each risk is categorised based on
likefihood and potential impact. Once agreed with the Executive
Board, the risks are plotted on a risk heat map and submitted
to the Risk and Audit Committee for approval and subsequently
to the Board.

The risk appetite for each risk is established through a bi-arnual
review of the risk heat map. This review confirms whether the
relative position of each risk is acceptable and if not, what
actions are needed to reduce the likelihood and/or impact of
them crystallising.

In addition, risk indicators have been identified for each principal
risk by the Executive Board with associated risk parameters.
This allows the Executive Board to identify whether any principal
risks are beginning to crystalise beyond the pre-determined
risk appetite and if s0 whether any actions are required to
address this,

Assurance is provided over the effective design and operation
of the risk framework through a formal programme of assurance
activity. This is structured around three lines of defence:

1. Management assurance, through operationat controls,
reporting and oversight

2. Functional oversight
3. Programme of assurance activity, Including internal audit
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Monitoring principal risks

The following risks have been identified by the Board with
respect to delivering the new Group strategy:

« Unit completion pattern continues to be lumpy with a
significant proportion delivered towards the year end.

« Land buying and build programmes are not successfully
calibrated to deliver a steady state production

* Failure o deliver required cost savings through changes o
the organisational design

+ The build cost reduction programme is not fully achieved

* Failure to streamline the sales model and centralise the
marketing function

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter when it
has difficulty in meeting cbligations associated with financial
liabilittes. The Group's strategy in relation to managing liquidity
risk is to ensure that the Group has sufficient liquid funds to
meet all its potential liabilities as they fall due. The liquidity of
the Group is dependant on achieving the levet of sales volumes,
prices in ling with current forecasts and strategic objectives as
announced on the 25 September 2018. Liquidity risks are
managed through the regular review of detailed short term
and long term cash flow forecasts to monitor the expected
requirements of the Group against the available facilities,
principally the revolving credit facility in place, and by
maintaining adequate committed banking facilities to ensure
appropriate headroom.

The risks attribuled to each land acquisition opportunity

are assessead by regional management using predetermined
criteria and form part of the regional submission to the Group
Investment Committee, which approves each land purchase.
Following fand acquisition, the construction and commercial
risks and opportunities are recorded in a development risk
register. A range of worst to best-case potential out-turn costs
are monitared and managed throughout the construction
phase, allowing risks to be formally managed and opportunities
realised.
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Principat risks crystallisation in FY18;

+ The risks to build costs experienced in previpus years were
largely kept under control in FY18

* The risk that did crystallise in FY18 was the sales risk
resulting in the profit warming in June 2018, The business
failed to achieve the growth rates expected in the IPO
strategy due to a number of factors, not least the softening
in the secondary housing market due to ongoing economic
uncertainty caused by Brexit

The pringipal sales risk indicators hignlighted to management
that this risk was crystallising beyond the risk appetite but
despite management attempts to address this, the risk

fully crystalised.

Internal audit assurance

During FY18 internal audits focused on the following key areas
of the business which related to the principal risks identified
and assessed compliance with core policies and procedures:

s Marketing, foracasting, health ang safety
* Regicnal key contrels framework certification
* Robustness of the forward sales arder boak

s Southern, South East and East Miglands Regional audits
to assess compliance with core policies

» Comercial audits of develcpments under construction
and three regions' commercial processes.

Overall oversight is provided by the Board, with individual
members of the Board and the Executive Board owning
each of the principal risks.

Internal control environment

The core elements of the Group-wide internal control
environment are organisationat structure, culture and
values, Group strategy and a key contrels framework:

QOrganisational structure

The Group's organisational structure is established around
clear divisions of responsipilities between the Board and the
Executive Board. The Board is responsible for the operational
control of the Group, including all strategic, financial,
organigational, legal and regulatory matters.

The Executive Board is responsible for the day-to-day
management of the operational activities of the Group. Each
member of the Executive Board has a 'leadership team’ of
direct reports, who are responsible for the system of internal
controls across their business area.

Culture and values

The Group has developed a values framework which consists
of five cornerstone principles: passion, responsibility, innovation,
determination and excellence (PRIDE), These are used as a
guide to conducting business from key decisions to day-to-day
activities.

These values are widely communicated across the business
to ensure alignment with strategic cbjectives and to actively
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encourage a culture that promotes teamwark, involvement
and empowerment at all lsvels of the Group. These values
play a key role in recruitment across the business.

Group strategy

The Group strategy. which was reviewad during FY18,

has increased focus on profitability. The strategy has been well

documented and communicated both internally and externatly

and was the subject cf a strategy review day on 25 September !
2018. To support this strategy the Board has identified our

strategic objectives, as discussed on pages 10 and 11.

Key controls framework

The key controls framework defines the Group’s most
important internal controls on which it places refiance

in the management of s core business and reporting on
its performance and progress towards achieving strategic
ohjectives. The Group operates consistent processes and
controls across the business. The key contrals framework
is reviewed and tested annually with the results presented
ta the Board and is also subject to internal audit review.

Viability statement

In accordance with provision C.2.2 of the UK Corporate
Governance Code 2016, The Directors have to assess the
prospects and viability of the Group.

In response to that, the Directors have assessed the prospects
and financial viability of the Group, taking into account both its
current position and principal risks. The Directors consider a
three-year period is appropriate for this assessment as our
capital cycle from land completion to final sef-out of a
development, for FY18 build starts, is approximately three
years. Our land pipeline also provides us with sufficient land
under control to meet sales targets for the next three years.
Accordingly, we consider it appropriate that our viability review
period is broacly aligned with the expected longevity of our
owned land supgply.

The Group is subject to a number of principal risks {as set out

irr more detail overleaf) and the Directors’ viability statement
raview considered the impact that these risks might have on the
Group’s ability to meet its targets. This was undertaken through
the modelling of a combined set of sensitivities, by applying a
reasonably possible downside to sales completion volumes,
selling prices, FRI income and expected build cost savings.

This sensitivity analysis reflects a severe but plausible impact,
assuming that the appropriate steps are taken to mitigate the
impact of the downside and continuing availability of the RCF
throughout the assessment period, which is due for renewal in
May 2021. The Directors will continue to review the Group's
external funding requirement following the anncuncement of the
Group’s new strategy on 25 September 2018 and do not
anticipate any issues in securing a renewal of the facility beyend
May 2021. Further detail as to how the facility is used, the level
of reliance placed, and how the Group's liquidity risk is
managed can be found on page 70.

Based on this review, the Directors confirm that they have a
reascnable expectation that the Group will be able to continue
in operation and meet its liabilities as they fali due over the
three-year assessment period.
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B Principal Risks and Uncertainties
facing the Group

Risk area Risk description Mitigating actions
Housebuilding is cyclical and refiznt on the broader The Group closety monitors industry indicators and assesses
economy. A deterioration in the economic outlook, the potential impact of different econcmic scenarios.
including economic growth, inflation, interest rates and Decisions to allocate new capital to land and builg are
buyer confidence, could have a significant impact on managed certrally through the Group Investment Committee.
the Group's inancial performance and ability to selt The Group aims to maintain a geographical and product
N both retirement apartments and the properties acquired spread of developments to ansure that it is not reliant on
Economic as part af the in-house part-exchange scheme. one locality or product type.
conditions _ . i . .
The uncertainty in the economy and specifically the The operation of an in-house part-exchange scheme is
secondary r!ogsebuﬂding market following the EU subject to strict controls and regional and divisional limits.
;::ﬁ:e;d;g S‘Qﬁiﬁ;ﬁéogmﬁhﬁ ;ho?g tomedium- 1he gevelopment of new tenure types, including the rental and
' shared ownership offerings will help to offset any potential

impact of a downturn in the secondary housing market.

Business area impacted

Land Buying Planning & Design Sales & Marketing m
Like any other business, the Group is affected by We welcome the Government’s consultation paper on ground
changes in Government legislaticn. The Government rent reform which was published in Octaber 2018 and are
cansultation on unfair leasehold practices in FY18 had pleased with the proposal to exempt the retirement sector
an adverse impact on the Group’s business mode. from the proposed cap on ground rents. However, the Group
notes that this remains a propesal and is subject to further
consultation and passage through Pariament. The Group
G°Yemf“e"t has recently carried out an impact assessment of lower and
legislation no ground rents and reviewed its land appraisal process

accardingly and is seeking alternative solutions to mitigate
the adverse impact on the businass model should an
axempticn not be gramed.

Business area impacted

Land Buying m Pianning & Design

Constructian Sales & Marketing m Management Services
Frolonged business disruption and/or fadure to achieve Clear and concise objectives have been developed to
the targeted savings could result in adverse financial deliver the targets as defined in the new Group strategy.
deterioration and the lewvel of funding required to A Transformation and change office to oversee and ciosely

support working capital, which may negatively impact monrtor progress against the objectives has been created.
the viability of the Group.

rll)ee\ffv:trryatoefgy Business area impacted
= Land Buying m Planning & Design
Construction Sales & Marketing m Management Servicas m

Change from previous year

Increased risk No change Decreased risk . New risk
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Mitigating actions

Land
acquisition

and planning

Poor-quality land and/or location could result in
programme/cost over-runs and difficulty in selling.
Failure to obtain timely planning consents will
adversely affect workflow, resulting in falure to meet
targeted sales and/or cash flow.

Business area impacted

m Planning & Design

Land Buying

Regicnal land buying teams are in place across all regions
providing local knowledge and expertise. These teams are
targeted on land exchange and completion as parl of their
reward structure.

We acquire land with a high degree of conditionality.

Regional planning teams have the support and oversight
of the Greup Investment Committee.

programmes

and cost

The Group's financial performance is dependent

an its ability to deliver build programimes on time and
on budget. Build programme or cost over-runs could
result in slower salas or reduced margins.

As part of the strategic review the Board have identified
significant potential for cost reductions through
standardisation, design efficiencies and procurement
practices. Achievement of this build cost reduction
programme will be critical to the Group delivering s
new Srategy.

Business area impacted

Construction

Build progress and costs are reviewed regularly by

dedicated regional commercial teams, as well as being
reported to regional, divisional and Group managemert.
Independant assurance is provided by the internal audit

teamn who perfarm commarcial intemnal audits of developmants
under construction in order to mitigate the rigk. Framework
agreemants have been established with key subcontractors
and suppliers to provide greater certainty of price and supply.
In addtion, the Group has implemented a tighter contrg!
framework over higher risk more complex develepmants.

Workflow

The Group has historically suffered from a bias towards
achieving the majority of its completions and profits in
the secand half of the financial year. Hence, any political
uneertairty or agverse market conditions during this
period could adversely impact the Group's annual
pertormance. This was evidenced by the EU
Referendum result in 2016 and to a lesser extent the
General Blaction cutcome in 2017.

Business area impacted
Land Buying

Planning & Dasign Construction

As part of the new strategy, the Group is re-aligning
workflow towards a steady state production through
the following actions:

* Reducing the number of sites in developrment

Ensuring stable manthly flow of build starts and

first occupations

Intraducing an incentive scheme designed to deliver
smogthened workilow

Changing the year end away from the peak holiday
season to 31 Octcber

Workflow is closely monitored by regional and divisional
management and by the Board.

E Sales & Marketing m
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Bl Principal Risks and Uncertainties
facing the Group Continued

Risk area Risk description Mitigating actions
The Group's businass ptan assumas seling and Detated reporting enables the Group to monitor sales
charging of its products and services at attractive and pricing at a site and unit level and regularty review
prices. Any volumae shortfall or pricing weakness performance against expectation with regional and
could have a significant impact on the Group'’s divisional managemeari.

financial performance. A strict approval process exists for awarding discounts

and incentives in excess of certain thresholds.

Sales
performance

Business area impacted

Sales & Marksting m

The Group's employees are central 1o the achievement The Group has put in place attractive reward

of tha Group's objectives. Failure to recruit and retain mechanisms and provides axtensive opportunitias for
sufficient staff resource of the right quality could personal developmant and training, both of which are
adversely impact the business. regufarly reviewed against peer housebuitders and other

employars in local markets. Resource requirements
. are assessed against annual budgsts and recruitment
Employees processas are designed to ensure 1alent attraction and
retention to deliver the Group's strategy.

Business area impacted

Land Buying m Planning & Design
Construction Sales & Marketing m Management Servicas
The Group builds, sells and rents a quality product to The Group enforces strict procedures over the handover of
/\ an ageing and sometirmes frail customer base and developments for occupation and the handover of specific
provides angoing managemert and cara services. apartments to individual customers. Ongoing management
@ Any issuas with the products or services the Group and care sarvices are provided within a robust framework
provides could impact on reputation or custormer of contrcls which is closely monitored. The business has
R tati satisfaction to the detriment of the Group. a dedicated custormer services team and tracks customer
a:g t::us;ztr‘n er Adverse national publicity with respect to resales, satisfaction through NHBC, HBF and internat surveys.
satisfaction espe_clalfy c_JIder non-man;ged properties a_nd thase An in-house egtate agency supports the resales process
sald just prior to the housing market crash in 2008, can tor customers in our managed developments on the general
rasult in lower resale values, which in turn can adversely housing market, with the aim of speeding up the sales process
impact our abllity to sell new retirement apartments. and maximising value on resaie.

Business area impacted
Construction Sates & Marketing [
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Mitigating actions

value of land

The net realisable value of land owned by the Group
may decline due to changes in the property market or
other condtions, or the Group being unable o secure
detailed planning consent on land purchased
unconditionaliy,

Business area impacted

Flanning & Dasign

Land Buying

Whenever possible, contracts to purchase land are via option
agreement or are conditional on the Group obtaining detailed
planning consent and contain a commercial viability Clause.
The Group performs impairmant raviews in line with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS')
requiraments, on a half yearly basis.

Health and
Safety

Constryction sites ara inherently risky, and could
axpose employees/zantractors to the risk of serious
injury/fatality.

Customaers in the developments tha Group
manages are ageing and somatimes frail, with the
risk that thay can be more susceplible to injury.
Business area imbacted

Construction

The Group strives for excellerice in health and safety and
considers it tc be a top priority. This is supported by a
rigorous, independent site inspeaction process which
routinely assesses and raparts on standards.

E Management Services m

Failure ot any of the Group's IT systems, in particular
thase relating to customer data, surveying and
vatuation, couwld advarsely impact the perfarmance
and reputation ot the Group.

Business area impacted

The Group maintains central IT systems and has in

place a fully tasted disastar recovery programme. This is
supplemented by regular reviews 1o seek to reduce the risk
of successful cyber-attacks and a Ganeral Nata Pratection
Regulation ('GOPR'") programme to ensure compliance with
GDFR legislation.

The Salastarce CRM platform due 1o be rolled out during
FY19 will deliver enhanced compliance with GDFR
requirements.

Sales & Marketing m Management Services

Change from previous year

Increased risk

No change Decreased risk

B newnsk
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1 Cardinal Court, Bishophill, York
2 CGl of Cardiral Court

Cardinal Court

Bishophill, York

Located in the heart of York is our stunning new development
at Bishophill, a Retirement Living development of 34 two
bedroom apartments for the over 60s. The development is
located within the historic city walls and is a level walk from
the town centre, the Shambles, York Minster and everything
the city has to offer.

Known for its festivals and culiural events throughout the year,
York's attractions cover everything frem history and music, to
sport and food.
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John Tonkiss
Chief Executive Officer
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Paul joined the Board in January 2018 and
succeeded John White as Chairman following
the Company's Annual General Meeting on
24 January 2018,

Paul is gurrently chairman of Essentra plc and Forterra pic
and was formerly a director of Invensys plc. Paul is also
the chairman of Knight Square Ltd. Previously, he was
group managing director of Balfour Beatty pic before
becoming chief executive of VT Group pic in 2002.

Paut was also chairman ot John Laing infrastructure

Fund until Septermber 2017.

Paul brings a wealth of experience in leading companies.
Since his appointment, Paul has demonstrated strong
and decisiva leadership and he has been instrumental in
working with the Executive Board in setting the Group’s
new strategy.

Committees
Chairman of the Nomination Committee
and a mermber of the Remuneration Committee.

John Tonkiss became Chief Executive Officer
in September 2018, having previously been
the Group’s Chief Operating Officer. He joined
McCarthy & Stone in February 2014 and
joined the Board in October 2015.

Prior to joining McCarthy & Stone, John worked for ten
years at the Unite Group, the UK's fargest provider of
purpose-built student accommaodation, becoming chief
operating officer in 2008. While at Unite, John helped

to intraduce new models of investment and construction
for student housing that transformed the sector, including
pioneering a full Modem Methods of Construction
appraach, and he will be using this experience in the
retirernent communities sector.

John was also the chief executive of Human Recognition
Systems, the UK's leading biometric solutions provider,
between 2012 and 2014.

John is responsible for executing the new transtorrnation
strategy that was announced in September 2018, having
helped formulate it while he was Chief Operating Officer.
The new strategy will establish a strong financia! platform
for the husiness and leverage the strategic opportunities
in its services and product offering. The tong-term visicn

is to create even deeper and longer relationships with our
customers by transitioning the business away from being
seen 3s a housebuilder to become the UK's leading
developer, owner and manager of retirement communities.

Committees
Member of the Nomination and Disclosure Committees.



Graphicremoved

L

Rowan Baker
Chief Financial Officer

Graphic removed

L

Frank Nelson
Senicr independent Director

STRATEGIC REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Rowan joined McCarthy & Stone in January
2012 and was appointed Chief Financial
Officer on 6 January 2017 having previcusly
held the rale of Group Financial Controller.

Before joining McCarthy & Stone, Rowan held various
roles in industry and private practice, maost notably at
Barclays Bank pic and PricewaterhouseCoopers. Rowan
is a Chartered Accountant and a Chartered Tax Adviser
and has an M.A. from the University of Cambridge.

Rowan played a lead role in the Group's successful IPO

in November 2015. Rewan has been working extensively
with John on formulating the Group's new strategy. She has
a wealth of financial experience and technical expertise and
a deep and ccmprehensive understanding of the business.

Committees
Member of the Disclosure Committee.

Frank joined the Board in November 2013
and is the Senior Independent Director and
Chairman of the Risk and Audit Committee.

Frank is a gualified accountant with over 30 years’
experience in the housebuilding, infrastructure and energy
sectors. Frank was finance director of Galliford Try plc from
2000 until 2012 and was also responsible for its Private
Finance Initiatives and Public Private Parinership activities.
Frank was previously finance director of Try Group plc from
1987, leading the company through its flotation in 1988 and
subsequent merger with Galliford. Frank is currently the
senior independent director of HICL. Infrastructure Company
Limited, and Eurocell plc. Frank is also chairman of a private
construction company and also acts as an adviser to certain
private businesses.

Frank has significant housebuilding and financial knowledge
which makes him an effective member of the Board and a
strong chairman for the Risk and Audit Committee. Frank is
always prepared to challenge financial performance and tc
promote good risk management and financial practice.

Committees

Chairrnan of the Risk and Audit Committee,
and a member of the Remuneration and
Nomination Committees.

McCarthy & Stone pic Annuai Report an



Bl Board of Directors continues

=

Graphic removed

L

Mike Parsons
Independent Non-Executive Director
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Geeta Nanda, OBE
Independent Non-Executive Director
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Mike joined the Board in November 2013
as a Non-Executive Director and is Chairman
of the Remuneration Committee,

Mike founded Barchester Healthcare 23 years ago,
following a successful career in advertising. Barchester
is one of the largest independent healthcare providers
in the UK.

Mike is chairrman of Breezie and Qamph, vice chair of

Care England, the care sector trade association, and a
non-executive director of Connect Physiotherapy. Mike also
chairs Albion Care Communities, who are developing 1he
next generation of care homes, and is a director of Martha
Flora, the Dutch dementia specialist.

Mike's extensive knowledge of the healthcare sector and

his experience of sales and marketing through his previous
advertising career are valuable skills in respect of the
custorner facing management services side of our business.

Committees

Chairman of the Remuneraticn Committee,
and a member of the Risk and Audit and
Nomination Committees.

Geeta joined the Board in April 2015
as a Non-Executive Director.

Geeta has more than 28 years’ experience in the property
sector and over ten years as a chief executive officer. Having
joined Thames Valley Housing Association Limited (TVH') in
2008 she created the brand ieading market rent company
Fizzy Living in 2012 and in 2013 was awarded an OBE for
her contributions to social housing. In 2017 she joined
Metropolitan Housing Association as chief executive officer
which then merged with TVH in 2018 to create a 57,000
herne organisation delivering 1,500 new homes a year
across ali tenures.

Geeta has 23 years' experience in non-executive roles

and has served on the boards of two housing organisations
and national and local charities. Geeta has extensive
management expertise and experience of strategy
development. She has brought in institutional investment
and bonds through the capital markets to fund the
development of new products and tenures. She has

fed organisations through market fluctuations and through
turnaround perods.

Committees
Member of the Remuneration,
Risk and Audit and Nomination Committees.
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John was appointed to the Board as a
Non-Executive Director in September 2017.

John is currently the chief executive officer of Travis
Perkins plc, a position he has held since January 2014,
Having joined Travis Perkins in 1978, he was appointed
to the Board in 2001. John has been the driving force
behing the growth of the Travis Perkins Group, the No.?
supplier of building materials in the UK, and responsible
for the growth of its UK and European business brands
serving retail and B2B customers with international global
sourcing operations.

John has managed and integrated a number of key
strategic acquisitions over the past 20 years, inciuding
Keyline in 1999, Wickes in 2005 and the BSS Group

in 2010. John was previously a Trustee of the British
Research Establishment for three years from 2013 to 2016.

John's commercial and sector related experience brings
valuable insight to the Board, particularty in the areas of
health and safety and equality and diversity which he
champions across the Travis Perkins Group.

Committees
Member of the Remuneration Committee.

Arun was appointed to the Board in May
2018 as the Nominee Director under the
terms of a Relationship Agreement with
Anchorage Capital Group.

Prior to joining Anchorage in 2012, Arun was an executive
director and co-founding shareholder at Papierwerke Lenk
AG and directer and co-founding shareholder at Plastics
Capital plc. Arun began his career at McKinsey & Company.
Arun received a Ph.D. in Mechanical Engineering from
Imperial College at the University of London and a B.A.
from the University of Cambridge. Currently, he serves as a
board director of some of Anchorage's portiolio companies
including PHS Group, Ideal Standard, IVG Immobilien,

and Eir.

Arun has a deep understanding of the business and brings
additional strategic insight to the Board.

Committees
Memhber of the Nomination Committee.
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Dear Shareholder,

As Chairman my principal role is to lead the
Board and ensure that it continues to operate
effectively to help deliver shareholder value
and promote the success of the Group.

The Board recognises the importance of ensuring that high
standards of governance and business practice are upheld
throughout the Group and are continually reviewed to ensure
that they remain relevant to the Group's business values and
strategy. The Board has eslablished a corporate governance
framawork and will continue 1o focus on improving the framework
during FY19 to support the delivery of the Group’s new strategy.

Corporate governance requiremants continue to evolve, with the
announcement of a revised UK Corporate Governiance Code
(‘revised Code'} which will first apply to the Group in FY20.

The revised Code wili bring about significant changes in the
requirements for listed companies and the Board are already
considering the steps it wil be required to take to comply with
its provisions.

In this section of the Report we explain how the business
is structured and managed to promote high standards of
governance across the Group.
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Corporate Governance Framework

The Board of Directors
Chairman: Paul Lester, CBE

The Board is ultimately responsible for all activities of the Group. It has adopted a schedule of matters reserved for its
approval and has delegated some of its responsibilities to the Committees of the Board. In addition, certain Executive
Committees have been established to oversee some of the operational activities of the Group, including the Executive
Board which meets on a monthly basis to discharge its responsibilities.

Disclosure Committee
Chair: John Tonkiss

Responsible for timaly and accurate
disclosume of all information regquired to
be disclosed to meet tha Group's legal
and reguiatory obligations.

Remuneration Committee
Chair: Mike Parsons

Responsible for designing and
implementing the Group's overafl
remuneration strategy and policy and

for getermining the levels of remuneration
of the members of 1the Board and other
sanior management cf the Group.

Ses pages 102 to 125 for the
Remuneration Committea report.

Risk and Audit Committee
Chair: Frank Nelson

Respaonsible tor manitoring the integrity
of the Group's financial statements and
the effectiveness of the internal audil
functian, intarnal controls, risk
management, whistieblowing and

fraud systems in place within the Group.
It also reviews the effectiveness of the
external auditor and the Group's
procedures for the identification,
assessment and reporting of risks.

See pages 96 to 101 for the Risk and
Audit Commitiee raport.

3
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The Board

>

&
)

Transformation Committee
Chair: John Tonkiss

Responsible for the transformation of
the business from a housebuilder to

a daveloper, manager and owner of
retirement communiies, with a new,
immediate focus on ROCE rather than
growih and focus on.thres pillars of
flexibility, affordability and choice for our
customers. For further details about the
new Group strategy and fransformation
approach and timeline, please refer to
pages 10to 15.

3

Executive Board

Chair: John Tonkiss

The Executive Board supgorts the CEC
in implernenting Group Strategy and in
the management of the day-lo-day
activities of the Group.

Nomination Committee
Chair; Paul Lester, CBE

Assists the Board in raviewing the
structure, size and composition of the
Beard and has responsibility for making
recommendations to the Board in
respect of appointments o the Board
and to the Commitiees of the Board.
Itis also responsible for reviewing
succassion plans for the Board and
senior management of the Group.

See pages 92 to 95 for the Nomingtion
Committes raport.

Group Investment Committee
Chair: Gary Day

Responsible for raviewing and approving
all land acquisitions. Major invesiment
decisions and acquisitions net in the
ordimary course of business, or above a
ceartain value, are referred to the Board in
accordance with the schedule of matters
reserved tor detarmination tyy the Board.

O

>

Health and Safety Committee
Chair: Darren Humphreys

Develops tha health and safely strategy
and ansures that health and safety
policies and procedures are adeguately
implemented and adhared to throughout
the Group. Monitors the effectiveness of
tha Group's health and safety systems
and keeps abreast of changes in
legisiation surrounding health and safety.

Corporate and Social
Responsibility Committee
Chair: Gary Day

Responsible for making recommendations
regarding the Group's employees,
environmental and community
engagement responsibilities and its
sustainability activities. It also reviews
health and safety arrangements and
makes any recommendations necessary
1o the Health and Satety Commitiee.

McCarthy & Stonae pic Annual Report
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Compliance statement

Throughout FY18 and to the date of this report the Company has applied the principles and complied with the provisions set out
in the UK Corporate Governance Code as revised in April 2016 (the ‘Code’). The Code is issued by the FRC and is available for
review on the FRC website: www.frc.org.uk

The Board considers that this Annual Report, nctably this section and the Board commitiee sections, provides the information
shareholders need tc evaluate how we have complied with our current obligations under the Code.

The information required by paragraph 13(a), {g), (d), (@), () and (i} of schedule 7 to the Large and Medium-sized Companies and

Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 (S| 2008/410) is contained in the Directors’ Report and included in this statement

for ¢cross reference.

Leadership roles and division of responsibilities

Chairman

Leadership of the Board

Leading the Beard in setting the strategic direction and
cbijectives of the Group

Leading constructive challenge ¢f the Executive Directors

Ensuring the Board determines the nature and extent of
the Group risk appetite

Promoting high standards of corporate governance
Setting the Board agenda

Facilitates constructive relations between Executive and
Non-Executive Directors

Chief Financial Officer

Provides strategic and financial guidance to ensure the
Group's financial commitments are met

Responsible for the Group's financial, accounting and
cperational records and systems

Deviges the financial and tax strategies of the Group in line
with the agreed risk appetite

Responsible for producing and delivering the Group budget

Senior Independent Director

Leads the appraisal of the Chairman's performance

Supports and deputises for the Chairman and is available to
communicate with shareholders in the Chairman's absence

Group General Counsel and Company Secretary

Advises the Board on matters of corporate governance
Responsitle for ensuring that Board procedures are followed

Responsible for ensuring that applicabie rules and requlations
are complied with

The principal point of cantact for investars on matters ot
corporate governance

Chief Executive Officer

* QOverall responsibility for management of the gperational
activilies of the Group

= Davelopment and innovation of the Group's strategy

= implements the strategies and abjectives agreed by the
Board to deliver operational performance and success

* Ensures effective communication with sharehoigers,
employees and other stakeholders, in order to understang
their issues and concerns, and communicate issues to the
Board

Non-Executive Directors
= Review proposals put forward by the Executive Board

= Bring external perspective and independent challenge
to the Board

* Monitar Group performance and delivery of the Group
strategy

Executive Board
* Supports the CEQ in implementing Group strategy

* Suppoerts the CEQ in management of the operational
activities and performance of the Group

* Oversees employee communication and development
of tatent

In line with the Code there is a clear division af responsibilities Hetween the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer, which is set
out in writing and has been agreed by the Board.
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Patrick Hole Group General Counsel and Company Secretary

Patrick joined McCarthy & Stone in July 2014. Patrick is responsible

- for the legal and company secretarial functions of the Group. He is
a qualified solicitor with more than 20 years' post-qualification
experience. Patrick was a partner in private practice for many
years and also has a broad range of legal and company secretarial
in-house experience.

Committees
tember of the Disclosure Committee.
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The Board’s Role

The Board is responsible for operational control of the Group,
including all strategic, financial, organisational, legal and
regulatory matters. Some of the principal responsibilities set
out in the schedule of matters reserved for determinaticn by
the Board include:

s Approval of the Group's objectives, values and standards
= Approval of the business model and strategy

= QOversight of the Group's operations to ensure sound,
competent and prugdent management

* Approval of major changes to the Group's structure
s Approval of major land acquisitions

» Ensuring that a robust risk and control framework
is maintained

* Approval of sharehclder communications

Summary of Board activities and priorities in FY18

Bl Corporate Governance Statement coies

The types of decisions delegated to managerment relate to
the day-to-day running of the business and execution of the
Group strategy. During the year a comprehensive review of
the Group's delegated autherities was undertaken designed
to ensure clear lines of delegated authority 10 management
and that management act within the appropriate control
framework. These delegations of authority will be kept under
review to reflect any changes arising from the implementation
of the Group's new strategy.

The Board provides clear, entrepreneurial and responsible lzadership to the Group in order to promote its long-term success whilst
ensuring that the Group has an appropriate risk and control framework, adeguate resources and apprapriate values and standards
to deliver its strategy. Specifically, the agenda cycle makes provision for updates on the key areas of the Group's business, including
sales and marketing, management services, land and planning, health and safety, IT and HR. The majority of the Board'’s time in the
second half of the year has been focussed on the formulation of the new Group strategy anncunced to the market on

25 September 2018. Set out below is a summary of key activities covered during the course of the FY18 annual Board cycle:

Strategy
* Formulation of the Group’s new strategy

= Determining the Group's approach to the proposed
government reform of leasehold and ground rents

* Oversight and approvai of strategic Jand acquisitions

Appointments, succession planning and remuneration

+ Chairman, CEQ and Nen-Executive
Director appointments

s Exit terms for Clive Fenton
= Board succession planning

» Salary and incentives for the Board
and senior management

a8 McCarthy & Stene pic

Governance and risk management

* Review of health and safety compliance

« Approval of Modern Slavery Act statement

» Review of Board evaluation cutputs

= Review of principal risks

= Review of effectiveness of the external auditor and
approval of new external auditor for FY19

Financial performance
« Review and approval of the half year and year end results

« Review and approval of the annual budget
« Approvat of the Annual Report
= Review of going concern and viability status

« Approval of interim dividend and recommendation of
final dividend
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Meetings and attendance

Curing FY18 there were nine formal Board meetings. There were also a number of additional meetings as part of the development
of the Group's new strategy. All Directors who were aligible 1o attend attended those meetings. The Directors' attendance at
the Board meetings, as well as the meetings of the three main Board Committees are shown in the table below:

) Riskand Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Director Board Committee Committee Committee
Board meeting attendance’ 9 4 4 4
Paul Lester, CBE? ' %7 n/a 3/3 2/2
John White? 3/3 n/a 11 2/2
Clive Fenton® ' 9/ n/a n/a 4/4
John Tonkiss 9/9 n/a n/a n/a
Rowan Baker 89 n/a n/a nfa
Geeta Nanda, OBE 9/9 4/4 A74 4/4
Frank Nelson 99 4/4 a/4 4/4
Mike Parsons 9/9 4/4 4/4 4/4
John Carterd 7/8 n/a 3/3 n/a
Arun Nagwaney® 4/4 n/a n/a 1M1

Notes:

1 Mestngs attended/tolal number of meatings eligibke to attend. Only attendance of formal members of the meslings is included.
2 Paul Lester, CBE was appointed to the Board with effect from 3 January 2018.

3 Johrt White resigned from the Board with effect from 24 January 2018,

4 Ciive Fenton resigned fram the Board with effect from 37 August 20718,

5 Jahn Carter was appointed te the Board with effect from 1 October 2017,

& Amn Nagwaney was appointed to the Board with effect from 17 May 2018.

Board Committees

In accordance with the Code, the Board has established three formal Board Committees: Risk and Audit, Remuneration and
Nomination. The membership of each of the Committees complies with the reguirements of the Code and the terms of reference of
the Committees are included on our corporate website: www.mccarthyandstonegroup.co.uk/about-us/corporate-governance.
Details of the Committees and their activities during the year are set out in the separate Committee reports on pages 92 to 125,
which arg incorporated into the Corporate Governance Statement by reference.
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Other Boards and Committees

Executive Board

The role of the Executive Board is to support the CEQ

in impiementing the Group's strategy and to manage the
day-to-day operations of the business. As part of the gn-going
governance improvements within the Group, the membarship
of the Executive Board has been expanded to include the Chiet
Informatign Officer, the Managing Director for Managerment
Services, the Group Production Director and the Divisional
Managing Directars. These additional appointments are
intended 10 improve accountability and responsibility across
the business, ensuring it is well-placed to deliver the new
Group strategy. The Executive Board now consists of

the following members:

* Chigf Executive Officer

= Chief Financial Officer

+ Group Marketing and Customer Experience Director
« Land and Planning Director

* Group General Counsel and Company Secretary
s Human Resources Director

= Director ¢f Communications

« Chief Information Officer

* Divisional Managing Director, South

* Divisional Managing Director, North

= Managing Director for Management Services

« Group Production Director

Board Compuosition and appointments

Bl Corporate Governance Statement coninues

Group Investment Committee

Cecisions on investments and development activities are made
by the Group Investment Committee {('GIC") which meets
weekty and is chaired by the Land and Planning Director, with
majar investment decisions being referred to the Board for final
approvai, in ling with the matters reserved for determination

by the Board. Given the importance of this Committee to the
Group's business activities, the GIC memnbership was
enhanced during the year to include the Group Sales and
Marketing Director, Group Production Directar and Divisional
Maraging Directors.

Health and Safety Committee

Responsible for all aspects of health and safety across the
Group including relevant policies and procedures and
regulatory compliance. Members of the Committee include
representatives from Health and Safety, Production, Legal, HR,
Marketing and Management Services and is chaired by the
Group Production Director.

Disclosure Commitiee

The Board has established a Disclosure Committee with its
principat responsihility being the contrel and management of
inside information within the Group. The Disclosure Committee
meets as required and met once during the year to discuss
entering into a Relationship Agreement on 16 May 2018 with
Anchorage Capital Group, LLC (*Anchorage Capital Group™)
and certain funds managed and advised by Anchorage Capital
Group {coliectively the *Anchoraqe Funds", and together with
Anchorage Capital Group, "Anchorage”} and the appointment
of Arun Nagwaney under the terms of that Relationship
Agreement. The members of the Disclosure Committee are:

* Chief Executive Officer

* Chief Financial Officer

= Group General Counsel and Company Secretary
+ Director of Cornmunications

The Company considers there to be an appropriate combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors, with independent
Non-Executive Directors comprising at least half of the Board (excluding the Chairman). The Board currently comprises a
Non-Executive Ghairman (who was independent on appointment), two Executive Directors, four independent Non-Executive
Directors and one other Non-Executive Director wha is not independent. The Board has delegated responsibility to the Nomination
Committee, to lead the process of selecting new Directars before making recammendations to the Board. The Nomination
Committee report can be found on pages 92 to 95. The Direclors' service contracts and letters of appointment set out the time
commitment expected to fulfil their role. The Board is satisfied that each of the Directors has committed suffigient time and input
during the year to enable themn to fulfil their duties as evidenced by the high attendance at Board and Committee meetings

throughout the year.

Board Diversity

@ Male
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Board Composition
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Conflicts of interest and independence

No individuaf or group of individuals dominates the Board's
decision-making process. The Board has established a process
to review and, if appropriate, authorise any conflict of interest.
Directors are excluded from voting on any matters in which
they have an interest. During the year the Board authorised the
situational conflict of Arun Nagwaney as the Nominee Director
under the Relationship Agreement. Under the provisions of

the UK Corporate Governance Code, Arun Nagwaney is not
considered 1o be an Independent Non-Executive Director.

Any transactional conflicts are reviewed as they arise and
there is a standing item at all meetings to review any potential
conflict of interest,

At its meeting in November 2017, the Nomination Committee
considered the independence and patential conflicts of interest
regarding John Carter in his role as chief executive officer of
Travis Perkins plc and Paul Lester in his role as chairman of

- Forterra plc. On recommendation from the Nomination
Committee, the Board concluded that both John Carter and
Paul Lester are independent notwithstanding their directorships
of Travis Perking and Forterra, both suppliers to the Group, as
the level of business between the Group and those companies
was not deemed to be material. Relevant safeguards have been
put in place to ensure that neither of them will influence any
consideration of such business. Paul Lester has confirmed that
he will be refiring from the Board of Forterra following its AGM
in May 2018.

For the purposes of the Code, the Board considers Frank
Nelson, Mike Parsons, Geeta Nanda and John Carter
all to be Independent Non-Executive Directors.

Induction, development and support

On joining the Board, each Director is provided with a
personalised induction to the business, in order to provide

a broader understanding of the business, including meetings
with senior management and visits to some of the Group's
developments. Ta assist the Directors in their cngoing
understanding of the Group, Board meetings are held at
different regional offices throughout the year to provide an
opportunity for the Directors to meet local management. They
are also provided with access to a detailed information pack
covering Group policies, directors’ duties and responsibiiities
as well as other key governance doccuments, which they can
access through an online Board reporting portal. John Carter,
Paul Lester and Arun Nagwaney, who were all appointed during
the year, have received an induction to the business in line with
the above.

All Directors are encouraged to undertake additional traning
where it is considered appropriate for them to do so. Papers
are circulated in a timely manner to enable the Directors o
undertake full and detailed consideration of agenda items in
advance of meetings. Each of the Directcrs has access to
the services of the Group General Counsel and Company
Secretary and independent external legal and professional
advice can also be taken when it is necessary to do so.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Board evaluation

An evaluation of the performance of the Board, its members
and Committees was externally facilitated in FY18. The
Nomination Committee led the process and the findings are
inciuded in the Nomination Committee report on pages 92
to 85.

Risk management and internal controls

The Board is responsible for the Group’s system of internal
controls, which are designed to manage the business risks
faced by the Group, and for reviewing the effectiveness of those
controts. The Risk and Audit Committee, together with the
internal audit function, has identified the principal risks facing
the Group and has established a framework and systems for
evaluating and managing those nsks. The framework and
systems have been in place for the whale of the year under
review and up to the date of this report. Details of risk
management and the principal risks facing the Group are set
out on pages 72 to 77. Further information can alsc be found
in the Risk and Audit Committee report on pages 95 to 101.

Relations with shareholders

The Chairman and the Board are committed to open and
transparant dialogue with shareholders. Shareholder contact
facilitated by the Executive Directors is communicated back

to the other Directors primarily through CFO reports to the
Board and copies of analysts' research reperts. The Chairman,
CEQ and CFQ play an active role in relations with shareholders
and have held discussions with a number of the Group's
shareholders during the year. In addition, a number of
meetings and presentations were held with the Group's largest
shareholders as part of discussions surrounding the Group's
new strategy.

The AGM provides an opportunity for the Chairman to explain
the Group's progress and, along with other members of the
Board, to answer any questions raised by shareholders. All of
the Directors, who were members of the Board at that time,
attended the AGM on 24 January 2018.

On behalf of the Board

Paul Lester, CBE
Non-Executive Chairman
12 November 2018

el Lo
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B Nomination Committee Report
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Paul Lester, CBE Nomination Committee Chairman

“] am pleased to present the report of
the Nomination Committee for the year
describing the principal activities of the
Committee during the period.”

Maintaining the right balance of skills and knowledge is key

to achieving the Group's strategic objectives. During the year
the main focus of the Committee was securing the appeintment
of a new Chairman and a new Chief Executive Officer for the
Group following the departures gf John White and Clive Fentan.

The Committee also facilitated an axternal evaluation of the
pertormance of the Board and its Committees and each of

the Directors as required by the provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code.

-] McCarthy & Stane ple
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Membership and attendance

FY¥18 has been a busy period for the Committee with four
formal meetings held. The members of the Committee and
their attendance during FY18 are shown below.

Director Nomination Committee Attendance
Paul Lester, CBE' 2/2
John White? 2/2
Clive Fenton? A/4
Frank Nelscn 4/4
Geeta Nanda, OBE 4/4
Mike Parsons 4/4
Arun Nagwaney! 11

The Senior Independent Director, Frank Nelson, is a member
of the Committee as are Geeta Nandia and Mike Parsons,
both independent Non-Executive Directors. Arun Nagwaney,
the Nominee Director under the terms of the Relationship
Agreement with Anchorage, is also a member of the
Committes. After John White stepped down from the Board
and Committee, Pau! Lester was appoinied as Chairman of
the Committee. Career profiles of the current Committee
members can be found in the Board of Directors section

on pages 80 to 83.

Summary of key activities during FY18

*+ Securing the appointment of Paul Lester as the
new Chairman of the Group following the departure
of John White

s Facilitating the extemal evaluation of the performance
of the Board and the Board Committees and the Directors

e Securing the appointment of John Tonkiss as the new
Chief Executive Officer of the Group following the departure
of Clive Fenton

* Recruitment of Jonn Carter as an additional
Non-Executive Director

1 Paui Lester, CBE was appointed to the Nomination Committea
with effect from 26 February 2018

2 John White resigned from the Board and Nomination Committee
with affect from 24 January 2018

3 Ciive Fenton resigned from the Board and Nomination Committee
with effect rom 31 August 2018

4 Arun Nagwaney was appomted {0 the Nomnation Cormmittee
with effect from 17 May 2018

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Responsibilities

The key responsibilities of the Commiittee are set outin

its written terms of reference which are available under the
Corporate Governance section on the Company's corporate
website: www.mccarthyandstonegroup.co.uk/about-us/
corporate-governance and include:

* Reviewing the structure, size and compaosition of the
Board ang its Committees

s Ensuring that the skills and experience of the Board
remain appropriate and balanced ‘

* Recommending appointments and re-elections to the
Board and Commitiees

= Succession planning for the Directors and the Group's
senior leadership team

* Responsibility for the annual Board evaluation process

Succession planning

Succession planning for 2 new Chairman, CEQO and
Non-Executive Director was the principal focus of the
Cornmittee's four formal meetings. Disclosures on the
recruitment process for John Carter's appointment can
be found in the FY17 Annual Report. The Committee has
also overseen some of the on-going work in refation to
developing the pipeline of talent and ensuring that effective
succession plans are in place for those in leadership roles
below Executive Director level, including the development
of the 'Future Leaders Programme’ for potential future
senior leaders of the business.

Chairman succession

The Company announced in November 2017 that, having
served as Non-Executive Chairman since 2013, John White
would step down from the Board following the conclusion

of the Company's AGM cn 24 January 2018. Korn Ferry, an
independent external search firm, were retained to conduct

the search process to find a successor. To assist with the
process, a detailed role profile for the position of Chairman was
produced, taking into account the knowledge, experience, skills
and time commitment required for the role. Both internai and
external candidates were considered as part of the process.

Shortlisted candidates were interviewed by John White ang
Mike Parsons and the Committee held two formal meetings

in September and November 2017 to discuss the recruitment
process. At the November meeting the Committee considered
the suitability of each of the candidates in detail, taking into
account their experience and bandwidth for the role and the
balance of skills, experience and knowledge that they would
bring to the role.

McCarthy & Stona plc Annual Report <]
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Chairman succession continued

The Commitiee concluded that Paul Lester was the

maost compeiiing candidate for the rofe. The Committee
carefully considered Paul's other commitments ang

external appointments when making their recommendation.
Paul has confirmed that he will be stepping down from the
board of Forterra plc at the conclusion of its next AGM in
May 2019. The Board formally approved Paul’s appointment
at its meeting held on 8 November 2017 and he assumed
the role of Chairman following the conclusion of the
Company's AGM on 24 January 2018.

Chief Executive Officer succession

In June 2018, Clive Fenton indicated his wish to retire from
the Board and his role as CEO with effect from the end of
FY18. While a search was carried out for a successor,

John Tonkiss was appointed interim CEQ. The Chairman
also undertook a more active role with the Executive Board
to develop the new strategy for the Group during the interim
period.

The Commitiee engaged Korn Ferry to conduct the Search
process with a remit to identify boih internal and externaf
candidates for the role.

After an extensive search process, Korn Ferry presented

a longlist of candidates for consideration by the Committee.

A shortlist of candidates was identified by the Committee and
Korn Ferry were asked to approach them and assess their
suitability and interest for the role. Relevant candidates,

which inctuded John Tonkiss, were then interviewed by the
Chairman and Arun Nagwaney, who then provided feedback
to the Committee. After careful consideration, the Cormmittee
recommended that John Tonkiss be appointed to the role.

In making their recommendation, the Committee considered
John Tonkiss® performance as interim CEQ to be an important
factor. The Board met on 24 September 2018 to review the
recommendation of the Committee and unanimously approved
the appointment and internai and externa! announcements
were subsequently made on 25 September 2018.

Diversity

it is in the best interests of the Group and sharehoiders tc
establish a cohesive and representative Board with differing
. backgrounds, viewpoints and approaches, The Board
recognises the importance of diversity and the benefits

this can bring.

Accordingly, the Committee considers carefully in relation to
all appeintments to the Board and Committees, the beneiits
of greater diversity, whilst also ensuring that it fulfils its
obligations to shareholders and the Company to recruit the

94 McCarthy & Stone pic

best candidate far the role, on merit. To this end, appointments
are not prescriptive to any criteria which da not relate directly to
the ability to perform the role.

Taking account of the changes in Board membership during the
year, the female representation on the Board at the date of this
report is 25% with one independent Non-Executive Director and
one Exacutive Director being female. Diversity is also monitored
across the Group including in relation to gender and age, details
of which can be found on page 31.

The female representation on the Board
at the date of this report is 25% with one
independent Non-Executive Director and
one Executive Director being femaie.

Board evaluation process and resuits

An annual evaluation of performance and effectiveness of

the Board and the Board Committees and the Directors is
undertaken each year. In line with the requirerment of the UK
Corparate Governance Code for an external evaluation to take
place every three years, the performance evaluation for FY18
was Tacilitated by an external independent facilitator, MWM
Consulting, with input from the Chairman and the Group
General Counsel and Company Secretary. The réview process
involved completion of a questicnnaire which focused on

the effectiveness of the Board and the Board Committees

in terms of structure, organisation, reporting, strategy and
communications as well as individua! discussions between
each Board member and representatives from MWM
Consuiting. A report on the findings from the evaluation of the
Board and its Committees was prepared by MWM Consulting
and shared with each of the members of the Board for review
and discussion respectivaly.

The Chairman will also meet with each of the members of
the Board to discuss the results.

The Senior independent Director was responsible for
appraising the Chairman's perfermance.

The findings from the evaluation demonstrate that overall,

the Board is an afigned and well-managed team with good
dynamics, that provides effective governance of the business.
The overall calitre of the Board is seen as adequate with

the core capabiiities of financial and business expertise,
understanding investors' needs and business leadership.
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The evaluation highlighted the need for continued review and
challenge of the Group's financial performance and
implernertation of the Group’s new strategy.

The findings from the survey demonstrate
that overall, the Board is an aligned,
well-managed team with good dynamics,
that provides effective governance of

the business. '

The guality and timely reporting of information to the Board
was also identified as an area for improvement and the Group
has engaged an external consultant to assist in improving the
governance around meeting support, including the quality of
reports to the Board, which will be rmonitored and progressed
during FY19.

FY17 Evaluation

One of the areas highlighted from last year's evaluation
results was improvement in communication between regional
_ management and the Board. As a result, it was agreed that

there should be more Board mesetings helg in the Group's
offices and the Board undertook to hold four such meetings,
three in regionat offices and one at the Group's head office in
Bournemcuth. Three meetings were held outside of London
during the year. Due ta the work of the Board during the year,
the remainder of meetings were held in London,

Retirement and re-election of Directors

The Committee considers the performance of each of

the Directors standing for re-election at this year's AGM to

be fully satisfactory and is of the opinion that they continue

to provide invaluable experience, challenge and contribution

to the leadership of the Group. Therefore, the Chairman strongly
supports their re-election ang recommends that shareholders
vote in favour of their re-election at the AGM.

Paul Lester, CBE
Nomination Committee Chairman
12 Novernber 2018

Std Lo
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Graphic removed

L ]

Frank Nelson Risk and Audit Committee Chairman

“l am pleased to present the FY18 Risk and
Audit Committee report. This report describes
the Committee’s ongoing responsibilities and
key activities during the year.”

During the year the Risk and Audit Committee has continued to
focus significant time and attention on the Group's systemns of risk
management and internal control, the integrity of financial reporting
and the process for the re-tender of the Group's external audit.

In this report | describe how the Committee has carried out its
responsibilities during the year to ensure we continue to comply
with related parts of the UK Conporate Govermance Code

{the ‘Code’), the Listing Rules and cther applicabie legislation.
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Membership and attendance

The members of the Commitiee and their attendance during
FY18 are shown below:

Director Risk and Audit Committee Attendance
Frank Nelson 4/4
(Geeta Nanda, OBE 4/4
Mike Parsons 4/4

There has not been any change to the members of the
Committee during the financial year and up to the date of
this report. All members of the Committee are Independent
Non-Executive Directors and the Board is satisfied that the
collective skills and experience of the Committee continue
to provide sufficient financial, commercial and sector-related
expertise tc meet the neacs of the Group and requirements
of the Code.

Profiles of the Committee members can be found in the
Beard of Directors section on pages 80 to 83.

In accordance with the Committee's terms of reference,
meetings can also be attended by other Directors ang
members of the internal audit and external audit teams,

when deemed appropriate. The Chairman, CEQO and CFO
attended all four meetings during the year. The Director of Risk
and Internal Audit, the Group Financial Controller and the
external audit partner attended three meetings during the year.
The members of the Committee met with the external auditor
without Executive Directors or management present at its
Novemnber 2017 and April 2018 meetings.

Key responsibilities

The key responsibilities of the Committee are set out in the
Committee's written terms of reference which can be found
under the Corporate Governance section of the corporate
website: www.mecarthyandstonegroup.co.uk/about-us/
corporate-governance. These inclucs:

* Moritorng the integrity of the financial statements and
any other formal announcements refating to the Group's
financial position and performance

* Assessing whether management has made appropriate
estimates and judgements and providing advice to the
Board on whether the Annual Report is fair, balanced
and understandable

* Keeping under review, and monitoring the effectiveness of,
the Group's internal management and risk controls systems

* Ensuring compliance with the policy on the supply of
non-audit services by the external auditor
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» Monitoring and reviewing the effectiveness of the risk
and internal audit function

= Monitoring and reviewing the effectiveriess of the services
of the external auditor, including negotiation of the audit fee

* Reviewing the adequacy and security of the Group's
procedures on whistienlowing, anti-bribery and corruption
and anti-money laundering

The Committee reviewed its terms of reference at each of
its meetings during the year and concluded that no changes
were required.

Summary of key activities during FY18

There were four Commiitee meetings during the financial
year, organised to coincide with the annual audit cycle and
the external audit tender timetable.

Summary of kay activities during FY18 included:

* Review of the independence and cbjectivity of the
external auditcrs

= Review of the integrity of the financial statements and
associated disclosures at half year and full year

* Assassment of whether the Annua! Report, taken as a whole,
is fair, balanced and understandable. The rasulting Directors’
Responsibilities Statement can be found on pages 132
and 133

» Conducted a formal competitive tendering process for the
Group’s statutory audit and agreed the external audit fee

*» Review of the results of the internal and external audits
and continued to monitor the timely implementation of any
recommended actions

* Responding to a letter from the conduct committee of the
Financial Reporting Council relating tc certain disclosures
made in the Group's FY17 Annual Report

+ Assessment of the Group's goodwill for impairment,
going concern status and medium to longer-term viability
following the launch of the Group's new strategy.

The Viability statement ¢an be found on page 73

* Review of reports on the internal audit programme and
findings of internal audits carried out during the year

= Monitoring the General Data Protection Regulation
{‘GDPR"} implementation plan to ensure compliance
with GOPR in time for May 2018

* Review of and approval of the annual intemal audit plan

* Lindertaking the annual review of the effectiveness of
the Group’s systems of internal controls

McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Report a7



BB Risk and Audit Committee Report continues

Evaluation of the Committee

An external evaluation led by MwWM Consulting was used during
the year to assess the Committee's performancs, taking into
account its collective skills anc experience, the work of the
Committee during the year and the effectiveness of its actions
in maintaining the Group's risk management process. The
Board has reviewed the evaluation findings and concluded

that the Committes has operated effectively.

During FYi9 the Committee will remain focused on the areas of
activity outlined as its key responsibilities with particufar focus
on monitoring the Group's principal risks, inctuding, amongst
cthers, those relating to the delivery of the Group's new sirategy,
and the effectiveness of the external audit with the new auditors.

Carrying value
of goodwill

Whistieblowing, fraud and anti-bribery
and corruption

Ouring the vear, the Committee received regular updates

from the Group General Counsel and Cempany Secretary on
compliance with the Group's policies ralating to whistiettowing,
anti-bribery and corruption, fraud and anti-money laundering.
In agdition, the Committee reviewed and approved the Group's
revised Conflicts of Interest Policy.

Significant financial reporting issues

The Committee is responsible for reviewing whether

suitable accounting policies have been adopted and whether
management has made appropriate estimates and judgements
in the preparation of the financial statements. The table below
sets ot the significant financial reporting issues, judgements
and areas of estimation uncertainty that the Committee has
reviewed during the year and how these were addressed. The
associated accounting policies are set out on pages 152 to 167.

The Committee considered the basis for goodwilf impairment review which was performed by
management at 31 August 2018, The review compared the vaiue in use of the business with the

carrying value of the tangible and intangible assets and goodwill included a nurber of judgements
around the estimation of future cash flows and the determination of 2 suitable discount rate to calculate
the present value of these cash flows. The value in use was determined by discounting the future cash
flows based on the new Group strategy faunched in September 2018. These cash flows have been
overiaid with several reasonably possible downside scenarios reflecting sensitivities on pricing, volumes,
discount rate, defivery of the new Group strategy and the outcome of ground rents lagislation. The
discount rate used was based on the capital structure of the business, current market assessments of
the time value ot money and risks attributable to the Group's sector. The Committee agreed with the
estimates made by management and concluded that the carrying value of goodwill remains appropriate.

Shared equity
receivables

The Committee reviewed the accounting treatment of future receivables under the shared equity
schernes that have been used over the years by the Group. The assumptions used in estimating the

value of the future receivables are reviewed half yearly and relate to the date of the anticipated future
receipt, nouse price inflation, the discount rate and the new build premium,

Cost capitalisation
of overheads

The Committee received a proposal from management analysing the split of overhead costs relating
to design, planning, commercial, construction, procurement and health and safety between thase

that could be attributed to the cost of the developrnents to inventory and those that relate to general
business overheads 10 expenses. The assumptions are reviewed annually with the function heads .
before being proposed to the Committes,

FRC review of FY17 Annual Report
and Accounts

In June 2018 the Conduct Committee of the Financial Reporting
Council wrate to the Group's Chairman raquesting additionat
infermation in relation to our FY?17 Annual Report.

Prior year comparatives have been restated whereby the
repayment of £11.3m of promissory notes, which are classified
as borrowings in the balance sheet, has been reclassified.
Previously the repayment was classified as an operating cash
flow. The restatement arose fallowing an enquiry by the Financial
Reporting Council as a result of which the Group concluded
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that, in order to comply with |1AS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows', .
these moverment shoutd bie classified as financing activities.

The Group is pleased to report that the Conduct Committee of
the Financial Beporting Council were satisfied with the provided
responses and confirmed that their review has been closed
satisfactorily.

The Group note the inherent limitations of the FRC review. The
review conducted by the FRC was based solely on the Group's
published Annual Report and does not provide any assurance
that the Annual Report is comect in all material respects.
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Risk management and internal controls

The Board of Directors recognises its overall responsibility
tor the Group's system of internal controls and for monitoring
its effectiveness. There is an ongoing process for identifying,
evaluating and managing principal risks. The controls and
procedures contained within the process are designed to
manage, to the extent possible, the risk of failure of the
Group to meet its business objectives and, as such, provide
reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstaternent or loss. Details of how the Group manages

its principal risks are set out on pages 72 and 77.

The Board, on the recommendation of the Committes,

have remained satisfied that the systern of internal controls
continued to be effective in identifying, assessing and ranking
the various risks facing the Group, and in menitoring and
reporting progress in mitigating the potential impact on the
business. Systemns have been in place for the year under
review and up to the date of approval of the Annual Report.
The Beard has approved the statement of the Principal

Risks and Uncertainties set out on pages 74 to 77 of this
Annual Report.

Internal audit

The risk and internal audit function within the Group is
rasponsible for;

* The design and implementation of a robust system of internal
controls across the Group to identify, menitor and manage
principak risks and to establish a risk appetite for each
principal risk beyond which corrective action is required

* The development of an assurance programme to ascertain
whether the controls around our principal risks are designed
and operating effectively

The principal risks 1o the business are formally agreed with
the Executive Board twice a year and are approved by the
Committee. The principat risks form the basis of the annuai
internal audit plan.

The Director of Risk and Internal Audit attended three
Committee meetings during the year and reported on any
changes to the risks faced by the business and any areas

for improvernent. He also regularly met separately with the
Risk and Audit Committee Chairman. Other members of the
Committee and the Board also met with the Director of Risk
and Internal Audit periodically during the year. At each meeting
the Director of Risk and Internal Audit also provided an update
covering the internal audit activity and the status of, and time
to close, management actions, to support the Committee to
form a view on internal audit effectiveness.

The Committee, supported by the Director of Risk and
Internal Augit, has continued to make progress during the
year In assisting the Board in improving risk management.
Key activities undertaken were as follows:

« Agreeing the weighting on the new principal risk relating
to the expected govenment decision on banning ground
" rents and delfivering the Group's new strategy

* Updating the weighting on principal risks relating to land
acquisition and planning
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¢ Updating the Group's Confiicts of Interest Policy and
subsequent roli-out of an e-learning rmodule on the revised
policy across the business

+ Developing an e-learning module on the General Data
Protection Regulation

Based on the activities outlined above the Committee is
satisfied that the quality, resources, experience and expertise
aof the internal audit function are appropriate for the Group.

External auditor

The Committee is responsible for the appointment ¢of the
external auditor, its fee and the scope of the annual audit.

In the FY17 Annual Report the Committee announced that

a competitive tender process for the Group's statutory auditor
would be initiated prior to the end of 2018. In February 2018

the Committee invited four firms, including the Group's
incumbent statutory auditor, Deloitte LLP, to compete for the
provision of external audit services. The tender process was
planned in a way that ensured all firms had fair and equal access
to information to allow them to fully understand the requirements
of the audit tender. Once each firm had confirmed their
indepsndence and their acceptance to participate in the tender
process they were invited to attend meetings with the Risk and
Audit Committee Chairman, CEQ, CFQ, and cther relevant
rmembers of the senior management team. Following these
initial meetings, the firms then met with Committee members.
Subsequently, the Committee made the recommendation to the
Board that Ernst & Young LLP, led by the firm's audit partner,
Peter Mclver, should be appainted as the Group’s statutory
auditor for the period ending 31 October 2019.

The Committee made the
recommendation to the Board

that Ernst & Young LLP, led by

the firms audit partner, Peter Mclver,
should be appointed as the Group’s
statutory auditor.

In making their recommendation to the Board the Commitiee
considered Ernst & Young LLP to offer the most professional
and competitively priced services, as well as the most detalled
and pragmatic approach to transition from the incumbent
auditor. The Committee's recommendation to the Boarg was
made objectively free from the influence of any third party and
no contractual term of the kind referred to in Article 16(B} of
Reguilation (537/2014) has been imposed. At its meeting in June
2018 the Board approved the appointment of Ernst & Young
LLP as the Group’s statutory auditor with effect from FY19.
Following the tender of the external audit, as detailed above,
Ernst & Young LLP will be put forward for appointrnent at the
AGM on 23 January 2019,
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Auditor independence and performance

The performance and effectiveness of the auditor and the
work it performs are reviewed annually following completion
of the external audit. Delfoitte LLP is required to disclose any
significart facts and matters that may reasonably impact on
their independence or on the objectivity of the jead partner
and the audit team.

The Committee assessed the pertormance cf the external
auditer and the effectiveness of the external audit for FY18.

In coming to its conclusion, the Committee reviewed amongst
other matters:

+ Feedback on the effectiveness and performance of the
external audit from the Group, regional management and
the Director of Rigk and internal Audit who were closely
involved in both the half year and full year reporting process

= Deloitte LLP's fulfilment of the agreed audit plan for FY18

* Reports highlighting the material issues and accounting
judgements that arose during the conduct of the audit

* Deloitte LLP's objectivity and independence during the
process

The Committee concluded that the audit process as a whole
had been conducted robustly and that the team selected to
undertake the audit had done so thoroughty, professionally
and independently, Deloitte LLP's performance as auditor

to the Group during FY18 was therefore considersd to

be satisfactory.

.|
The Committee concluded that the
audit process as a whole had been
conducted robustly and that the team
selected to undertake the audit had
done so thoroughly, professionally
and independently.

- - ]

The Group has complied throughout the reporting

year with the provisions of The Statutory Audit Services for
Large Companies Market Investigation (Mandatory Use of
Competitive Tender Processes and Aucit Committee
Responsibilities) Orger 2014,
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Policy on non-audit services

The Committee is aware of the need to ensure that the external
auditors remain independent of the Group and the Committee
carries out an annual review on the independence of the
external auditor. The external auditor is appointed to provide
audit and audit-related services, including the annual audit of
the Group, the Company and the non-dormant subsidiary
financial staternents as well as the half year review. It is the
Group's practice, whenever possible, to put non-audit work
out to tender. The Board only appoint the externat auditor to
provide non-audit services if they are satisfied that the avditor's
objectivity and independence have not been compromised.

A policy on non-audit services has been approved by the
Committee and incorporates the requirements of the EU Audit
Directive (2014/56/EU) and Audit Regulation (53772014} which
came into force in the UK on 17 June 2016.

The external auditor may te selected to provide any other
services that do not fall within audit and audit-related services
or that are nct prohibited, subject to a competitive selection
process. (n addition, the Committee considers and approves
all the fees that the Group pays for non-audit servicas from
the external auditor.

Audit fees were payable 10 Deloitte in FY18 in respect of the
year end audit and statutory audit of subsidiaries. Audit-related
assurance fees were payable to Deloitte in FY18 in respect of
the interim review. There were no other non-audit fees payable
to Deloitte during the year.

A summary of all fees is detailed in note 5 to the financial
statements.

Frank Nelson
Risk and Audit Committee Chairman
12 Novemnber 2018
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Mike Parsons Remuneration Committee Chairman

Dear Shareholder,
Year of change for McCarthy & Stone

Adapting the business in the challenging market environment

Since the Company's IPO in November 2015, the business has
faced a number of market headwinds including political uncertainty
following the outcome of the vote to leave the European Union and
a lack of Government support for the retirement housebuilding
sector. These headwinds have resulted in a chaflenging economic
backdrop, lowering consumer confidence and consequently
reducing volumes in the secandary housing market with UK
housing transactions showing a decline of ¢ 40% since 2015,

Contents

Annual staterment pages 102 to 105
At a glance pages 106 to 114
Annual Report on Remuneration pages 11510 125
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The Board announced earlier this year that it woutd

be undertaking a strategic review and announced ¢n

25 Septernber 2018 the results of that review which will
position the business to succeed in this more challenging
market environment.

Key highlights of the transformation

» Shift in business mindset from growth to increasing
ROCE and margins

= Realigning the workflow and rightsizing the operational
cost base to deliver steady state volumes of .2 100

* Change cf year end to 31 October to decouple fram
peak holiday season

* Focus on two core products, Retirement Living and
Retirement Living PLUS

* |mproved offering through increasing affordability,
flexibility and choice for our customers

Optimising the Company's operations for strong

financial performance across four fundamental pillars:

* Workflow realignment - generating a stable monthly flow
of fand exchanges, build starts, sales releases and first
occupations - fundamental to operaticnal efficiency

* Rightsizing the business - rightsizing the operational cost
base to reflect steady state volumes

* Efficient sales and marketing mode! - a reorganisation of
the sales teams and a centralised approach to the Group's
marketing function

* Build cost reduction - utilising standard, more efficient
designs and optimising subcontract procurement practices

We believe the Group is operating in a market with significant
demographic opportunities and our strong operational
capability coupled with achieving efficiency in the areas
outlined above will lead to generating value for our
shareholders.

Board changes

Curing FY18, the Board has undergone several changes.
The Group Chairman, John White, stepped down from the
Board following our AGM on 24 January 2018 and was
replaced by Paul Lester. The Board would like to thank John
for his contributions in overseeing a transformational period
for the Company culminating in its successful IPO in 2015.
We welcoms and look forward to working with Paui who
brings with him a wealth of experience in order to support
the Executive Board in delivering the Group’s new strategy
over the coming years.

Paul's fee for chairmanship of the Cempany is £230,000,
in line with that of his predecessor.

The Group CEQ, Clive Fenton, retired from the Company on
31 August 2018, stepping down from the Board at the same
time. | have worked with Clive since he joined McCarthy &
Stone as Group CEQ in 2014, Clive successfully steered the
~ Company threugh its IPO in 2015 and 1 would like to take this
opportunity to thank Clive for his tremendous contribution.
Details of Clive's remuneration arrangements on departure
are on pages 120 and 121,
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ft was announced on 25 September 2018 that John Tonkiss
was appointed to the role of Group CEQ as successor o Clive.
John joined McCarthy & Stone in February 2014 as Director

of Business Transformation and joined the Board in November
2015. The Board endorses John's appointment as Group CEC
and will support him and his team in delivering the new

Group strategy.

Major remuneration events during FY18

Determination of the FY18 annual bonus outcome

The FY18 annuat bonus was based on profit befora tax

(70%), cash flow (10%), land exchanges (10%) and customer
satisfaction {10%). The Company missed the profit before tax
target, therefore this element of the annual bonus will not result
in a pay out.

The maximum customer satisfaction element target was met
which is a testament to the continued focus on customers
throughout the business and to the strength of our brand.
We exceeded the bonus target relating to the cash flow
glsment, narrowly missing out on the maximum and the
Group missed the lanc exchanges target.

Based on this performance in the year, the formulaic outcome
of the annual bonuses would have delivered bonuses of 29.7%
of salary split two-thirds in cash and one-third in shares for
John Tonkiss and Rowan Baker (£98.0k and £84.8k
respectively). The Committee has, after careful consideration,
agreed with John and Rowan that their bonuses will be paid
entirely in shares deferred for three years. The rationale for
this is:

* Ag the Company issued a profit warning in June 2018 and
the threshold target for the profit before tax element was
rmissed, the Committee falt it was not appropriate to pay
cash bonuses

s Awarding the bonus in deferred shares provices further
motivation to the Executive Directors 10 ensure that delivery
of the Group's new strategy in the coming years flows
through to the Company's share price performance

FY16 LTIP vesting

The performance period for the FY16 LTIP, which was granted
in November 2015, ends in November 2018. EPS and ROCE
were measured at the financial year end ang the threshold
target for both of these measures was missad. The TSR
performance period concludes in Novernber 2018 and it is
anticipated that due to the recent fall in share price, the
Company's TSR will be below that of the housebuilder index
and therefore we expect nil vesting of the LTIP overall,

In light of the challenges faced by the Company since the grant
of the LTIP and the subsequent impact on our share price,

the Committee believes it is fair that the LTIP awards do not
pay out.

NED and Chairman fees

Having considered the matter carefully, it has been determined
that fees for the NEDs and Chairman will remain unchanged
for FY19.
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Remuneration approach for FY19

Base salaries for FY19

John's salary has been increased frerm £330,000 to £475,000
to reflect his significant promotion from Chief Operating Officer
and the associated increase in scope and accountability.

The Committee believes this level of salary reflects the breadth
and complexity of his new role as well as John's significant
experience, This has also been set below the level of his
predecessor's satary of £500,000.

As statad in the 2017 Direclors’ Remuneration Report, when
Rowan Baker was appointed 1o the Board her satary was set
significantly below the market. This was with the intention, that
the Committee would keep her package under review and,
subject to performancs, would award increases in the next few
years above that of the all employee population. Rowan has
grown to become a fully established and critical member of the
management team with an extended remit that now also covers
IT, Legal Services and Communication departments. It is on this
basis that the Committee has decided te increase her salary
from £285,000 to £325,000.

The Caommittee is mindful of the sensitivity to karge increases in
base pay levels and considered its proposed approach carefully
in the current remuneration environment. The average salary
increases across the Group are expected to be 3%, however
the Committee believes the FY19 levels are appropriate for the
reasons described above. Both Executive Directors have been
instrumental in the formulation of the revised Group strategy
and are crucial to its delivery and the Committes therefore
believes the salary levels are appropriate and in the best
interests of the Group.

F¥19 annyal bonus objectives

In arder to ensure alignment to the Group's new strategy,
the annual bonus measures and weightings have changed
for FY19 and will now be:

s ROCE (25%)

* Operating profit margin (25%}
* Site margin (25%)}

s Cash flow (25%)

Whilst aperating prefit and customer satisfaction have been
removed as discrete measures, they will continue to be tested
as underpins for any bonus payment to take place. Pay-outs
will be subject to a threshold operating profit fevel below which
no bonuses will be paid. Furthermore, bonus pay-outs may

be adjusted downwards [but not upwards) in the event

of affordability constraints. In addition, the Committee has
discretion to pay no bonuses where a customer satisfaction
underpin is not met, or where it considers that safety standards
have not been adequately satisfied.

Further details of the changes to the annual bonus and the
rationale can be found on page 109.
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FY19 LTIP

Alongside the review of the annual bonus, the Committee
reviewed the effectiveness of the LTIP and was satisfied with
the overall structure, particularly following the intraduction of
the 2 year post-vesting holding period last year.

The Committee also remains of the view that the LTIP should
form part of an effective and motivational incentive approach
which links the interests of the investors and our Executives.
We have therefore reviewed the targets and measures to
ensure alignment with the Group’s new strategy.

Following consultation with our major shareholders, the
Committee decided to remove relative TSR as a LTIP condition
and measure EPS and ROCE with equal weighting (50% each)
for the FY19 LTIP.

Furthermore, the Committee decided that as a result of the
share price performance over the year it was appropriate to
reduce the number shares granted under the LTIP to ensure
that the Executive Directors do not benefit from the fall in share
price. Therefore, rather than receiving the maximum opportunity
of 150% ot salary, the Executive Directors will receive a reduced
number of shares equal to the number of shares granted for the
FY18 LTIP adjusted for base salary increases.

Details and the full rationale of the changes to the LTIP can be
found on pages 110 and 111.

Pension contributions

Tne new UK Corporate Governance Code highlighted the
importance of Executive pension provision being in line with
the wider workforca. With this in mind, pension ¢contributions
for the Executive Directors have been reduced from 20% to
15% of salary to reflect emerging best practice.

This represents a reduction in the level of pension benefit
for both of the Executive Directors and further refiects the
Committee's desire to embrace the Code provisions.
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Engagement with our shareholders

The Committee recognises the importance of ongoing dialogue
with shareholders on matters of remuneration and censulted
with our largest shareholders as well as the main shareholder
representative bodies on the implemantation of the policy.

Qverall, shargholders responded positively to the proposed
changes with overwhelming support of the decision to remove
TSR as a performance condition from the LTIP. Shareholders
recognised that RCCE is the key metric for measuring the
success of the Group's new strategy and agreed that the
increased weighting of 50% for the FY19 LTIP was appropriate.

In addition, sharehoiders appreciated the Committee exercising
its discretion 10 reguce the number of shares awarded under
the FY18 LTIP, as well as the decision to pay the FY18 bonus
entirely in deferred shares for John Tonkiss and Rowan Baker
rather than paying a portion in cash. Both decisions were made
to ensure that executive pay better reflectad the shareholder
experience over the year and we are happy that shareholders
agread with this.

A minority of shareholders raised concerns regarding Rowan's
base salary increase, given her increase last year. Whilst the
Committee is aware of the pressure on executive salary
increases in excess of the average employee increase, the
Committee balanced this against the focus on gender equality
and that after having demonstrated her competence in the
role there is ro justification for paying her less than her male
predecessar. Future rises for Executive Directors and
Non-Executive Directors over the policy period will be in line
with general employee increases.

The Committee is grateful for the time taken by shareholders
to review the propesals and provide meaningful feedback
and | would like to thank those who engaged.

Notas

This Raport has been prepared in accordances with Schedufe 8 to The Large and
Medium-sized Companies and Groups (Accaunts and Reports] Reguiations 2008
as amended in 2013, the provisions of the UK Corparate Governance Code and
the Listing Rulss. The Report consists of two sections:
» The Annual Statermant by the Remuneration Committes Chairman ang
associated ‘At a glance’ section
* The Annual Report on Remuneration which sets out payments made o the
Directors and details tha link betwesn Group performance and emuneration
far Fr18
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New UK Corporate Governance Code

The Committee recognises the significance of the new UK
Corporate Governance Code and - whilst the Code does not
apply for the Company until FY20 - has taken the following
steps to be prepared for the Code and adopt early where
possible.

The Company has considered the Code provision for the Boarg
1o understand the views of other stakeholders including the
workforce. The Company has decided to appoint a designated
NED to gather the views of the waorkforce.

The Committee is working closely with the Company to decide
the types of information an which to engage the workforce,
how this information will be used in Board discussions and
how details of this will be fed back 1o the workforce.

Qur goal has been to be thcughtful and clear in the layout of
this report and | look forward to your support on the resolution.

| weicome any feedback from the Company’s Shareholders.

Mike Parsons
Remuneration Committee Chairman
12 November 2018

W Rl
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At a glance

Introduction

In this section, we report on the remuneration outcomes for FY'18, which have been implemented in accordance with our
remuneraticn poficy.

Qur remuneration policy was designed to align remuneration of our Executive Directors with Group strategy and to drive

continued success within a remuneration framework that meets the sharaholder and governance expectations of a listed company.
The Remuneration Policy was approved by shareholders at the AGM in January 2017 and is set out in full on pages 63 to 74 of our
FYi6 Annual Report, which can be found on the Group's websile: www.mccarthyandstonegroup.co.uk

Qur core principles of remuneration are:

* To ensure top executives are attracted, retained and motivated to drive the Company forward

* Toincentivise management in creating an efficient business by delivering a smooth workflow, increasing ROCE and margins
* To deliver long-term sustainable value to shareholders

Strategic priorities

The Group has reviewed its strategy in 2018 and made key changes o the bonus and LTIP metrics tor FY19. The key elements
of the Group's strategy and how it is linked to the Executive Directors' remuneration are set out in the following table.

Link to incentives

Strateglc priorities Success measerament ABP LTIP
Aligning our workflow allows us to improve Improved ROCE v v
aperational efficiency

Rightsizing our business allows us to flex Improved margins v v
resources and align our support functions

Reorganisation of our sales and marketing Cost savings v v
functions ailows us to achieve a more efficient

sales and marketing model Cash savings v v
Reducing our build costs alows us 10 tackie the

affordability cf our properties Reducing capital employed e v
Remunetation priarities SIP and SAYE Minlmum sharsholding ABP LTIP
To ensure top executives are attracted, retained v Vs v
and mctivated to deliver the strategy

To deliver long-term sustainable value to

shareholders v ' v v v
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FY18 outcomes

The outcomes outlined in this section reflect the remuneration and performance measures and targets in place during
FY18 and their level of satisfaction. These were in iine with the Remuneration Policy approved in January 2017.

The table below shows the total remuneration paid or payable to each of the Executive Directors in respect of FY18.
These include the bonus amounts payabie as detailed in the foltowing.table.

Total remuneration for our Executive Directors FY1g' FY1?
Clive Fenton - CEQ £804,275 £753,169
John Tonkiss - COO £509,897 £462,231
Rowan Baker - CFO £449,096 £223,594?

1 John Tonkiss ' and Rowan Bakers FY18 bonus witl be paid entirely in geferred shares. Clve Fenton'’s FY18 bonus will be paid two-thirds 10 cash and one-thirg
¥ deferred shares

2 Rowan Baker became an Executive Director on B January 2017 and amounts shown are in respect of her time as an Execuitve Direclor

Annual bonus outcomes )

The strategy and KPls of the Group are primary factors in ensuring that there is alignment between performance and reward.

The performance measures used during FY18 were (a) profit before tax (70%); (b) cash flow (10%j); (¢) land exchanges (10%;;

and (d) custorner satisfaction (10%).

The table below shows the total bonus payable to each of the Executive Directors in respect of FY1B outcomes.

Annual banus ou far our € tive Directars FYia' FY17

Clive Fenton - CEQ £148,500 £143,.412
John Tonkiss - COO £98,010 £88,800
Rowan Baker - CFQ £84,645 £29,6317

1 John Tonkiss' and Rowan Baker's FY18 bonus will be paid entirely in deferred shares. Clive Fenton's FY18 bonus will be paid two-thirds in cash and one-third
in defermed shares
2 FRowan Baker became an Executive Dwector on B January 2017 and amounts shown ara in respect of her time as an Exacutive Director

Equity exposure of the Board

The Executive Directars are required to build up over a five year period, and then subsequently hold, a shareholding equivalent to
200% of their base salary. As a result of the IPO in Novernber 2015, John Tonkiss has significant shargholdings in the Company,
providing him with a material stake in the business. Rowan Baker, who was appointed to the Board on € January 2017, has not

yet met her shareholding requirement. During FY18, Clive Fenton met the 200% shareholding requirement. The table below shows
their interest in the Company as a percentage of their salary as at 31 August 2018.

Clive Fenton John Tonklss Rowan Baker
Shareholding requirement 200% 200% 200%
Value of beneficialty owned shares 375% 199% 7%
Value of/gain on interests over shares (i.e. unvested/unexercised awards) 275% 263% 172%

The table on page 120 shows the interests of each Executive Director in the shares of the Company at year end.
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Implementation of the remuneration policy in FY19
For FY19, the proposed remuneration will be as set out below. This is in accordance with our Remuneration Policy.

Base salary For FY19, the base salaries for the Executive Directors will be:
John Tonkiss £475,000 {44% increase with effect from 25 September 2018)
Rowan Baker £325,000 (14% increase with effect from 1 November 2018)

On 25 Septermber 2618 it was announced that John Tenkiss was appointed to the role of Chief Executive
Officer, His salary was increased from £330,000 to £475,000 to reflect this significant prometion frorn Chief
Cperating Officer and the associated increase in scope and accountabifity, The Commitiee believes the
proposed salary reflects the breadth and complexity of his new role as well as John's significant experience.
This has alsc been set below the level of his predecessor's salary of ES00,000.

As stated in the Remuneration Committee Chairman's annual statement, Rowan Baker's salary was set
below the market on her appointment to the Board with the intention of reviewing her salary on an ongoing
basis to ensure that it reflects her performance and growth in the role. Rowan has grown to become a fully
established and critical member of the management team with an extended remit that now also covers

IT, Legal Services and Communication departments. I is on this basis that the Comminee has decided io
increase her salary from £285,000 to £325,000.

The Cammittee is mindful of the sensitivity to increases in base pay ievels and considered its proposed
approach carefully in the current remuneration enviranment, Both Executives Directors have been
instrurnental in the formulation of the Group’s new strategy and are crucial to its delivery and the Committee
therefore believes that the salary levels are appropriate and in the best interests of the business

Clive Fenten retired from the Board on 31 August 2018. Full detaiis of Clive's leaving terms are set out
on pages 120 and 121,

Pension The maximum contribution info the defined contribution plan or a salary supplement in lieu of pension wil
be 15% of gross base salary, reduced from 20% of gross base salary in previous years.

Benefits Standard benefits will be provided including private medical insurance, life insurance and a car or
car allowance.
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Annuai bonus plan
{'ABP")
Cash and deferred shares

For FY19 the maximum bonus opportunity is 150% of salary.

A number of changes have been made for the FY19 annual bonus in order to create greater alignment
with and support delivery of the Group's new strategy. The changes are centred on driving efficiency in the
business and adapting tc adverse market conditions which are not expected to change in the short-term.
Below we explain these changes and the supporting rationale.

The performance conditions and their weightings for the FY19 annual bonus are as follows:
ROCE {25%)
Operating profit margin (25%)
Site margin {25%)
Cash flow {25%]
Introduction of ROCE
- improved efficiency is at the core of the Group’s new strategy
—~ The Group's new strategy is focused on improving the ROCE through the efficient use of
limited capital resources
- The use of ROCE in the annual bonus will help ensure that the business is successful in
implementing the strategy in the short-term

ey

2. Introduction of operating profit margin and site margin

- Both of these measures are aimed at improving our competitiveness and efﬁmency‘ including
progress towards cost reductions which, as previously explained, are a key part of the
Group's new strategy

- These measures also support the imperative need 1o drive future profits in a targeted manner

3. Changing how we reward customer satistaction
— Customer satisfaction has been a measure against which performance has been strong since
the IPO
- The Committee recognised the continued strategic importance of customer satisfaction, but
determined that operating the customer satisfaction metric as an underpin to the bonus was
raore appropriate at the present time

4. Rernoval of operating profit as a discrete measure

— Recognising the continued importance of strong profits, the proposed FY19 annual bonus
contains & threshold profit levet below which no bonus will be paid ana the ability to adjust
downward (but not upwardy) the bonus outcomes if insulficient profit is generated by the
business. This ensures that any boruses will be affordable and self-funding

5. Increased Cash flow weighting
- (Cash fiow remains central to our plans and in the short-term we are proposmg to increase
the weighting on this element from 10% to 25%

The Committee aiso has the discretion not to pay bonuses where it considers that safety standards
have not been adequately satisfied,

Our view is that these changes create an annual bonus structure which more effectively supports the
key elements of our Group's new strategy.

Orne-third of any bonus earned will be in the form of deferred shares, which will be deferred for three years.

The precise details of the targets themselves are deemed to be commercially sensitive as they refate to the
current financial year. The Committee therefore does nat consider it is appropriate to disclose annual bonus
targets during the year. However, details of the perfoermance targets will be gisclosed on a retrospective
basis in next year's Remuneration Report.

The ABF contains clawback and malus provisions.
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Long Term The FY1S LTIP awards are assessed over a three-year performance period. Any vested awards will be
Incentive Plan {'LTIP') - subject to a two-year holding period during which Executives cannot sell vested shares other than for
tax purposes.

Under the terms of the FY19 LTIF, 256% of the award will vest for achieving threshotd performance,

50% will vest for achieving target performance, increasing to 100% far achieving maximum perfarmance.
Achievements between these points are calculated on a straight line basis. The LTIP contains clawback
and malus provisions. Please see the full Remuneration Policy as set out on pages 63 10 74 in our FY16
Annual Report for further details.

In addition to the changes to the LTIP performance metrics (outlined below), the Comrmittee has considered
the impact on our sharehclders of the share price performance during the year. As a result, the Committee
has determined that the number of shares to be awarded to Executives should be reduced 1o reflect the
share price performance since Novernber 2017 when the previous {FY18) LTIP awards were made.

The objective of this exercise of discretion is to avoid Executives benefitting from a fall in the share price by
receiving a larger than anticipated number of shares under the LTI, As such, the number of shares awarded
will be in line with those awarded in FY17, adjusted to take account of the base pay levals of the

two Executive Directors when the FY18 LTIP awards are rmade.

The final number of shares will be determined with reference 1o the share price at grant and the share price
when the FY1B awards were granted [£1.635). As an ilustration, based on the current share price of £1.400
when this Annual Report was written (7 November 2018), the LTIP awards would be 128.4% of safary rather
than 150%.

The FY19 LTIP proposed performance measures, weightings and targets are outlined in the table below
alongside those operated in respect of the previous LTIP award in FY1B.

Performance moasuras FY18 weightings and targeta FY18 welghtings and targets
Earnings per Share (EPS')  Weighting: 37.5% Weighting: 50%
FY20 EPS FY271 EPS
Thresheold: 21 8p Threshold: 11.8p
Max: 27.8p Target: 14.2p
Max: 16.6p
Return on Capital Employed  Weighting: 37.5% Weighting: 50%
{{ROCE"} ' Threshold: 20.0% Threshold: 14%
Max: 25.0% Target: 17%
Max: 20%
Relative Total Shareholder  Weighting: 25.0% Removed from the FY19 LTIP
Return (TSR’ Measured against two groups (equally weighteq):

hoysebuilder peer index and FTSE 250 constituents
Threshold: equal 1o index / median of FTSE 250
Max: index + 7.5% / upper quartile of FTSE 250

On 25 September 2018, the Group announced it was targeting ROCE of more than 15% in FY21 and more than 20% by FY23.
These figures were on the basis that the Group would no longer benefit from ground rents. The governmant's proposal to award
an exemption for retirerment housebuilders was welcome, however there is still a degree of uncertainty surrounding the implications
of this and the financial impact it could have on the Group.

In this contaxt, the Committee believes that the targets set out above are appropriately calibrated to the Group’s new strategy and
are sufficiently stretching.

Furthermore, the Committee has chosen to set target” RQCE at 179% which is more stretching than the ‘straight line” basis
calculation gnsuring that management are not excessively rewarded far external factors such as the positive impact of the decision
on ground rents. The level of stretch in the EPS target range reflects the stretch in the ROCE targets and the Committee considered
analyst forecasts as well as the business plan in determining that these targets are appropriate.
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Changes to FY19 performance measures and raticnale for change:
1. Removal of TSR from the LTIP

Foliowing a thorough review, the Committee believes that relative TSR is no longer an
appropriate metric for the LTIP .

A key challenge for the Company was seiecting a relevant peer group against which to measure
TSR. For the first two LTIP awards (FY16 and FY17) granted since IPQ, TSR was measured
against a housebuilder index, ard for FY18 awards the FTSE 250 was introduced as a second
comparatar group

The introduction of the FTSE 250 peer group sought to recognise that we are not well aligned
10 the broader housebuilding sector. While the FTSE 250 peer group presented the opportunity
0 measure against a broader set of companies, the Cormmittee believes that this is not the
optimat approach

The unique business model which we onerate diferentiates us from other housebuilders in
several areas. Our strategy, including offering customers a choice of tenure approach will,

we believe, increase this underlying difference. In addition, whilst Brexit had an impact cn

all housebuilders' performance, others were in a better position 10 recover &S a resuit of the
Government's Help to Buy scheme which does not benefit the Company

As a result of this analysis, the Committee concluded that continuing to operate a relative
TSR performance measure significantly reduces the incentive effect of the LTIP and dilutes
the linkage to delivery of the revised Group strategy. This approach will apply to the next twe
LTIP grants and will be reviewed after that

As a result of the removal of relative TSR, the remaining metrics (EPS and ROCE) will each
receive a 50% weighting in the FY19 LTIP award

2. EPS weighting is now 50% of the LTIP

EPS remains irmportant {o the Company as a measure of its profitability

EFS as a performance measure is motivational for management as they have strong
‘line of sight’ and a greater influence over the outcome

The EPS targets can be derived direcily from our business plans aver the mediurmn-term

3. ROCE weighting is now 50% of tha LTIP

As previously described in the context of the annual bonus, improved capital efficiency is

a key pillar of the new Group strategy and including this in the LTIP will help drive performance
over the long term

Coupling ROCE with EPS is an effective way to test the quality of the long-term earnings of
the Company

Similarly to EPS, the ROCE targets can be derived frorm our business plans over the
medium-term

NED fees

The tees for FY19 for the Non-Executive Director roles are unchanged:

* Chairman: E230,000

* Board fee: £54,600

» SID additional fee: £10,00C

* Committee Chairman fee (per committee): £10,000
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Fairness, diversity and wider workforce considerations

McCarthy & Stone is committed 1o creating an inclusive working environment and 1o rewarding our empioyees throughout the
organisation in a fair manner. Although the new UK Corporate Governance Code does not apply to the Company until FY20,
the Remuneration Committee is already taking initial steps to become compliant with the Code.

In making decisions on executive pay, the Remuneration Cormmittee considers wider waorklorce remuneration and conditions.
We believe that employees throughaout the Company should be able to share in the success of the Company. We have, since
owr PO, operated a Sharesave scheme (‘SAYE') and a Share Incentive Flan ('SIP’). Our intention is to continue this and to
investigate additional opportunities for employee share ownership going forwards.

As part of our commitment to fairness, we have introduced this section into our remuneration reporting which sets out

more infermation on our wider workforce pay conditions, our change in CEO pay compared with employees' pay changes,
cur Gendler Pay stalistics, and our Equality and Diversity policy. Whilst we recognise there is much work stili to do, we believe
that transparency is an impertant first step towards making improvements in relation to these important issues.

araa Canaidaratiana

Competitive pay The Commitlee ensures that pay is fair throughout the Company and makes degisions in reiation tg the structure of
and cascade of  executive pay in the context of the cascade of incentives throughout the business. The Committee's rernit extends

incentives down to senior executives and senior management for which it recommends and monitars the tevel and structure of
remuneration.
Level Annual bonus participation Sharesave / S|P participation LTIP participation
Executive Directors v v -
Senior executives v v 4
Senior managers v v
Managers v v
Employees v v

Statement of considerations of employment conditions elsewhare in the Company

The Remuneration Policy for all emplcyeses is determined in line with best practice and aims to ensure that

the Company is able 1o atiract and retain the best peeple. This principle is followed in the deveiopment of cur
Rermuneration Policy. The Company's remuneration strategy has been designed to ensure that all employees
share in its success through performance-related remuneration and the potential for share ownership. Awards
under both the Annual and Deferred Bonus Plan and the Long-Term Incentive Plan will provide alignment between
senior leaders and our sharsholders Dased on overall performance of the business.

For ail employees, the Comparny has in place a SAYE and SIP. Currently, under these plans all employees have
the opportunity to purchase shares in the Cormpany subject ta certain restrictions.

The Company uses a number of remunaration cormpariscn measurements 10 assess fairness of pay structures
across the Group. In setting the remuneration palicy for Directors, the pay and conditions of other employees of the
Company are taken into account to ensure consistency of approach throughout the Group, including data on the
remuneration structure for managament level tiers below the Executive Directors, average base salary increases
awarded to the overall employee population and the cascade of pay structures throughout the busingss.
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Pay comparisons Comparison of overall performance and pay

The graph below shows the value of £100 invested in the Company’s shares since listing compared with the
FTSE 250 index. The graph shows the Total Shareholder Return generated by both the movernent in share value
and reinvestment over the same period of dividend income.

As the Company was a constituent of the FTSE 250 during the financial year, the Committee considers this is
an appropriate index. The comparison s trom the date of listing on 11 November 2015 10 31 August 2018.

N 1

Graphic removed

L - J

Chief Executive Officer's historic remuneration

The following table shows the total single figure for the role of Chief Executive Officer as well as the annual bonus
and LTIP vesting level achiaved for each of the periods covered by the graph above.

FY18 FY17 FY15
CEQ total single figure £804,275 £753,169 £628,024
‘Annual bonus payment fevel achieved {% of maximum 19.8% 19.7% 10.0%
oppontunity)
LTIP vesting level achieved (% of maximum opportunity)® 0% - -

1 Tha performance peniod for the LTIP granted in November 2015 i due to conclude i Novermber 2018. The EPS and ROCE targels were
rmissed resulting in nil vesting for these elements and the estimaied vesting of the TSR glement is nil. Therefora, the overall vasting is £nil

Change in Chief Executive Officer's remuneration compared with employees

The following table illustrates the change in CEQ salary, benefits and bonus between FY17 and FY18 compared with
other employees in the Group taken as a whole,

% change FY17 to FY18

Base salary Benefits Annual bonus
Chief Executive Officer 3% 9% 4%
Other Graup employees 4% 7% 34%

The annual bonus increase shown for the CEQ is largely as a result of the increase in base salary in the year of 3.2%.
The increase to the average employee bonus reflects the retentive nature of the bonuses paid to motivate employees

as the business implements the new strategy.
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Gender pay

The gender pay gap legislation raquires all companies with mare than 250 employees to report annually on
their pay. The McCarthy & Stone Group has three employing entities with more than 250 employees, namely
McCarthy & Stone Retirement Lifestyles Limited, MeCarthy & Stone Management Services Limited and YourLife
Management Services Limited. Our 2017 gender pay gap repart is available on our corporate website:
www.mccarthyandstenegroup.co.uk

As well as the statutory disclosures required for the above three companies, we alsc published aggregated data
across all the Group companies {except YourLife Management Services Limited, which is administered by our joint
venture partner, Somerset Care Limited).

The following table shows the mean and median hourly pay gaps as at 5 April 2017 as well as our mean and median
bonus gaps (based on bonus anc commission rates for the period 6 April 2016 to 5 April 2017). Qur mean houry
pay gap of 34.3% and our median hourly pay gap of 37.6% reflects the fact that we have a higher proportion of
maies in more senior roles, where the pay is higher. However, if éach gender were reported equally by job level,

our mean hourly pay gap would reduce to 4.6% and our mean bonus gap would become 3.9% in favour of our
female employees.

Uniike most of the major housebuilders, the majority of our site-pased workers (who are predominantly male)
are sub-contractors and are therefore nat included in this analysis.

Gender pay gap data

Ramalning faxcluding
Elwment dua to siemanta duse to
Moan gendar mix' gandear mix) Median

Hourly pay 34.3% 28.7% 4.6% 37.6%
Bonus 19.8% 23.7% {3.99§ 73.5%

1 This is the amount of gender pay gap which is due to there being higher mumbers of men or wommen in @ particular job role ar job level.
2 This means that if gender mix is remaved, women earned maore mean bonus and commission than men.

Proportion of male and female amployees in each pay quartile
Fercent of mate Percent of tamais
amployees empioyses

Lawer quartile 3C.0 70.0
Lower middie quartile 40.1 59.9
Upper middle quartile 58.2 418
Upper quartiie 74.2 258

Proportion of male and female employees receiving a bonus
Percont of male Percent of famala
smployses employses

Employees who received a bonus ar commission 11 777
in the 12 menth period . .

We are confident that our pay and bonus gaps, where they occur, are based on the distribution of men and women
across our business and nct because of our pay policies, which are robust, fair and consistent. We have an even
balance of male and female employees across the business and are taking action 1o iIncrease the representation

of women at senior levels. In the period from January 2016 to February 2018 the proportion of wemen at Director
level increased from 15.3% to 19.8%. Over the sama period the propartion of wormen in senior management roles
increased from 17.8% 10 21.1%,

We continue to wark with the Home Builders Federation and other housebuilders to improve the image of the
construction industry in order 10 attract a mose diversa range of candidates.

Diversity

Please refer 10 the Directors' repart on page 129 tor details of our Equality and Diversity Policy.

114 McCarthy & Stone pic




STRATEGIC REPORT CORPORATE GOVERNANCE | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Annual Report on Remuneration

Executive Directors’ remuneration (audited)

Single total figure of remuneration (audited)

The table below sets out the single total figure of remuneration for each Executive Director in respect of FY18 and FY17. Further
explanation of each of the elements are set out below and in the following sections of this report.

Base Taxable Annual
Nama Perlod aalary benefity Benug! e Pension* Cthar* Total
Clive Fenton FY18 £497,.417 £32,913 £148,500 £0 £99,483 £25,962 £804,275
Fy17 £482 917 £30,257 £143.412 Nang £96,583 0 £753,169
) FY18 £325,000 £29,769 £98,010 £0 £57,118 ] £509,897
John Tonkiss
FY17 £296,667 £24 626 £88,800 None £62,138 0 £462,231
FY18 £235,000 £22 451 £84,645 £0 £57,000 1] £449,096
Rowan Baker®
FY17 £151,641 £6,183 £29,631 None £36,139 o £223,594

~

Rowan Baker was appointed lo the Board with effect from 6 January 2017. The amounts for FY17 relale omy {o the period since she joined the Board and do not
cover the period frorn 1 Septemnber 2018 to 5 January 2017

2 One-thind of the FY17 annual bonus for Clive Fenton and John Torldss was in the form of deferred shares. Rowan Baker's bonus for FY17 was all in cash with

no deferred shares, For FY18, the annual bonus for John Tankiss and Rowan Baker will be paid entirely in deferred shares. Clive Fenton's FY'18 bonus will be
paid two-thirds in cash and one-third in deferred shares. The deferred shares inclutfed in the annual bonus figures above are deferred for three years and

arm not subect lo any performance conditions

3 The performance period for the LTIP granted in Novernber 20135 is due to conclude in Novermber 2018. The EPS and ROCE targets wera missed resufting
in nif vesting for these elements and the estimated vesting of the TSR element is nil. Therefore, the averall estimate vesting is £nil

4 Comprises the value of Group Persanal Pension scheme contributions and salary suppiements in lieu of pension
5 Other refates to acerved annual holiday which Clive Fenton did not take prior 10 retiring from the Company

Base salary

As reported in the FY17 Annual Report, the base salary for the CEC and the COO were increased with effect from 1 November
2017 (Rowan Baker's base salary was increased with effect from 1 September 2017). The table below shows the base salary for
each of the Executive Directors during the year.

Executive Director Position Period Salary
Ciive Ferth Chief € e Off 1817 - 311017 £484,500
e Fenton X

vere 1T ExecUtve LeeT 11117 - 31.818 £500,000
. ) ] 1.947 - 311017 £300,000

John Tonkiss Chief Operating Officer
11017 - 31.8.18 £330,000
Rowan Baker Chief Financial Officer 1.9.17 - 31818 £285,000

Benefits (audited)

The Executive Directors typically receive private medical insurance, life insurance, company car or cash in lieu of the company
car, although the Committee retains the flexibility to provide other benefits. The amounts shown in the table above are the gross
{before tax) amounts.
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Annual bonus (audited)

The strategy and the KPIs of the Group are primary factors in ensuring that there is alignment between performance and reward.
For FY18, the performance conditions and their weightings for awards under the ABP were:

* Praofit before tax (70%)

e Full year cash flow (10%)

* Land exchanges (109}

* Customer satisfaction {109}

Under the terms of the FY18 annual banus, 25% for each element is payable for achieving the threshold performance, 50%

is payable for achieving target performance, increasing to 100% for achieving maximum performance. Achievements between
these points are calculated on a straight-line basis. The maximum opportunity for each Executive Director was 150% of base
salary and one-third of any bonus earned was in the form of deferred shares, which is deferrad for three years.

The benus awards payable to the Executive Directors in respect of FY18 were agreed by the Remuneration Committee,
having reviewed the Group's results and the extent to which the performance conditions were met. The results are shown in
the following tabie:

Parformance Targets Annual bonua value achieved
Parfarmance e var tar ortormance ml:‘h:l:l: net Actual ﬂﬁ?ﬂ:‘&"‘.
conditions conditian rgeta required targst  Performance achieved  Clive Fenton  John Tonkiss  Rowan Baker
_ Threshold £107.0m 17.5%
Profit before 70% Target £114.5m 3% £621m 0% 3 .
Maximum £123.0m 70%
Threshold £0m 2.5%
Cash flow 10% Target £14.5m 5% £28.3m 98% £73.500 £48,510 £41,895
Maximum £29 Om 10%
Threshold 2,680 2.5%
::g*?anges 10% Target 3,000 5% 2413 0% - -
Maximum 3,320 10%
Thrashold 90% 2.5%
fa“tfs‘f‘;’;?gn 0% Target 93% 5% 95.5% 100%  £75000  £49500  £42750
Maximum 95% 10%
Total 100% 19.8% £148,500 £98,010 £84,645

The formulaic outcome of the annual bonuses would have dalivered bonuses of 29.7% of salary split two-thirds in cash and
ane-third in shares for John Tonkiss and Rowan Baker (£98.0k and £84.6k respectively). As explained in the annual statement,
the Committee decided to pay the bonus entirely in shares. The rationale for this decision is:

* As the Company issued a profit warning in June 2018 and the threshold target for the prefit before tax element was missed., the
Committee feft it was not appropriate to pay cash bonuses

* Awarding the bonus in deferred shares provides further motivation to the Executive Directors to ensure that delivery of the revised
strategy in the coming years flows through to the Company’s share price performance

As previocusly communicated in the Section 430(2B} stalement made on 25 July 2018, Clive Fenton’s bonus will be paid two-thirds
in cash and one-third in deferred shares.
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LTIP awards vesting

The FYi6 LTIP granted on 25 Novernber 2015 is due to vest on 25 November 2018. The performance period for the EPS and
ROCE metrics concluded at the year end and the threshold targets were not met. The TSR performance period concludes
on 25 November 2018, however, based on performance to date we estimate that there will be no vesting under this element,
Hence, the values reported in the single figure table for the award are nil.

The table below summarises the targets and outcomes:

Threshola Maalmum Actual
Maasurs Weighting porformance parformance performance Vasting
Cumulative EPS 30% 61.4p 69.8p 36.3p Q%
FY18 ROCE 30% 22% 25% 10% Q%
TS8A vs householder index 40% Equaltoindex  Index + 7.5% p.a. Below Index 0%
Total 100% 0%

LTIP awards (audited)

During FY18, LTIP-awards of 150% of salary were granted to the Executive Directors. The awards were made as nil-cost options
and the number of shares over which each nil-cost option was awarded was calculated by reference to the closing price of the
shares as derived frorn the Daily Official List of the London Stock Exchange on the day before the date of the award.

These nil-cost options will vest depending on performance against a challenging sliding scale of Earnings per Share ('EPS’), Return
on Capital Employed (ROCE"); and retative Total Shareholder Return (TSR') measured against two groups (equally weighted) - the
“unweighted average TSR of a housebuilder peer index {comprising Barratt, Bovis, Bel'way, Crest Nicholson, Persimman, Redrow
and Taylor Wimpey); and constituents of the FTSE 250 Index (excl. Financial Services and irwestment trusts). All three measures
are assassad over a three year perfarmance period. Vested awards are subject to a two year post vesting holding periad. The LTIP
contains clawhack and malus provisions. .

The performance conditions and targets for the FY18 LTIP awards are set out below. For the achieverment of threshold
performance, 25% of the element will vest with straight line vesting in between to maximum performance.

Meaaure Waighting Thraahald parformance Maximum pesriormance
FY20 EPS 37.5% 21.8 pance 27.8 pance
FY20 ROCE 37.5% 20.0% 250%

Equal to housebuilder index / Heusebuilder index + 7.5% p.a. /
Reiative TSR 250% median of FTSE 250 Upper quartite ot FTSE 250

The following LTIP awards were made during FY18:

Maximum

Bagis of % of award percentage of
Number award granted Face value vesting at the tace value Perlormance
Executive Director Dote  of sharas awarded (% of basic salary) of award' threaheld that could vest Period’
Clive Fenton 171147 458,716 150% £750,000 25% 100% 3 years
John Tonkiss 171147 302,752 150% £495,000 25% 100% 3years
Rowan Baker 171117 261,468 150% £427,500 25% 100% 3years

1 The lace value is calculated using the closing share price on 16 November 2017 (£1.635)
2 The performance perod runs for three years from the date of grant. Relative TSA will be measured fom 17 November 2017 over a three year period.
EPS and ROCE will ba measured based on financial year end figures as al the end of the FY20 financial year

As at 12 Novernber 2018, no awards have been granted in respect of FY19.

Pension entitiements {audited)

During FY18 the Group operated a Group personal pension scheme under which Executive Directors were entitled to receive
contributions of up to 20% of salary. The Group does not currentiy cperate a defined benefit schemne,

Non-Executive Directors' Remuneration
The Company's Articles of Association restrict the annual fees that may be paid to the Non-Executive Directors in aggregate
to £1.0m. This amount may only be increased by ordinary resolution of the shareholders.
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Single total figure of remuneration (audited)

The table below sets out the single total figure of remuneration and breakdown for each Non-Executive Director.

Nan-Executive

Dlractars Parlod Feas Benefits' Total Haols

Paui Lester?, CBE FY18 £141,950 - £141,950 Non-Executive Chairman
FY18 £74,333 £147 £74,480

Frank Nelscn Seniar Independent Director
FY17 £73,000 £107 £73,107

John Carter? FY18 £50,050 - £50,050 Independent Non-Executive Director

Arun Nagwaney! FY18 - - - Non-Exacutive Director
Fy18 £54,333 - £54,333

Geeta Nanda, OBE Independent Non-Exaecutive Directar
FY17 £53,000 - £53,000
FY18 £64,333 £64,333

Mike Parsans Independent Non-Executive Director
FY17 £63,000 - £63,000
FY18 £92,590 £617 £93,207

John White® Former Non-Executive Chairman
FY'7 £230,000 £2,670 £232 670

1 Benefits relate to taxable travel expenditure

2 Paul Lester was appainted to the Board on 3 January 2018 and became Chairman at the concilusicn of the 2018 AGM on 24 January 2018
3 John Carlsr was appointed to tha Board on 1 October 2017
4 Anin Nagwaney was appointed to the Board an 17 May 2018 as g representative of Anchorage Capital Group. our larges! shareholder,

He does not receive a fes for his mle

5 John While stepped down from the Board at the conciusion of the 2018 AGM on 24 January 2018

Non-Executive Directors’ fees
The Non-Executive Directors' fees, which applied during FY18 were:

Foqs

Rale

Chairman £230,000
Non-Executive Director’s Board fee £54.600
Senior Independent Director's additional fee £10,000
Committee Chairman's additional fee (per commitiee) £10,000

The Non-Executive Directars are not entitled to participate in the Group's Pension Scheme, ABP, LTIP or Sharesave.
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Executive Directors’ shareholdings and share interests (audited)

Directors’ interests in share awards (audited)

The outstanding interests in share awards for the Executive Directors as al 31 August 2018 are shown in the table below.
The Non-Executive Directors are not permitted to participate in any of the Group's share plans or incentive arrangements.

Directors Number Yeatad during Lapsad during Exarcies Vasting

Plan Data of grant af share awarda 1ha year the year Prica (£) date Expiry date
Clive Fenton

LTI 251115 263,888 - - - nil 251118 25611.25
LTIP 221216 471916 - - il 221219 2212.26
LTIP 171147 458,716 - - nil 17.11.20 171.27
Sharesave 10.1215 10,762 - - 1.674 28.01.19 28.0719
ABP 2017 28,741 - - nil 2011.20 2011.27
John Tonkiss

LTiP 251115 155,555 - - il 251118 2511.25
LTIk 221216 292,208 - - nil 221219 2212.26
LTIP , 1717 302,752 - - nil 17.11.20 17.11.27
Sharesave 101215 10,752 - - 1.674 28.01.19 28.07.19
ABP 20117 17,796 - - nil 2011.20 2011.27
Rowan Baker

LTIP 251115 22,222 - - nil 251118 2511.25
LTIP 221216 40,584 - - il 221219 221226
LTIP 2707 105,520 - - il 27.01.20 212
LTiP 171117 261,468 - - nil 17.11.20 1711.27
Sharesave 101215 10,752 - - 1.674 280119 28.0719
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Directors' shareholdings {audited)

The Executive Directors are reguired to build up over a five year period, and then subsequently hold, a shareholding equivalent to
200% of their base salary. At the end of FY18, John Tonkiss met his shareholding requirement. Rowan Baker, who was appointed
to the Board on 6 January 2017, has not yet met her shareholding requirement, but she is aware she will need 1o increase her

shareholding to mest this requirement by 6 January 2022. Non-Executive Directors are not subject to sharehclding requirements.

The table below shows the interests in shares in the Cempany, including unvested awards, for each of the Directors as at 31 August
2018. No options were exercised during the year. There has not been any change since the year end.

Shares Shares Shares
Shares subjectte notsubjactie Options Options Optlong Optians beneficiaity Shareholding
beneficiatly performance performance veated but u d d ted ewnadas  requirement
Diractors awned conditions condltlena  unexerciaad {LTIPa) (Shareaave) {ABP) % of salary" mat?

Executive Directors

Clive Fenton 1,681,389 n/a n/a n/a 1,194,520 10,752 28,1 I75% Yes
John Tonkiss 588,763 n/a n/a n/a 750,515 10,752 17,796 199% Yes
Rowan Baker 17,768 n/a n/a n/a 429,794 10,752 n/a 7% Ne
Non-Executive Directors

Paul Lester 66,500 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a nfa
John Carter Nit n/a n/a n/a nfa n/a nfa n/a r/a
Arun Nagwaney Nil n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Geeta Nanda Nit n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Frank Nelscn 173,270 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a nfa
Mike Parsons 173,270 n/a n/a n/a nfa n/a nfa n/a nfa
John White? 1,750,192 n/a nfa n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

! This is hased on a closng share prca ot 1. 114 and the year end salanes of the Execulive Directors. Shares used for the above calculation exciude unvested and
unexercised options. They include shares where the Executive Direclor has beneficial ownership, shares independently acquired in the marke! and those heid by a
spouse or o partner or dependent child under the age of 18 years

2 John White stepped down from tha Board at the conclusion of the 2018 AGM on 24 January 2018

Payments to past Directors (audited)
There ware no payments in the financial year.

Payments for loss of office (audited)
In line with the shareholder approved Remuneration Policy, Clive Fenton's caessation of employment qualifies for good leaver

status due to his retirement with the consent of the Company. The Remuneration Committee has, therefors, made the following
determinations consistent with this status:

Ongoing remuneration

Fixed

The announcement on 19 June 2018 explained that Clive would be retiring from the Company at the end of the financial year

on 31 August 2018 with his 12 month notice period starting on 30 June 2018. He remained an employee of the Company until

31 August 2018. During this period he continued to receive his current salary, benefits and pension contribution. The annual rates
for these fixed elements of the remuneration package are set out in the table below,

Elament Annual Rate ()
Salary - £500,000
Pensiaon allgwance £100,000
Estimated value of benefils (variable based on benefits taken up) £23,000

Pay in lieu of notice

Following his retirement on 31 August 2018, for the 10 month balance of his notice period, Clive wilt receive monthly payments
in respect of the above salary and pension amounts until 30 June 2019. He will also continue to receive his contractual benefits
{private medical insurance, life insurance and company car or cash allowance) during this pericd. Chive will receive outplacement
for 12 months following his retirement date on 31 August 2018.
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FY18 bonus

Clive Fenton has been employed for the full financial year and therefore qualifies for a bonus based on the level of satisfaction of
the performance conditions (see page 16 for full details of the performance conditions, targets, their level of satisfaction and the
resulting bonus earned for the year). The maximum bonus opportunity for Clive for the financial year was 150% of salary of which
29.7% was eamed, resulting in a total bonus of £148,500. The Committee applied its normal procedure in determining bonuses,
with bonuses payable to all participants, including Clive, following the end of the financial year in Novernber 2018, Two-thirds of
the bonus sarned will be paid in cash and one-third paid in shares subject to a three year vesting period.

FY19 bonus
Clive Fenton will not be eligible to receive a bonus for FY19.

FY19 LTIP

There will be no award te Clive Fenton in respect of FY19 to reflect his retirement duning the year. Details of the treatment of
existing share awards are set out below.

Existing share awards
Clive Fenton hoids a number of existing awards under the fallowing Company share plans:

* The Annual and Deferred Bonus Plan ('ABP')
* The Long-Term Incentive Plan {LTIP")

FY17 ABP deferred share awards

The performance conditions for the deferred share award were satisfied at the date of grant with the only ongoing cordition
being continued employment at the vesting date. Dividend equivalents will be provided on vesting on the number ot shares
vested. In line with the policy for goad leavers, the FY17 deferred share award did not lapse on Clive's cessation of employment
but will vest on the original vesting date. The following table sets out details of the awarg:

Date of grant Number of sharea

2011.2017 28,41

FY16, FY17 and FY18 LTIP awards
In line with the policy, the Committee has determined that the following treatment will apply to these awards:

= The maximum number of shares capable of vesting will be pro-rated by the number of whaole manths of the performance
period completed on the date of Clive's cessation of employment, being 31 August 2018

* The number of shares vesting will be calculated based on the level of satisfaction of the performance conditions at the end
of the original performance period

* For the FY18 LTIP, a two year holding period will apply to shares post vesting

* Dividend equivalents will be provided on vested shares on the vesting date

The following table sets out details of the LTIP awards:
Pro-rated numbar of sharea
capable of veating
(subject to parformance

LTIP Award ’ Date of grant Yesling date Number of sharaa granted conditions)
FY16 251115 251118 263,888 241,897
FY17 221216 221219 471,916 262175
Fy1g 171147 1711.20 458,716 114,679
SAYE

Clive holds 10,752 options in the 2015 SAYE pfan with an exercise price of £1.674, which he is entitied to exercise within six months
of cessation of employment in line with the good leaver treatment outlined in the rules of the plan.

There were no payments for loss of office made to the Directors in the financial year other than those in relation to Clive Fenton
described above,
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External directorships

Executive Directars may hold positions in other companies as Non-Executive Directors and retain their fees. Clive Fenton,
John Tonkiss and Rowan Baker do not hold any external directorships.

Performance graph and CEO single total figure table

The TSR performance graph and history of single figure for the Chief Executive Officer are contained in the section headed
Fairness, diversity and wider workforce considerations on page 113

Percentage change in remuneration of Director undertaking the role of Chief Executive Officer
This information is set out in the section headed Fairness, diversity and wider workforce considerations on page 113,

Relative importance of spend on pay
The table below shows the relative importance of spend on pay in comparison to prefit distributed by way of dividends:

FY18 FY1? % change
Overall spend on pay including Executive Directors' ) £79.8m £76.2m 5%
Profit distriputed by way of dividends £29.0m £29.0m 0%

1 The FY17 overall spend on pay including Executive Directors’ fgune has been updated o present the correct amount foliowing the identification of ar error reflecting
& doubia counting of an adjustment in the pnar ysar

There were no distributions by way of share buybacks during the year.

Consideration by the Directors of matters relating to Directors’ remuneration

The Board has delegated to the Commitiee, under agreed terms of reference, responsibility for the Policy and for determining
specific packages for the Exacutive Directors and other selected members of the senior management team. The Company consults
with key shareholders in respect of the palicy and the introduction of new incentive arrangements.

The members of the Committee during FY18 and up to the date of this Report are:

Mike Parsons (chair of the Committee)

Frank Neison

Geeta Nanda, OBE

Paul Lester, CBE (appointed to the Committee on 26 February 2018)

John Carter (appointed to the Committee ort 26 February 2018)

John White (stepped down from the Committee on 24 January 2018)

The terms of reference for the Committee are available on the Company's website: www.mccarthyandstonegroup.co.uk/
about-us/corporate-governance, angd from the Company Secretary at the registered office.

Qur main responsibiities are to:

= Determine and agree with the Board the broad policy for the Executive Directors and other selected members of the senior
rmanagement team

= Undertake periotlic reviews to assess the appropriateness and relevance of the policy ensuring alignment with best practice
principles of the UK Corporate Governance Code

« Consider the relative importance of the Group's expenditure on pay compared to the Group's profits, dividends and tax paid

= Review any major changes in employee benefit structures throughout the Cormpany or Group and to administer all aspects of
any share scheme

The Committee receives assistance from the Group HR Diractor and the Group General Counsel and Compary Secretary,
who will attend meetings by invitation, except when issues relating to their own remuneration are being discussed. The Chiel
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer will attend by invitation an occasion.
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Advisers to the Remuneration Committee

Following & selection process carried out by the Board prior to and then following the [PO of the Company, the Committee
has engaged the services of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP {'PwC'} as independent remuneration adviser.

Luring FY18 PwC has provided advice, primarily in respect of the remuneration palicy and LTIP awards.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PwC also-provides certain other non-audit services in respect of tax and internal audit te the Group. The Committee is satisfied
that no conflict of interest exists or existed in the provision of these services and that the advice received from PwC is objective

and independent. PwC is a member of the Remuneration Consultants Group and is a signatory to its voluntary code of conduct
which is designed to ensure cbjective and indspendent advice is given 1o remuneration cammittees.

Fixed fees of £40,0C0 (FY17: £36,000) were paid to PwC during the year in respect of remuneration advice given to the Commitiee.

Shareholder engagement and statement of voting at the AGM

The Committee believes it is very important to maintain an open dialogue with sharehclders on remuneration matters.
Shareholders' views were sought and considered when we set the rernuneration paolicy in 2016 as well as consulting with our
major sharehoiders in respect of any changes to the remuneration policy and any material changes to incentive arrangements.

The Directors' Remuneration Policy was put to a binding vote and approved at the Annual General Meeting on 24 January 2017,

We put a resolution to approve the FY17 Annual Remuneration Repert ta cur members at our Annual General Meeting in January

2018. The voting outcomes are set out below:

Total votes cant

Reaolutian Vaotes For Votes Apainst {excluding withheld) Votes withhald
Directors' Remuneration Policy
Number of votes cast 320,184,871 24,713,722 344,898,593 3,773,564
Percent of votes cast 92.8% 7.2%
Annual Report on Remuneration:
Number of votes cast 404,575,261 1,388,234 405,963,495 12,245
Percent of votes cast »99.99% <0.01%
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Executive Directors’ contracts and letters of appointment for Chairman

and Non-Executive Directors

Executive Directors

Nalice poriods

Date of Nature of Gomp pravisions
Name Service cantract cantract From company Fram diractor tor sariy terminatign
Clive Fenton 30 January 2014 Rolling 12 months 12 menths
. . At the discretion
John Tonkiss 15 October 2018 Rolling 12 menths 12 months of the Company
Rowan Baker 15 Octaber 2018 Rolling 12 months 12 months

Non-Executive Directors

Cate of Ietter af appol nimaent

Nama

Paul Lester, CBE 8 November 2013
Frank Nelson 11 November 2013
John Carter 18 September 2017
Arun Nagwaney 16 May 2018
Geeta Nanda, OBE 4 March 2015
Mike Parsons 28 October 2013

The Cammittee's policy for setting notice periods is that a 12 month period will apply for Executive Directors.

The Non-Executive Directors of the Company {including the Chairman} do not have service contracts: they are appointed by
letters of appointment. Each Non-Executive Director's term of office runs for a three year period which can be renewed far two
turther three year terms. The terms of the Directors' positions are subject to theair re-etaction by the Company's shareholders

at each AGM.

In accordance with the UK Corporate Governance Code, all Directors seek annual re-election by shareholders.

The service contracts and letters of appointment of the Directors are available for inspection at the Company's registerea office
during normat business hours and at the AGM.
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llustrations of the application of the Remuneration Policy

The charts below illustrate the remuneration that would be paid to each of the Executive Directors, based on salaries at the start of
F¥18, under three different performance scenarios: (i) minimurm; (i) on-target; and (i} maximum. The table below these charts sels
out the assumptions used to calculate the elements of remuneration for each of these scenarios. The elements of remuneration
have been categorised into three components: (i) fixed:; (i) annual bonus (deferred bonus); and (i} LTIP, In line with the new
regulations on policy scenarios, we have also included an additional refersnce point to show the maximum remuneration receivable
assuming a share price appreciation of 50%. For the purposes of comparison, we have included the actual single figure of
remuneration for the Exacutive Directors for FY18.

Chief Executive Officer (John Tonkiss)

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Maximum with 50%

share price increase ! 25% I 30% 45% J
Maximum [28% [ 36% 36% |
On-target [24% ] 28% | 28%
Minimum [100% ]
Actual [81% [19% |
RFixed MBorus MLTP
Chief Financial Officer (Rowan Baker)
Maxi ith 50%
sha:r;mgrrlgev?:lcreasa [ 25% I 30% I ]
Maximum | | 36% | 36%
On-targat | 44% 28% [ 28% I
Minimum ['00%
Actual [ B1% | 19% |
M Fixed MBonus MLTIP
Maximum
Elamant Dascription Minimum TFarget Maximum {with ahara prica growth)
. Salary, bengfits'
Fixed and pension Inciuded Included Included Included
Annual bonus
{including deferred
2 . 50% of 100% of 100% of
Annual bonus shargs] . No annual variable maximum banus maximum bonus maximum bonus
Maximum opportunity
of 150% of salary
Award under the LTIP? 100% ot the

Maximum annual
award of 150%
of salary

LTIP

No multipte year
variable

50% of the
maximum award

100% of the maximum award
maximum award

price appreciation

assuming 50% share

1 Based on FY18 benelits paymanis as per the single Fgure lable. The aclual benefils paid for FY'13 will only be known al the end of the financial year,
See page 115 for the single figura table and the accompanying noles
2 Dividend equivalents have not been added to tha defarred shares and LTIP awards

Mike Parsons
Remuneration Committee Chairman
12 November 2018

Wt
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B Directors’ Report

Introduction

The Directors present their report and audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 August 2018in
accordance with section 415 of the Companies Act
2006 {‘Directors' Report’).

The information that fulfils the requirements of the corporate
governance statemend for the purposes of the Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency Rules of the Financial Conduct
Authority ('DTRs') can be found on pages 84 1o 125 {all of which
form part of this Directors’ Report) and in this Directors’ Report.
Certain disclosure requirements for inclusion in the Directors’
Report have been incorporated elsewhere within the Annual
Report. In addition, this Report should be read in conjunction
with likely future developments set out on pages 74 and 77.

The Directors’ Report, together with the Strategic Beport
on pages 2 to 77, forms the Management Report for the
purposes of DTR 4.1.5R requiraments.

Dividends

An interim dividend of 1.8p (FY17: 1.8p) per ordinary share was
paid on 8 June 2018 to those shareholders on the register on

4 May 2018. Subject to shareholder approval at the 2019 AGM,
the Directors are proposing a final dividend for the financial year
ended 31 August 2018 of 3.5p {FY17: 3.6p) per ordinary share.
Thig brings the total dividend for the year to 5.4p (FY17. 5.4p)
per ordinary share, in line with the prior year.

26  McCarthy & Stene ple

Directors

The names of the Directors who were Directors at the end

of FY18 are set out on pages 80 and 83. John White stepped
down from the Board on 24 January 2018 and Clive Fenton
stepped down from the Board on 31 August 2018. Both John
and Clive served for the entire financial year up 1o the date of
their cessation of office. Paul Lester, John Carter and Arun
Nagwaney were all appointed during the course of FY18

as follows:

Director Date of appointment
John Carter 1 October 2017
Paul Lester, CBE 3 January 2018
Arun Nagwaney 17 May 2018

Directors’ interests

Detalis of the Directors’ interests in the share capital of the
Company are set out in the Directors' Remuneration report

on page 120. No Director had any dealings in the shares of the
Company between 31 August 2018 and the date of this Report.

Directors’' Powers

Subject to the Company's Articles of Association, the
Companies Act 2006, any directions given by the Company

by special resolution and any relevant statutes and regulations,
the business of the Company, including in relalion 1o the
allotment and issuance of ordinary shares, is managed by

the Baard which may exercise all the powers of the Campany.
Matters reserved for determination by the Board are set out
on page 88 of the Corparate Governance Report.

Directors’ insurance and indemnities

During FY18 and to the date of this Report qualifying third party
indemnity provisions gaverned by the Companies Act 2006
were in place, under which the Group has agreed to indemnify
the Directors, former Directors and the Group General Counsel
and Company Secretary, together with those who have held

or hold these positions as officers of other Group companies
or of assaciate or affilated companies, to the extent permitted
by law and the Articles, against all liability arising in respect of
any act or omission in the course of perfarming their duties.

The Group maintains at its expense a directors’ and officers’
liability insurance policy to provide cover for legal action brought
against the Directors. Tha policy does not provide cover where
the Director or officer has acted fraudulently or dishonestly.

A review is carried out on an annual basis to ensure that the
Board remains satisfied that an appropriate level of cover is

in place. The Group has also granted indemnities to each of
the current Directors of the Company and its main trading
subsidiary tc the extent permitted by law. In general terms,
the indernnities protect Directors to the extent permissible by
law from alt costs and expenses incurred in the defence of any
civil or criminal proceedings in which judgment is given in their
favour or the proceedings are otherwise disposed of without
finding fault or where there is a successful application to court
for relief from liability. :
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Articles of Association

The Company's Articles of Association contain regulations
which deal with matters such as the appointment and removal
ot Directors, Directors’ interests and proceedings at general
and Board meetings.

The Articles of Association may be amended in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006 by way of a
special resolution of the Company’s shareholders.

Share capital and control

At 31 August 2018 and at 31 August 2017 there were
537,329,434 ordinary shares of 8p nominal value in issue.
No shares have been issued or bought back and cancelled
during the year. There are no shares held in treasury.

The Company has one class of share; ardinary shares cf 8p
nominal value, each of which carries the right to one vote at
general meetings of the Company and to an equal proportion
of any dividends declared and paid. The rights and obligations
attached to the ordinary shares are govarned by UK law and
the Company's Articles of Association.

Ordinary shareholders are entitied to receive notice of, and to
attend and speak at, general meetings. On a show of hands,
every shareholder present in person or by proxy {or a duly
authorised corporate representative) shail have one vote and,
on a poll, every member who is present in person or by proxy
{or a duly authorised corporate representative) shall have one
vote for every share held by that member.

There are no restrictions on the transfer of the Company's
ordinary shares and there are no shares carrying special

rights with regards to controt of the Company. The Company

is not aware of any agreements between shareholders that may
result in restrictions on the transfer of shares or on vating rights.
Apart from the Relationship Agreement described below, there
are no specific restrictions on the size of a holding or on the
exercise of voling rights which are governed by the Articles

of Association and prevailing legislation. No person has any
special rights of control over the Company's share capital

and all issued shares are fully paid.

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out on
page 170 in note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

Relationship Agreement with Anchorage
Capital Group

On 16 May 2018 the Company entered into a Relationship
Agreement with Anchorage. Under the terms of the Relationship
Agreement, for as long as its shareholding in the Company is
more than 15 per cent, Anchorage is entitled to nominate one
Non-Executive Director (the 'Nominee Director’) to the Board of
the Company and to nominate one Board observer. On 17 May
2018 Arun Nagwaney was appointad as the Nominee Director.
In accordance with the terms of the Relationship Agreement,
Arun Nagwaney has also been appointed to the Nomination
Committee. Arun Nagwaney is not entitled to payment of

any fees in connection with his directorship.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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The right of Ancherage to appoeint a Nominee Director and
a Board Observer will fall away if Anchorage's shareholding
falls below 15 per cent.

While the Relationship Agreement is in place, Anchorage

has agreed that it will not acquire any shares in the Company
which would result in it (and its concert parties) being interested
in excess of 29.9 per cent of the total voting rights of the
Company. in addition, Anchorage will not solicit any praxies or
votes frorn any other shareholders or actively co-operate with
others to obtain, or consolidate control of the Company.

As Anchorage's interest in the voting rights of the Company is
less than 30 per cent, it is not a controlling shareholder.

Resolutions to allot, issue and buy back shares

Shareholder authority will be sought each year to authorise
the Directors to allot new shares and to disapply pre-emption
rights and to make market purchases of the Company’s
ordinary shares.

The Group intends to renew the Directors' powers to issue
and buy back shares at each AGM. At the Group's AGM

on 24 January 2018 the Directors were authorised to issue
shares up to a maximum nominal amount of £14 328,783
and empowered to issue shares on a non pre-emptive basis
up 10 a8 maximum nominal amount of £2,149,317 for general
use and a further £2,149,317 for use in connection with an
acquisition or other capital investment.

The Directors were also authorised to buy back up to
53,732,943 shares representing 10% of the Company’s issued
share capital. No purchases have been made pursuant to this
authority and a resohution will be put to shareholders at the
2019 AGM to renew the authority, in accordance with relevant
institutional guidelines. The Directors will only purchase the
Company's shares in the market if they believe it is in the best
interests of sharehclders generally.
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Substantial shareholdings

As at 31 August 2018 and as at 12 November 2018, the Company had received formal notification of the foilowing holdings in its

shares under the OTRs'.

Numberof % interestin

Numberof % interestin shares  voting rights

shares disclosed voting rights  disclosed as at as at 12

Name of notifying as at 31 as at 31 12 November November

entity/nature of holding' August 2018 August 2018 2018 2018
Anchorage Capital Master

Offshore Limited (indirecty 156,023,665 29.04 156,023,665 29.04

Prudential plc group of companies (indirect)® 51,812,848 964 51,812,848 9.64

The Gokdman Sachs Group, Ing {indirect) 49,829,532 9.27 47,001,096° 875

Royal London Asset Managemnent Limited (direct) 43,063,863 8.01 42,394,191 7.88

Investec Asset Management Limited 27,684,132 515 27,684,132 515

Information provided to the Company under the DTRs is publicly available via the reguiatory information service and on the

Company’s website.

Note:

T Notification is enly required when the next applicable percentage threshoid is crossed, meaning these holdings may have changed sinca notification was last required

2 Includes contracts for difference ("CfDs ') representing 48,785,237 voting rghts

3 Includes nght to recall 2,000,000 lcaned shares

4 Inciuges open stock foan of 2,922,975 shares and Swaps/ClDs representing 36,004,050 voting rights
5 Includes open stock loan of 2,327, 187 shares and swaps/Cis representing 34,952, 726 voting nights.

Significant agreements with change of
control provisions

The Company has in place a revolving credit facility dated
19 December 2014 (as amended by an amendment letter
dated 10 February 2015, a supplemental agreement dated
23 May 2016 and further amended by a supplemental
agreement dated 21 February 2018). Agreements for the
revolying credit facility and the Group's joint venture with
Somerset Care relating to YLMS both contain termination
provisions that could be triggered in certain circumstances,
inctuding if any person or group of persons acting in concert
gain control of the Company.

In the event of a takecver or change of control fexcluding
an internal reorganisation) outstanding awards under the
Group's LTIP, ABP and Sharesave plans may, subject to
any performance conditions, vest and become exercisabie.

There are no agreemernits between the Group and its Directors
and employees providing for compensation for loss of office
or ernployment {(whether through resignation, purported
redundancy or otherwise} in the event of a takeover bid.
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Political donations

By way of a special resoiution approved at the AGM on

24 January 2018, shareholders authorised the Company to
make political donatians and political expenditure up to a
maximum of £100,000. During the year the Group did not
make any political donations or incur any potential expenditure.
Although the Group has na intention of making any pclitical
donations or incuring any potential expenditure it is possible
that certain routine activities may unintentionally fal within the
broad scope of the Companies Act 2006 provisions relating
to political donations and expenditure. As in previous years,
the Directors are therefore seeking renewat of the authority at
the forthcoming AGM, in accordance with relevant institutional
guideiines.

Human Rights

The Group supports the United Nations' Universal Declaration
of Human Rights and has policies and processes in place

te ensure that the Group acts in accordance with principles

in relation to areas such as anti-corruption, diversity,
whistleblowing and the requirements of the Modern Slavery Act
2015, All suppliers are required to confirm compliance with the
Group's Modern Slavery Palicy which was implemented in FY17.

The Group’s slavery and human trafficking statement required
under the Modern Slavery Act 2015 is available to view on our
website: www.mccarthyandstonegroup.co.uk
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Equal apportunities and diversity

The Group regards equality and fairness as a fundamental

right of all of its employees regardless of status, religious befief,
gender, sex, sexual orientation, age, colour, race or ethnic
origin. The Group believes that employees should be treated
with dignity and respect and everyone is given an equal
opportunity to reach their potential. It is the Group's firm
intention to create a climate free from bullying and harassment
and in which all employees feel confident in raising concerns

of this kind and have thern dealt with quickly, sensitively and
effectively. Every employee is required o support the Group

to meet its commitmeant 10 provide equal opportunities in
employment and avoid uniawful discrimination. The Group
does not tolerate any acts of discrimination at any level and

has an Equality and Diversity Policy underpinned by an Equality
and Diversity Staterment 1o reflect this. The policy and statement
are communicated to all employees and are available on the
Group's intranet.

It is also the Group's padlicy that people with disabilities have
full and fair consideration for all vacancies and disability is not
seen 1o be an inhibitor to employment or career develcpment,
Appropriate arrangements are made for the continued
employment and training, career development and promotion
of disabled persons empioyed by the Group. In the event

of any employee becoming disabled while with the Group,
their needs and abilities wouwld be assessed and, where
possible, we would work to retain themn and seek to offer
alternative employment to them if they were no longer able

to continue in their current role.

Employee engagement

The Group currently operates two share schemes which
are open to all employees, a Sharesave plan and a Share
Incentive Plan, both of which are designed to provide
employees with the opportunity to participate in the
performance and success of the Group. Neither scheme
is subject to perfagrmance conditions.

Throughout the year the Group continued Ic provide
employees with regular updates through an all-employee
quarterly newsletter. The Group also held a number of
business updates during the year, led by the CEQ, where
employees were made aware of financial and economic
factors affecting the performance of the Group and were
provided with the gpportunity to feed back fo senior
management.

Following the announcement of the Group's new strategy
on 25 September 2018, the CEQ and CFQ visited each of
the Group's regional coffices to present the new strategy

to the business and seek direct feedback from employees.
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The Group is also intending to conduct an empioyee survey
to canvass views from the workforce in 2019, The survey
will enable the Group to assess employee engagement and
identity any issues that need to be addressed.

In light of the new UK Corporate Governance Code which
will apply to the Group in FY20, the Board are already
considering ways to ensure effactive engagement with the
workforce including the possibility of establishing a mare
formal ernployee forum to canvass views and the designation
of a specific Non-Executive Director (o be responsitle for
stakeholder engagement.

Financial Risk Management

Details of the Group's financial instruments and its exposure
to price risk, credi risk. liquidity risk and cash flow risk are set
out in note 27 to the financial statements on pages 172 to 176.

Going concern

The Directors have assessed the Group's business activities
and the factors likely to affect future performance in light

of current and anticipated economic conditions. In making
their assessment the Directors have reviewed the Group's
tatest budget and forecasts and considered reasonably
possible downside sensitivities in performance and mitigating
actions. The Directors are confident that they are satisfied

that the Group has adequate resources in place to continue

in operational existence for a period of at least 12 months from
the date of approval ¢f the financial statements. For this reason,
they have continued to adopt the going cancern basis in
preparing the Annual Report. Further information on the going
concern judgement can be found in note 1 to the financial
statements cn page 152.

In making the Going Concern Statement and the Viability
Statement, the Directors have taken into account the 'Guidance
on Risk Management, Internal Controls and Related Financial
anrd Business Reparting' issued by the Financial Reporting
Council in September 2014.

Disclosure of information to the auditor
Each Director confirms that;

{a) so far as the Director is aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the Caompany’s auditor is unaware; and

(5} the Director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have
taken as a Director in order to make himself/herself aware of
any relevant audit information and to establish that the
Company's auditor is aware of that information.

The confirmation is given and should be interpreted in
accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the
Companies Act 2008.
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Greenhouse gas
emission reporting

This section has been prepared in accordance with the
Group’s regulatory obligation to repart greenhouse gas {GHG)
emissions pursuant ta Section 7 of the Companies Act 2006
(Strategic Report and Directors' Report) Regulations 2013,

During the period from 1 September 2017 to 31 August 2018,
the Group's total Scope 1 and 2 {{ocation-based) smissions
frorn the combustion of fuels and the purchase of electricity
purchased were 17,678 tCO,e. Scope 3 emissions totalled
1,241 tCOse.

The Group's Scope 1 and 2 {location-based) emissions
increased by 8% in the year, as a result of improved data
availability, meaning the scepe of reporting increased to now
include Yourlife Management Services. This is the first year
the Group has disclosed its Scope 3 emissions from business
trave! and waste disposal.

The tabils below shows the Group's GHG emissions for the
year ended 31 August 2018,

Greenhouse gas emissions in tCO.e FY18
Combustion of fuels {Scope 1) 10,006
Electricity purchased for our own use

{Scope 2: location-based} 7672
Electricity purchased for our own use

{Scope 2: market-tased) 3,013
Business travel (indirect scope 3) 1157
Waste (Indirect scope 3) 85

Scope 2 emissions calculated using the market-based approach use suppler
specific emission factors and are calculated and reparted in 100,

Total Emissions 2017-2018 (tCO.e)

10,006
tCOe

7672
tCQ.e

® Scope 1
® Scope 2 (location-based)
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Methodology

The Group quantifies and reports its organisational GHG
emigsions according to the methodology set cut in the
Greenhouse Gas Protoco! Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standard published by the Warld Resources
Instilute. The Group works with its sustainability consultant,
Carbaon Credentials, to convert its activity data to tonnes

of carbon dioxide equivalent using the UK Government 2018
Conversion Factors for Company Reporting.

This report has been prepared in accordance with the
amendment to the GHG Protocol’s Scope 2 Guidance;
the Group has therefore reported both a location-based
and market-based Scope 2 emissions figure. The Scope 2
market-based figure reflects emissions from electricity
purchasing decisions that the Group has made during the
reporting period.

When quantitying emissions using the market-based approach

the Group has used a supplier specific emission factor where
possible. If these factors were unavailable, a residual mix
emission factor was used. This approach is in line with the
GHG Protocol Scope 2 Data Hierarchy.,

The Group has alsc chosen tc report its emissions in relation
to the number of managed developments {379).

Greenhouse gas Location-based Market-based

emissions (tCO,e) approach approach
FY18 FY18

Total Scope 1 and 2 17,678 13,019

Total Scope 1, 2and 3 18,918 14,260

tCQ.e per

Managed Development 466 344

The emissions intensily calcudation is based on tolal scope 1 and 2 emissions
and a figure of 378 managed developmenis for the period 1 September 2017
to 31 August 2018
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Reporting boundaries and limitations

The Group consolidates its organisational boundary
according to the operational control approach. Emissions
for all significant sites have been disclosed, which includes
the Group's offices, construction sites and developments.

The GHG sources that constitute the Group's aperational
boundary for FY18 are:

- Scope 1: Natural gas combustion within boilers, diesel
combustion within generators and road fual combustion
within vehicles

+ Scope 2: Purchased electricity consumption for the
Group's use

+ Scope 3: Emissions from transport in vehicles not
owned or operated by the Group and the disposal of
the Group's waste

The Group has been unable to gather sufficient information
on refrigerant consumption across the organisation and
business travel from YLMS, therefore these are excluded
from the disclosure,

Assumptions and estimations

fmproving the Group's data collection processes has been
a key priority this year, however several assumptions have
been applied where activity data is missing or not currently
collected.

Accurate records of diesel combustion in generators at
constructicn sites were not avaitable in time for reporting.
Therefore, an estimation was used based on average
diesel consumption at each site as well as available
records from procurement.

Mileage information for the Group's business trave!
{indirect scope 3} was also not available at the time of
reporting. An estimation was made using cost data.

In some cases, missing cata has been estimated using
extrapolation of available data from the reporting period.

Improving performance

The Group monitors energy consumption at its MSMS
and YLMS sites in detail to identify opportunities to improve
energy performance. The Group has begun a process of
_collecting more accurate data for construction sites and
offices. This will help the Group to understand more about
consumption and energy use, and 1o reduce emissions
going forward. FY18 was the first year the Group has
reported on YLMS. The Group are engaged with ESOS
phase 2 and are building on the outcomes of its
invelverment in ESOS Phase 1.
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Post balance sheet events

There were no events after the reporting period that required
adjustment in the FY18 financial staternents.

On 25 September 2018 the Group announced its new strategy
aimed at improving margins, rightsizing the operational cost
base and evalving the business model to meet the changing
needs of our customers. Total exceptional costs or ¢.£25m

are expected across the life of the business transformation
programme.

For further information please refer to the Strategy section
of this Report and to note 31 within notes to the financial
statements on page 180.

Annual General Meeting

The 2019 AGM will be held on Wednesday 23 January
2019. Details of the Company's AGM and the resolutions
tc be proposed will be set out in a separate Notice of
Mesting sent 1o shareholders and available on the
Group's corporate website:
www.mccarthyandstonegroup.co.uk/investors/
shareholder-centre

The Directors’ Report was approved by the Board of
Directors on 6 November 2018.

Signed on behalt of the Board

Patrick Hole
Group General Counsel and Company Secretary
12 November 2018

Ve
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B Statement of

Directors’ Responsibilities

Financial statements and accounting records

The Directars are responsible for preparing the Annual Repart
including the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Birectors to prepare financtal
statements for each financial year. The Directors are
required by the IAS Regulation to prepare the Group
financial statements under IFRS as adopted by the European
Union and have elected to prepare the Company financial
statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting
Standards}, including FRS 102, the Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and Repubiic

of reland, and applicable law.

The financial statements are alsc required by law to be properly
prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and
Article 4 of tha IAS Regulation. Under comparny law, the
Directors must not approve the financial staternents unless
they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group and of the profit

or loss of the Company and the Group for that period.

In preparing the Company financial statements,
the Directors are required 1o

* Select suitable accounting policies and then apply
them consistently

* Make judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent

+ State whether applicable UK Accounting Standards
have been followsd, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements

« Prepare the financial statements on the going concern
basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
Company will continue in business

International Accounting Standard 1 requires that financial
statements present fairly for each financial year the relevant
entity's financial position, financial performance and cash
flows. This requires the faithful representation of the effects
of fransactions, other events and conditions in accordance
with the definitions and recognition criteria for assets, liabilities,
income and expenses set aut in the international Accounting
Standards Board's ‘Framework for the preparation and
presentation of financial statements'. In virtuaily afl
circumstances, a fair presentation will be achieved by
compliance with all applicable IFRS.
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Directors are also required to:
« Properly select and apply accounting policies

* Present information, including accounting policies,
in a manner that provides relevant, reliable, comparable
and understancahle information

* Provigde additional disclosures when compliance with the
specific requirements in IFRS are insufficient to enable users
to understand the impact of particular transactions, other
events and conditions on the emtity’s financial positicn and
financial performance

= Make an assessment of the Company's and the Group's
(as the case may be) ability to continue as a going concemn

The Direclors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company's
and the Group's transactions cn an individual and consolidated
basis and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the Company and the Group and enable
them to ensure that the financial statements comply with

the Companies Act 20086. They are also responsible for
safequarding the assets of the Company and the Group

and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention

and datection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity
of the corporate and financial information included on the
Group's website. Legislation in the United Kingdormn governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may
differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Fair, balanced and understandable

The Board considers, on the advice of the Risk and Augit
Committee, that the Annual Report, taken as a whole, is fair,
balanced and understandable and provides the information
necessary for shareholders to assess the Company’s and the
Group's position, performance, business model and strategy.
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Directors’ responsibility statement
Each Director confirms that, to the best of his or her knowledge:

a) the Group and Company financial statements in this
Annual Report, which have been prepared in accordance
with the applicable financial reporting framewaork, give a true
and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and
profit ar loss of the Company and of the Group taken as a
whole; and

b} the Annual Report includes a fair review cf the development
and performance of the business and the position of the
Company and the Group taken as a whole, together with a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties they face.

This responsibility statement was approved by the Board of
Directors on 8 November 2018 and is signed on its behalf by:

John Tonkiss Rowan Baker
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
12 November 2018 12 Novernber 2018

=

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

McCarthy & Stone plc Annual Report

133



STRATEGIC REPORT CORPORATE GOVERNANCE | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Financial Statements

Graphic removed

Fairway View
Brough, East Yorkshire

Located in the lovely town of Brough, Fairway Court consists
of 35 one and two bedroom apartments designed exclusively
for the over 60's. The development is iocated within easy level
watking distance of local shops and amenities.

There are frequent busas to the nearby village of Elloughton
and regular train services to Hull, Doncaster, Leeds and York.
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B [ndependent Auditor’s Report to the
Members of McCarthy & Stone pic

Report on the audit of the financial statements
Opinion
In Qur opinion:

e The financial statements of McCarthy & Stone pic {the ‘Company'} and its subsidiaries {the ‘Group’) give a true and fair view
of the state of the Group’s and of the Company's affairs as at 31 August 2018 and of the Group’s profit for the year then ended

» The Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accorgance with International Financia! Reperting Standards
('IFRSs") as adopted by the European Union

» The Company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generalty Accepted
Accounting Practice, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 ‘The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK
and Republic of ireland’

» The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards
the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation

We have audited the financial statements which comprise

* The consolidated statement of comprehensive income

* The consclidated and Company statermenits of financial position

* The consolidated and Company statements of changes in equity

» The consolidated cash flow staternent

» Therelated notes 1 to 31 of the consclidated financial statements and notes 1 to 10 of the Company financial statements

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial statements is applicable faw
and IFRSs as adopted by the European Union. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the

Company financial statements is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including FRS 102 ‘The Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” {United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {UK) (ISAs (UK} and applicable law.

Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements section of our Report.

We are independent of the Group and the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financiaf staternents in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council's {the 'FRC’s’) Ethical Standard as applied to listed
public interest entities, and we have fuffilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements, We confirm
that the non-audit services prohibited by the FRC’s Ethical Standard were not provided to the Group or the Company.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

P
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Summary of our audit approach

Key audit matters

The key audit matters that we identified in the current year were:

+ Cost capitalisation of overheads

+ Valuation of shared equity receivables

¢ Carrying value of goodwill

Cost capitalisation of overheads and valuation of shared equity receivables were also identified as
key audit matters in the prior year.

Carrying value of goodwill was identified as a key audit matter in the current year due to the
heightened risk of impairment arising from the ongoing difficult trading conditions and the strategic
review announced on 25 September 2018 which moves away from a growth strategy and instead
targets a greater relurn to respond to the current challenging market envirgnment.

Materiality

We determined materiality for the Group financial staterments at £3.0m (FY17: £4.6m) representing
5% of profit before tax and exceptional administrative expenses (FY17; 5% of profit before tax).

In the currant year, we excluded exceptional administrative expenses when determining the basis
for materiality because the costs, principally costs of the strategic review, do not form part of the
underlying frading performance of the business.

Scoping

We performed full scope audits on the four largest group entities:
« McCarthy & Stone plc

s McCarthy & Stone (Developments) Limited

» McCarthy & Stone Retirament Lifestyles Limited

* McCarthy & Stene {Extra Care Living) Limited

These are the principal entities within the Group and account for 100% of the Group's revenue,
100% of the Group's profit before tax and 98% of the Group's net assets.

Significant
changes in
our approach

Apart from the addition of a key audit matter relating to carrying vaiue of goodwill and change in
basis for materiafity as described above, there were no other significant changes in our approach
during the year.
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Bl Independent Auditor’s Report
to the Members of McCarthy & Stone plc continued

Conclusions relating to principal risks, going concern and viability statement

Going cancern

We have reviewed the Divectors' statement i note 1 to the financial statements about whether they considered it appropriate
to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing them and their identification of any material uncertainties to the
Group's and Company's ability to continue o do so over a period of at feast 12 months from the date of approval of the
financial staternents.

We are required to slate whether we have anything material to add or draw attention to in relation 1o that statement required by
Listing Rule 9.8.6R(3} and report if the statement is materially inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in the audit.

We confirm that we have nothing materiat to report, add or draw attention to in respect of these matters.

Principal risks and viability statement

Based solely on reading the Directors' statements and considering whether they were consistent with the knowledge we cbtained
in the course of the audit, including the knawledge obtained in the evaluation of the Directors' assessment of the Group's and the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, we are required to state whether we have anything material to add or draw
attention to in refation to:

* The disclosures on pages 74-77 that describe the principal risks and explain how they are being managed or mitigated

+ The Directors’ confirmation on page 73 that they have carried out a robust assessment of the principal risks facing the Group
including those that would threaten its business model, future perfarmance, solvency or liquidity

» The Directors’ explanation on page 73 as to how they have assessed the prospects of the Group, over what period thaey hava
done so and why they consider that period to be appraopriate, and their statement as to whether they have a reasonable
expectation that the Group wil be able to continue in operation 2nd meet its liabilities as they fall due over the period of their
assessment, including any retated disclosures drawing attention to any necessary qualifications or assumptions

We are also required to report whether the Directors’ statement relating to the prospects of the Group required by Listing Rule
9.8.6R(3) is materially inconsistent with cur knowiedge obtained in the audit.

We confirm that we have nothing material to report, add or draw attention to in respect of these matters.
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Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financiat
statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstaterent (whether or not due to
fraud) that we identified. These matters included those which had the greatest effect on the overall audit strategy, the allocation
of resources in the audit and directing the efforts of the engagement team.

These matters were addressed in the context of cur audit of the financial staternents as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter description

How the scope of our audit responded to the key audit matter

Key gbaervaliohs

Cost capitalisation of overheads

Refer to page 98 (Report of the FRisk and Audit
Committee) and note 3 (Critical accounting
judgements and key sources of estimation
uncertainty).

Inventory comprises land held for development,
sites in the course of construction and finished
stock. The value of inventory as at 31 August 2018
is £817.5m (FY17: £760.4m) which represents the
most significant itern in the Consolidated Statement
of Financial Position. During the year overheads
totaling £23.6m (FY17: £23.2m) were capitalised,
representing 4.7% (FY17, 5.1%) of inventory
additions (excluding part-exchange properties).
Amounts released to cost of sales totalled £20.6m
{FY17: £20.7m).

On an annual basis management perform a

. detailed exercise to determine the proportion of
departmental costs which relate directly to site
developments versus general business overheads.

We consider the allocation and recognition of
overhead costs within inventory to represent an
area of risk on account cf the levet of judgement
invalved in:

« Identifying which costs are capable of being
capitalised versus expensed in accordance
with the criteria set out in |1AS 2 fnventories’

* Determining the proportion of Planning, Design,
Commercial, Construction and Health & Safety
costs incurred in bringing inventories to their
present location and condition

Specifically this judgement set out above impacts
the valuation of inventory in the Consolidated
Statemment of Financial Position and the gross
margin recognised on each unit sale. Given the
levet of judgement applied and the potential for
manipulation, we consider this ta represent a
fraud risk.

Our procedures to address this key audit
matter invoived:

* Assessing the design and implementation of
relevant controls regarding the determinaticn of
the capitalisation rates applied by management

* |iaising with seni¢r departmental management
to understand the structure and nature of their
department and the process deployed in
determining the allocation of cost

* Performing a review of all departments within the
business and assessing the nature of the related
costs against the criteria for capitalisation of
overheads under IAS 2 ‘fnventaries’

= Testing a sample of personnel included within the
capitalisation rate calculations to validate whether
the capitalisation rates were appropriate and
consistent with job roles

» Reviewing personnel data to identify any
individuals or roles omitted from the capitalisation
rate calculations

= Analysing spend by department in the year based
on changes in headcount and department profile

= Checking the mechanical accuracy of the
calculations to identify anomalies and performing
a recalculation of the total costs capitalised by
department

= Performing sensitivity analysis over ithe

capitalisation rates applied by management

Assessing the completeness and accuracy of

disclosures within the financial statements and

in accordance with IFBS

The resuilts of our
audit work were
satistactory and

we concurred with
the vatuation of
overheads capitalised
into inventory.
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to the Members of McCarthy & Stone plc continued

Key audit matter description

How the scope of sur gsudit responded to the key audit matter

Key observationa

Valuation of shared equity receivables

Refer lo page 98 (Report of the Risk and Audit
Committee), note 3 (Critical accounting
judgements and key scurces of estimation
uncertainty} and note 27 (Financial risk
management).

The Group has historically offered shared equity
based arrangements via a numnber of different
schemes to its customers, While all remaining
schemes were closed to new additions in FY17,
a receivable totalling £25.0m (FY17: £28.9m),
representing the net present value of the Group's
interast, is held on the Consclidated Statement
of Financial Position. Of this amount, £17.7m
(FY17: £198.3m) was held within the New Shared
Equity Scheme.

The Group’s assessment and supporting
calculation of the valuation of the receivable
is dependent on a number of assumptions,
which are inherentiy judgemental due to their
forward-locking nature. Assumptions include:

» Future house price inflation

* Discount rate

s Expected maturity date

+ Adjustments to reflact new build premiurns

Of these assumptions, we consider future house
price inflation and the discount rate applied by
management to represent significant areas of
judgement whereby marginal movements could
result in a material change in the valuation of the
receivable recognised within the Consolidated
Staterment of Financial Position and the
associated mavements recorded in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Income, Given the level of judgement applied and
the potential for maniputation, we consider this to
represent a fraud risk.

Qur procedures to address this key audit
matter involved:

* Assessing the design and implementation of
relevant controls regarding the determination
of assurriptions applied and the calculation and
review of the fair value adjustment recorded

= Consulting with internal real estate specialists
to identify applicabie trends within the housing
market and obtaining relevant independent
sector data {e.g. Office for National Statistics)
on which 1o benchmark the assumptions and
methodaology applied by management

* Comparing the cash received on a sample of
recemptions within the year to the carrying
value of the receivable {as an indicator of
whether carrying value reflects fair value)

= Checking the mechanical accuracy of the fair
value adjustment calculation

* Perfarming sensitivity analysis over the future
house price inflation and discount rate applied
by management

* Assessing the completeness and accuracy of
disclosures within the financial statements and
in accordance with IFRS

The results of our
audit work were
satistactory and we
concurred with the
valuation of the shared
equity receivables.
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How the scope of our audit respanded 1o the key sudit matter
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Key obsarvatians

Carrying value of goodwill

Refer to page 98 (Report of the Risk and Audit
Committeg), note 3 {Critical accounting jucgements
and key sources of estimation uncertainty), note 12
{Gooawillj and note 15 fimpairment Testing).

As at 31 August 2018 the Group held a goodwill
balance of £41.7m (F¥17: £41.7m) which could be
at risk of impairment due to the ongoing difficult
trading conditions and the strategic review
announced on 25 September 2018 which moves
away from a growth strategy and instead targets
a greater return to respond to the current
challenging market environment.

For the purpose of gonodwill allocation and
impairment testing, management has identified

a single group of all cash-generating units (known
collectively as the CGU). The valuation of these
assets is considered biannually with the recoverable
amount determined via a discounted cash flow
(value in use) model. The model includes a number
of assumplions, which are inherently judgemental
due to their forward-iooking nature. Assumptions
include:

* Forecast cash flows
= Discount rate
* {ong-term growth rate

Ct these assumptions, we determined that certain
aspects of the foracast cash flows assumptions
(specifically the recuction in build spend, the
consistent sales volume and the consistent unit
sales price) represented the key assumpticns
within the motiel and an area of potential fraud
due to the levei of sensitivity.

Qur procedures to address this key audit
matter involved:

+ Assessing the design and implementation of
relevant controlg in regards to the determination
of the recaverabie amount of the CGU

= Challenging management on the existence of
external impairment indicators including the
market capitalisation at 31 August 2018 against
net assets

« Invaiving internal valuation specialists to identity
an acceptable range of discount rates using
market comparable information

s |nquiring of intermal and externat parties involved
in the strategic review process to understand the
rationale for the forecast cash flows, including
the key cash savings that drive future
performance

« Comparing long-term forecast performance to
industry data to challenge the feasibility of
management's forecasts

* Checking the arithmetical accuracy of the
recoverahle amaunt calculations

* Reviewing the sensitivity analysis prepared by
management and the impact on the recoverabie
amount of the GGU, including challenging the
reasonably possible scenarios on which the
analysis was based

* Assessing the completeness and accuracy of
gisclosures within the financial statements and
in accordance with IFRS

The results of our
audit work were
satisfactory and we
concluded that the
assumptions applied
in the modet were
within an acceptable
range.

We concurred with
managemen that
there s sufficient
headroom such that
no impairment to
goodwill is required.
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Bl Independent Auditor’s Report
to the Members of McCarthy & Stone plc continued

Our application of materiality

We define materiality as the magnitude of misstatement in the financial statements that makes it probable that the economic
decisions of a reasonably knowladgeable person would be changed or influenced. We use materiality both in planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements as a whole as follows:

Group financial statements Campany fi
Materlality £3.0m (FY17: £4.6m) £2.4m (FY17: €3.7m)
Basis for 5% of profit before tax and exceptional administrative C.8% (FY17: 0.7%) of net assets
determining expenses (FY17: 5% of profit before tax). Details of the of the Company, capped at 80%
materiality exceptional administrative expenses are disclosed in {FY17: B0%) of Group materiality.
Materiality note 5 1o the financial statements,
Ratlonale for Profit before tax and exceptional administrative expenses was The Company is non-trading and
the benchmark selected as the basis for materiality as this is the measure by  contains the investment in all of the
applied which stakeholders and the market assess the performance  trading compenents in the Group.
of the Group,

Company materiality was capped at a
In the current year, we excluded exceptional agministrative percentage of group materiality to reflect
expenses when determining the basis for materiality because  the overall risks associated with the Group.
the costs, principally costs of the strategic review, do not form
part of the underlying trading performance of the business.

Group materiality - £3.0m

Profit before tax Component matenalty - 1.5m - 2.5m

and exceptional ,* -
administrative -
L]

expenses - £60.1m

Risk and Audit Committee reporting threshold - £0.2m

@ Profit before tax and exceptional ® Group materialty
administrative expenses

We geterminad performance materiality at a level lower than materiality to reduce the probability that, in aggregate, uncorrected
and undetected misstaternents exceed the materiality for the financial statements as a whole. Group performance materiality was
set at £2.1m (FY17: £3.2m), representing 70% (FY17: 70%) of Group materiality.

We agreed with the Risk and Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee all audit differences in excess of £0.2m
(FY17. £0.3m), as well as differences below that threshold that, which in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds,

We also report to the Risk and Audit Committee on disclosure matters that we identified when assessing the overall presentation
of the financial statements.
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An overview of the scope of our audit

The Group has operations across the United Kingdom, split between three geographic divisions and nine regional offices.
All subsidiaries of the Group are managed from the head office in Bournerouth and are subject to a camman control
environment. We scoped the audit by obtaining an understanding of the Group and its environment, including group-
wide controls, and assessing the risks of material misstatement at the Group level.

Based on that assessment, the scope of our audit was focused on the four largest entities within the Group:
s McCarthy & Stone plc

= McCarthy & Stone Developments) Limited

+ McCarthy & Stone Retirement Lifestyles Limited

* McCarthy & Stone (Extra Care Living) Limited

These are the principal entities within the Group and account for 100% (FY17: 100%) of the Group's revenue, 100%
(FY17: 98%) of the Group’s profit before tax and 98% (FY17: 98%) of the Group's net assets. They were also sefected o
provide an appropriate basis for undertaking audit work to address the risks of material misstaternent identified above.

0% 0% 1% 1%

Praofit Net
Revenue

before tax assets

@ Full audit scope ® Full audit scope @ Full audit scope
@& Specified audit procedures @ Specified audit procedures ® Specified audit procedures
@ Review at Group fevel ® Review at Group level @ Review at Group level

QOur audit procedures were performed to levels of materiality ranging from £1.5m to £2.5m (FY17: £3.5m to £4,1m),
We performed audit procedures on specified account balances within:

s McCarthy & Stone (Home Equity [nterests) Limited

« McCarthy & Stone (Equity Interests) Limited

in addition, we performed desktap review procedures over all highly immaterial entities not included in the above. Our audit of
the Company included procedures to test the consolidation process, including carrying out analytical procedures to confirm our
conclusion that there were no significant risks of material misstatement of the aggregated financial information of these components.

The Group audit is performed centrally and inctudes coverage of all nine regional offices within the Group. As part of the audit we
visit three regional offices on a rotational basis with reference to size and complexity amongst other tactors. The purpose of these
visits is to conduct procedures over selected controls that are in place at each regional office.
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Bl Independent Auditor's Report
to the Members of McCarthy & Stone plc continueo

Other information

The Directors are respensibile for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated
in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

in connection with our audit of the financial statements, our respcnsibility is to read the cther information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the finarcial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears o bs materially misstated.

If we tdentify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstaternents, we are required to determine whether there is
a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstaternent of the other information, If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

In this context, matters that we are specifically required to report 10 you as uncorrected material misstatements of the other
information include where we conclude that:

» Fajr, balanced and understandable - the statement given by the Directors that they consider the Annual Report taken as a whole
is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group's position and
performance, business model and strategy, is materially inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in the audit

* Risk and Audit Committee reporting - the section describing the work of the Risk and Audit Committee does not appropriately
address matters comrmunicated by us to the Risk and Audit Committee

* Directors’ staternent of compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Cods - the parts of the Directors’ statement required
under the Listing Rules relating to the company’s comptliance with the UK Corpoerate Governance Code containing provisions
specified for review by the auditor in accordance with Listing Rule 9.8.10R(2} do not properly disclose a departure from a relevant
provision of the UK Corporate Governance Code

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Responsibilities of directors
As exptained more fully in the Directors’ Respansibility Staiement, the Directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial

statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the Directors determine is
necessary to enabile the preparation of financial slatements that are free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Company's ability to continue
as a going cancern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Company or 1o cease operations, or have no realistic atemative

but to do so. -

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are fres from material
misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and 10 issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonabie assurance is a
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accerdance with ISAs (UK} will always detect a material
misstatemnent when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reascnably be expected to influence the econemic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

Details of the extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irreguiarities, including fraud are set cut below.

A turther description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC's website at:
www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.
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Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities,

including fraud

We identify and assess the risks of material misstaternent of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and then
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, including obtaining audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Identifying and assessing potential risks related to irregularities

In identifying and assessing risks of material misstaterment in respect of irregularities, inciuding fraud and non-compliance with
laws and regulations, our pracedures included the following:

* Enquiring of central and regional management, Internal Audit and the Risk and Audit Committee, including obtaining and
reviewing supporting documentation, corcerning the Group's policies and procedures relating to:

- Identifying, evaluating and complying with laws and reguiations and whether they were aware of any instances of
non-compliance

- Deteciing and responding to the risks of fraud and whether they have knowledge of any actual, suspected or aileged fraud
- The internal controls established to mitigate risks related to fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations

* Discussing amongst the engagement tearn and involving relevant internal specialists, including real estate, tax, valuations
and IT specialists, regarding how and where fraud might occur in the financial staternents and any potential indicaters of fraud.
As part of this discussion, we identified potential for fraud in the following areas:

- The judgement made in determining of the capitalisation rates in calculating the proportion of overheads to be capitalised
into inventory

- The derivation of the house price inflation and giscount rates used in the calculation of the fair value of the New Shared Equity
Scheme shared equity receivable

- The reduction in build spend, consistent sales volume and consistent unit sales price assumptions within the cash flow
forecasts used in calculating the recoverable amount of the CGU

= Obtaining an understanding of the legal and regulatory framewark that the Group operates in, focusing on those laws and
regulations that had a direct effect an the financial statements ar that had a fundamental effect on the cperations of the Graup

The key laws and reguiations we considered in this cantext included:
- The Companies Act 2006

- The Listing Rules

-~ UK tax legislation
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the Members of McCarthy & Stone plc continued

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities,
including fraud continued

Audit response to risks identified

As a result of performing the above, we identified cost capitalisation of overheads, valuation of shared equity receivables and
carrying value of goodwill as key audit matters. The key audit matters section of our report explains the matters in more detail
and also describes the specific procedures we performed in response to those key audit matters.

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to risks identified included the following:

* Reviewing the financial statement disclosures and testing to suppaorting decumentation to assess compliance with relevant
laws and regulations discussed above

* Enquiring of central and regional management, the Risk and Audit Committee, in-house legal counsel and external legal
firms concerning actual and potential litigation and claims

» Performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relationships that may indicate risks of material
misstatement due to fraud

* Inspecting minutes of meetings of those charged with governance, reviewing internal audit reports and reviewing
correspondence with tax authorities

» Engaging specialists with specific knowledge on the residential housing market and market risk to provide insight on the
assumptions used in valuing shared equity receivables and calculating the recoverable amount of the CGU respectively

* |n aadressing the risk of fraud through management override of contrals, testing the appropriateness of journal entries and other
adjustments; assessing whether the judgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and
evaluating the business rationale of any significant transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business

We afso communicated relevant identified laws and regulations and potential fraud risks to all engagement tearm members
including internal specialists, and remained alert to any indications of fraud or non-compliance with laws and regulations
throughout the audit.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

in our ¢pinion the part of the Directors’ remuneration report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with
the Companies Act 2006.

tn our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

* The information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements

* The Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Graup and of the Company and their environment obtained in
the course of the audit, we have not identified any material misstaterments in the strategic report or the Directors' Report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
Adequacy of explanations received and accounting records

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in cur opinion:

* We have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

s Adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us

* The Company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.
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Directors’ remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are also required to report if in our opinion certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration
have not been made or the part of the Direclors’ remuneration report to be audited is not in agreement with the accounting
records and retuns.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters,

Other matters i

-

Auditor tenure

Following the recommendation of the Risk and Audit Commitiee, we were appomted by the shareholders on 24 January 2018
to audit the financial statements for the year encling 31 August 2018. The period of total uninterrupted engagement including
previous renewals and reappointments of the firmis 10 years, covering the years ending 31 August 2009 to 31 August 2018.

Consistency of the audit report with the additional report to the Risk and Audit Committee

Our audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the Risk and Audit Committee wef are required to provide in
accordance with 1SAs (UK).

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Gompanies Act
2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company's members those matters we are required to
state to thern in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitied by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibiiity to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as a body, for owr audit work, for this report, or for
the opinions we have formed.

Jacqudiine Holden lz:CA (Senior statutory auditor)

For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor
London, United Kingdom

12 Novermnber 2018
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B Consolidated Statement

of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 August 2018

2018 2017
Nolas £m Em
Continuing operations
Revenue 4 671.6 660.9
Cost of sales (567.0) (530.2}
Gross profit 104.6 130.7
. Other operating income 7 1.3 89
Administrative expenses (44.0) (38.8)
Other operating expenses (8.4) (6.6)
Operating profit 63.5 94.2
Amortisation of brand 5 (2.0) (2.0}
Exceptional administrative expenses 5 (2.0) -
Underlying operating profit 67.5 96.2
Finance income 8 04 16
Finance expense g (5.8) (3.7)
Profit before tax 5 58.1 921
Income tax expense 10 (11.6} (17.7}
Profit for the year from continuing operatlons and total comprehensive income 46.5 74.4
Profit attributable to
Owrers of the Company 46.2 74.2
Non-controlling interests 03 02
46.5 74.4
Notes 1 ta 31 form part of the financial statements shown above. All trading derives from continuing operations.
Earnings per share
Basic {p per share) " 86 13.8
Diluted (p per share) 1 8.6 13.8
Adjusted measures .
Underlying operating profit ] 67.5 96.2
Underlying profit before tax 5 62.1 941
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B Consolidated Statement

- of Financial Position
As at 31 August 2018

2010 207

Noles £m em
Assets
Non-current assetg
Gooawill 12 a7 4.7
intangible assets 13 26.1 276
Property, plant and equipment 14 21 24
Invesiments in joint ventures 0.4 04
Investment preperties 0.2 0.2
Trade and other receivables 17 278 3213
Total non-current assets 98.3 104.4
Current assets
Inventories 16 B17.5 760.4
Trade and other receivables 17 22.4 95
Cash and cash equivalents 25 57.0 407
Total current assets 896.9 810.6
Total assets 995.2 915.0
Equity and liablilitles
Capital and reserves
Share capital 23 430 . 430
Share premiyum 101.6 1016
Retained earnings 617.5 6001
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 7621 144.¢
Non-controlling Interests 1.3 1.0
Total equity 763.4 7457
Current lfabllities ‘
Trade and other payables 12 114.9 854
UK corporation tax 6.5 6.7
Land payables 20 56.9 67.4
Total current liabllities 178.3 159.5
Non-current llabilities
Long-term borrowings 21 51.4 80
Deferred tax liability 18 241 1.8
Total Habilities 2318 169.3
Total equity and lfabilities 995.2 915.0

Notes 1 to 31 form part of the financial statements shown above.
These financial statements were approved by the Board on 12 November 2018 and signed on its behalf by:

John Tonkiss Rowan Baker
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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B Consolidated Statement

of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 August 2018

Non-

Shave Share  Retained controlling Toted
capital  premium  gamings Total inigrests aquity
Notes £m £m £m £m £€m £m
‘Balance at 1 September 2016 43.0 1008 5535 6973 0.8 6&698.1
Profit for the year ’ - - 742 742 02 74.4
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 742 742 0.2 7.4
Transactions with owners of the Company:
Share-based payments 28 - 09 0.9 - 0.9
Dividends 23 - - (28.5) (28.5) - (28.5)
Share issue related costs - tax credit - 08 - 08 - 0.8
Balance at 31 August 2017 43.0 101.6 6001 744.7 1.0 7457
Profit for the year . - 462 46.2 0.3 46.5
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 462 a6.2 0.3 465
Transactions with owners of the Company:
Share-based payments 28 . - 08 0.8 - 0.8
Dividends 23 - - (29.8) (29.6) - {29.6)
Balance at 31 August 2018 43.0 101.6 6175 7621 1.3 7634

Notes 1 to 31 form part of the financia!l statements shown above.
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Hl Consolidated

Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended 31 August 2018

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Restated
2018 2017
Noles £m £m
Net cash flow from operating activities 25 14.8 75
Investing activities
Purchases of property, plant and equipment 14 (0.8) 0.7
Purchases of intangible assets 13 1.1 (0.4)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment - 01
Net cash used In Investing actlvities {1.9) (1.0)
Financing actlvitles.
Issue of long-term borrowings 250.0 2020
Repayment of long-term borrowings (217.0) {258.3)
Dividends paid (29.6) (28.5}
Net cash from/(used In) financing activities 34 (84.8)
Net increase/(decrease) In cash and cash equlvzlents 16.3 (78.3)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 40.7 118.0
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 57.0 407

Prior year comparatives have been restated whereby the repayment of £11.3m of promissary notes, which are classified as

borrowings in the Statement of Financial Position, has been reclassified. Further details can be seen in note 25.

Notes 1 to 31 form part of the inancial statements shown above.
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B Notes to the Consolidated
Financial Statements

1. Significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consclidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistertly applied to all the years presented, untess otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

McCarthy & Stone plc is a public Company limited by shares incorporated in England and Wales under the Companies Act 2006,
The Group financial statements consolidate those of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the ‘Group’) and
include the Group's interest in certain joint ventures where the Group has power over the relevant activities of the entity through
its power to appoint the majority of Directors. The Company financial statements present information about the Company as a
separate entity and not about the Group.

The Group financial statements have been prepared and approved by the Direclors in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the Eurcpean Union {EU IFRS') and have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

Going concern

The Directors consider that the Group is well placed to manage busingss and financial risks in the current economic environment
and have a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate resources 1o continue in operational existence for the foreseeable
future, a period not less than 12 months from the date of this report. In February 2018 the Group extsnded its Revolving Credit
Facility from £200m to £250m for a period of 12 months (existing facility of £200m ends in May 2021). As at the year end date a
total of £43.0m {2017: £10.0m) has been drawn down with a further £57.0m (2017: £40.7m) held on the Consolidated Staterment of
Financial Position in cash, offset by promissory notes of £10.0m {2017: £nil), resulting in net cash of £4.0m {2017: £30.7m}. The level
of drawdown on the RCF fluctuates during the year however the Group operates within a minimum headroom requirement of
£50.0rm throughout the year. if headroom were at risk, management can take mitigating action by aborting uncomrmitted land
purchases and related build costs.

In making our assessment as to the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and managing the related funding risk, we have
considered forecast net debt levels reflecting on interest cover, gearing and tangible net asset vaiue covenants with no breaches
identified. Accordingly, the Directors continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing these Consolidated Financial
Statements. Further information on the Group's borrowings is given in note 21,

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the results of the Company and its subsidiaries. For the purposes of
consolidaticn, subsidiaries are entifies which are controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when:

* |t has power over the entity through existing rights that give the ability to direct the refevant activities of the entity
* |tis exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvermnent with the entity
= |t has the ability to use its power over the entity to affect the amount of the investor's returns

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line
with those used by the Group. Allintra-Group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Nen-controlling interests in subsidiaries are identified separately from the Group's equity therein. The interests of non-controlling
shareholders may initially be measured at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the fair value of the
acquiree's identifiable net assets. The choeice of measurement is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Subsequent to
acquisition, the carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus the non-
controliing interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising from a business combination is recognised as an asset at the date that control is attained (the acquisition date}.
Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer's previcusly held equity interest (if any) in the entity over the net of the acquisition date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill is aliocated to McCarthy & Stone (Developments) Limited, which consolidates all
cash-generating units ('CGUSs’) of the Group. This is the lowest level at which goodwill is manitored internally. Goodwill arose on
acquisition in 2009 of the assets and liabilities of Monarch Realisations 1 plc and therefore management consider it appropriate

1o allocate goodwill across the business in aggregate. The CGLU is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when there is
an indication that the CGU may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of the CGU is less than the carrying amount of the CGL, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU and then to the other assets of
the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the CGU.
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1. Significant accounting policies continued

Revenue recognition
Revenue is measured at fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods
supplied stated net of discounts, rebates, VAT and other sales taxes.

Revenue recognised in the Consclidated Staterment of Comprehensive Income but not yet invoiced is held on the Statement of
Financial Positicn within 'Trade and other receivables’. Revenue invoiced tut not yet recognised in the Consclidated Statement
of Comprehensive Income is held on the Consclidated Statement of Financial Positicn within *Trade and other payables'.

Revenue is classified as follows:

Unit sales

Revenue reprasents the consideration received from the sale of leasehold interests in retirement apartments and freshoid
interests in houses and burngalows and is recognised on legal completion, being the point at which the transfer of risks and
rewards of cwnership has substantially occurred. Where the Group commits on completion to provide an additional cash
amount above an offer given by a third-party part-exchange provider, this additional cash amount is recognised as a
deduction from revenue. Cash incentives are considared to be a discount from the purchase price offered to the acquirer
and are therefore accounted for as a reduction of revenue.

Freehold reversionary interests {‘FRIs’} revenue

FRis in respect of developed sites are periodically sold to third parties. Revenue arising from these sales is recognised only
to the extent that the underlying leasehold interest in the retirement apartment has been contractually sold.

Segmental analysis

IFRS B ‘Operating Segments’ establishes standards for reporting information about operating segments and related disclosures,
products and services, geographical areas and mgzjor custorners. The Group conducts it activities through a single operating
segmant, consequently, no detailed segment infarmation has been presented.

None of the Group's customers represented more than 10% of the Group’s revenue generated from the building of retirement
developments for any reporting period presented herein.

Other operating income
COther operating income incluges management services income, net rental income, customer extras, income from insurance claims,
profits arising from the dispesal of undeveloped fand sites and profits ansing from the realisation of shared equity receivables.

Management services income relates to the management of service charge trusts, estate management and the provision of
care and domestic assistance to residents within our developments. [ncome is recognised as these services are provided.

Finance income

Income is recognised as interest accrues, using the effective interest rate method, being the rate used te discount the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument.

Cost of sales

Costs directly attributable to the unit sales are included within cost of sales. This includes the cost of bringing the inventory into
use and regional marketing costs that are directly attributable to sales, including show flat running costs and estate agent referral
feas. Cost of sales are recognised an a unit-by-unit basis, by reference te the forecast future margin across the development.

The gain or loss arising on the sale of part-exchange properties are not included in revenue and are recorded as a reduction to
cast of sales as they are seen as a sales incentive.

Build-related rebates are recorded as a reduction to cost of sales.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements contirues

1. Significant accounting poalicies continued

Exceptional items

Exceptional items are defined as items of income or expenditure which, in the opinion of the Directors, are material, non-recurring
and unusual in nature or of such significance that they require separate disclosure. Exclusion of these balances, in addition to
exclusion of amortisation of brand, allows review of the underlying trading position of the Group through the Alternative
Performance Measures. Exceptional items are detailed further in note 5.

Leases

The Group enters into a number of lease arrangements for builcings and vehicles, none of which transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership, nar control, 10 the lessee. Accordingly, all such leases are classified as operating leases.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the Consalidated Statement of Comprehensive Income on a straight-line basis
over the term of the relevant lease.

Retirement benefit costs
The Group operates a stakeholder retirement benefit scheme.

A retirement benefit scheme is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Group pays fixed contributions intc a separate
entity and has no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to benefit schemes are
recognised as an expense in the Consolidated Staternent of Comprehensive Income in the years during which services are
rendered by employees.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

Tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the Consolidated
Staternent of Comprehensive Income because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and # further excludes iterns that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current taxis calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the year end.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recaverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilties in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and is accounted
for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and delerred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are nol recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of goedwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and maintained to the extent that there are probable
sufficient future taxable profits available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected 1o apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised based on tax laws and rates that have been enacted by the year end. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive income, except when it relates to items charged or cradited in other comprehensive
income, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in other comprehensive income.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle s
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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1. Significant accounting policies continued
Tangible and intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant anc equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment loss.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less their residual value over their useful lives, using the straight-
line method, on the following basis:

Fixtures, fittings and equipment 3~1O years

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in income on the transfer of the risks and rewards of ownership. The Group has no class
of tangible fixed asset that has been revalued.

Intangible assets - brand

Separately acquired brands are shown at historical cost. Brands have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the cost over their useful lives, estimated at
20 years.

Intangible assets - sofiware

Developrment costs that are directly attributable to the design and testing of identifiable and unique software procucts controlled
by the Group are recognised as intangible assets.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of the software product include the software development employee costs
and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads. Other development expenditures that do not meet the criteria are recognised
as an expense as incurred.

Computer software development costs recognised as assets are amortised cver their estimated useful ives using the straight-
line method, which do not exceed ten years. Development expenditure refating to software has been capitaiised and is detailed
in note 13 1o the financial statements.

Impairment of tangibie and intangible assets excluding goodwill

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts cf its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether there
is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash fiows that are
independent from other assets, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the GGU.

Recaverable amount is the higher of: {i) fair value less costs to sefl and (i) value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset {or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
for CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the Consalidated Staternent of
Comprehensive Income.
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1. Significant accounting policies continued

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable, direct
labour costs and those overheads that have been incurrec in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. The
cost of sites in the course of construction and finished stock comprises the cost of land purchases, which are accounted for from
the date of contract exchange, when the Group abtains the effective contret of the site, building costs and attributable construction
overheads. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less ali estimated costs of completion and costs to be
incurred in marketing, selling and distribution, completion and disposal.

Part-exchange properties are initiglly recognised at the fair value on the acquisition date, as established by independent surveyors,
less a provision for costs to sell.

Land inventories and the asscciated iand payables are recegnised in the Consolidated Staterment of Financial Position from the
date of uncorditional exchange of contracts.

Expenditure on land without the benefit of detailed planning consent, either through purchase of freehold land or non-refundable
deposits paid on land purchase contracts subject to detailed planning consent, are capitalised initially at cost. Regudar reviews
are completed for impairment in the value of these investments, and a provision is made to reflect any irrecoverable etement. The
impairment reviews consider the existing value of the land and assess the likelihood of achieving detailed planning consent and
the value thereof.

Provisions are estab¥ished to write down land where the forecast net sales proceeds, less costs 10 complete, exceed the carrying
value of the land. These provisions are adjusted as selling prices and costs to complete change over time.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, net of
outstanding bank overdrafts.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Group's Consolidated Statement of Financia! Position when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument,

Financial assets

All financia! assets are narmally recognised and derecognised on the date that an agreement has been entered into where the purchase
or sale of a financial asset is under a contract. They are initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs, except for those financial
assets classified as at fair value through profit or loss, which are initially measwed at fair value.

The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition. The
Group only held shared equity receivables (measured at fair value through profit or loss' (FVTPL)), secured morigages (measured at
‘amortised cost') and ‘loans and receivables’.

The effective interest method is a methed of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest income over
the relevant period. The effective intarest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts {inchding all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected fife of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying ameount on initial recognition.

Income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments other than those financial assets classified as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on re-measurement recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss incorporates any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included
in the other operating income line item in the Consoiidated Statement of Comprehensive Income. Fair value is determined in the
manner described in note 27.

Shared equity receivables

Shared equity interests arise from sales incentive schemes under which the Group acquires a contractual entitternent to receive a
proportion of the proceeds on sale of an apartment. These interests are normally protected by a legal charge over the relevant
apartment and/or a restriction on title.

The value of the shared squity receivables changes in response o an underlying variabile due to them being held at fair value. The
shared equity receivables are initially recogrised at fair value, being the estimated future amount receivable by the Group, discounted to
present value. The fair value of future anticipated cash receipts 1akes into account the Directors’ views of an appropriate discount rate,
a new build premium, future house price movernents and the expected timing of receipts. The Directors revisit the future anticipated
cash receipts from the assets at each reporting date and the difference between the anticipated future receipt and the initial fair value

is credited to finance income/expense.
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1. Significant accounting policies continued

Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payrnents that are not quoted in an active market

are classified as 'loans and receivables’. Loans and recsivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective interast method,
less any impairment. Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term receivables when
the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Financial liabilities and equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabiiities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangement.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interast in the assets of an enlity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised as the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as ‘other financial liabilities',

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are intially measured at fair value, et of transaction costs.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense
recognised on an effective yield basis.
The effective interest method is a method of caloulating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over

the relevant pericd. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected
life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Land-related promissory notes

Land-related promissory notes are treated as tnanctal habilities and are classihed as borrowings due to the substance of the
contractual arrangements.

Share-based payment schemes

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted
and is recognised as an expense over the vesting period. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of any non-rmarket
based vesting conditions and no expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest as a resuit of a failure to satisfy a non-
market based vesting condition.

Further details regarding the schemes are set out in note 28.

Alternative Performance Measures (‘APMs’)

Within the Annual Report, the Directors have adopted various APMs. These measures are not defined by International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS").

The Directors are of the opinion that the separate presentation of these items provides helpful informaticn about the Group's
underlying business performance.

The APMs that the Group has used are as follows:

* Underlying operating profit s Net cash
« Underlying earnings per share * Underlying profit before tax
+ Underlying operating profit margin * Return On Capital Employad ((ROCE')

All'underlying' iterns refer to the adjusted measure being reported before ‘exceptional’ and ‘adjusted cost' items. Specifically, the
exceptional items are one-off, and their inclusion does not present consistent and comparable results, The amortisation of brand is
a non-trading factor and its inclusion is not useful in determining the trading profits of the Group. RQCE is used as a metric to ensure
efficient and effective use of caprtal and is a key metric for datermining Director remuneration (including LTIP targets). ROCE is also a
comparable metric used by our peer housebuilder group.

A ull reconciliation between the statutory results and the underlying measures and a ROCE calculation can be seen within note 5.
Net cash has been defined and calculated within note 22. Adjusted cost and exceptional items have been defined within note 5.
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2. Outlook for adoption of future standards (new and amended)

The following new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations {'Standards’) are applicable to the Group and are
mandatory for the first fime for the financial year which began on 1 September 2017: Amendments to [AS 7 ‘Statemert of Cash Flows -
Changes in Liabitities arising from Financing Activities' and Amendment to IAS 12 *Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealised
Losses’. These Standards have not had a material impact on the results of the Company for the year ended 31 August 2018.

At the date of approval of the financial statements, the foliowing standards, interpretations and amendments to standards have been
issued, but are not yet effective for the year ended 31 August 2018:

* |FRS 9 ‘Financial instruments’ replaces |AS 39 ‘Financial Instrurnents: Recognition and Measurement’ and is effective for the
Group from 1 September 2018, The Group does not presently hold any complex financial instruments. The principal area of
consideration for IFRS 3 is applying the new “expected credit loss" model introduced for bad debt provisions. However, as the
Group’s accounting policy is not to recognise revenue until legal completion and trade receivables are not held as part of normal
trade, no material bad debt provisions are anticipated. The Group continues to assess the impact and application of the new
standard however we do not anticipate the new standard will have a material impact on the Group's reported results and
financial positicn.

s IFRS 15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Custorners’ is effective for the Group from 1 September 2018, This standard sets out
requirements for revenue recognition from contracts with customers under a five-step mode! to apportion revenue against
performance abligations within a contract based upoen the transfer of control. Revenue and profit on the sale of units is recognised
when substantially all the risks and rewards of cwnership have transferred to the customer, which is deemed to occur at legat
completion. There is no change 10 this accounting treatment under the recognition criteria within IFRS 15,

Part-exchange properties - Currently the income and costs associated with part-exchange properties are recognised on

a net basis within cost of sales. Under IFRS 15 the requirement wili be to present the non-cash consideration received from

a customer within revenue. The subsequent sale of the property will be accounted for as a separate contract, with the income
and associated costs being recognised within other operating income and expenditure. The impact on the Group for FY18 if IFRS
15 was adopted would be a decrease to cost of sales of £1.8m, but an increase to other expenditure of £1.8m. This change is
presentational onty and has no impact on profit.

The full impact of this change on the Greup will be re-stated using the full retrospective transiticn method.

The above items will have no impact on the Group's cash flows.

* IFRS 16 ‘Leases’ replaces IAS 17 ‘Leases’ and is effective for the Group from 1 November 2019, This standard brings significant
changes to the accounting of leases by lessees. IFRS 16 requires the recognition of a right-of-use’ asset and a corresponding lease
liability on the Statement of Financial Position of the lessee. In the Statement of Comprehensive Income the existing operating lease
charges, the majority of which is currently recognised within operating profit, will e replaced by a depreciation charge against the
'right-of-use’ asset. Additicnally, there will be an interest cost in redation to the lease liability which will be recognised within finance
expenses. The IASB has included an optional exemption, for lessees, for certain short-term leases and leases of low-value assets,
however, this exemption can only be applied by lessees.

It is expected that the implementation of the standard will increase both the assets and liabilities of the Group. The impact of the
standard continues to be assessed but is not expected to be material to the net assets or profit of the Group.

Amendment to IFRS 2 “Share-based Payments’, Amendment to IFRS 4 ‘insurance Contracts’ regarding the implementation
of IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instrurments’, and Annual Improvements 2014-20186, all effective frorm 1 January 2018, do not have
a significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

Annual Improvements 2015-2017, Amendment to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures', IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty
over Income Tax Treatments’, and Amendments to IAS 18 ‘Employee Benefits an Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement’,
all effective fram 1 January 2019, are not expected to have a significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

The potential impact of the above standards and interpretations is still being assessed by the Group.

3. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, the Directors are reguired to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered ta be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if
the revision affects both current and future periods.
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3. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty continued

Critical judgements in applying the Group's accounting policies

in applying the Group's accounting policies, one criticat judgement has been made in relaticn 10 exceptional itemns, A judgement
has been made that the items in FY18 are of significant cost, non-recurring and unusual to the normal activity of the Group

and therefore a decision was made 1o reclassify these items separately on the face of the Congolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

No other critical judgements are deemed to have been made that have a material effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements.

Assumptions and other sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are assurmptions the Group makes about the future, and other sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
raparting period.

Critical assumptions and major sources of estimation uncertainty

The Group does not have any key assumptions concerning the future, or other key sources of gstimation uncertainty in the
reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a matertal agjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.

Other assumptions and sources of estimation uncertainty

These assumptions and sources of estimation uncertainty carry risk of resuiting in @ material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities over the longer-term.

impairment of goodwill

Gioodwill is tested to determine whether the estimation cf the value in use of the CGU is greater than the carrying value of the
asset. The value in use calculation includes an estimate of the future forecast cash flows and requires the determination of a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of the cash flows. Details of the impairment review calculation
and sensitivity analysis performed are included in note 15.

Fair value of shared equity receivables

Shared equity receivabies are recognised at the fair value of future anticipated cash receipts that takes into account the
Directors’ view of an appropriate discount rate, a new buifd premium, future house price movements and the expected timing

of receipts. Shared equity receivables are reviewed at each reporting date using a variety of estimates that anticipate future cash
flow from assets. Further information regarding the assumptions and sensitivity effects of a reasonable possible change across
all schemes can be sean within note 27. The significant risk is specifically pinpointed to the Group's substantially largest shared
equity scheme which was offered betwesen FY12 and FY17 of which the revaluation is driven by changes in discount rates and
house price inflation. Should bath of these assumptions be impacted by a reasonably possible change of a 1% increase or
decrease, the effect has been illustrated below:

Increase Decrease

assumptions by 1% assumpiions by 1%

m £m

Discount rate (1.7} 18
House price inflation 1.9 1.7

Cost capitalisation of overheads

Within inventory there are a number of areas of estimation uncertainty, including determination of site margin, ot which

cost capitalisation of overheads is the most significant. Inventory includes a proportion of design, procurement, construction,
health & safety, commercial and planning costs. Costs associated with these functions are reviewed by management to
attribute those costs relating cirectly to the cost of the developments to inventory and those that relate to general business
overheads to expenses. The assumptions used are reviewed annually by the function heads before being proposed to the
Risk and Audit Committee.

Cost capitalisation invalves estimates of the proportion of costs that are directly attributable to sites. The key source of
estimation uncertainty in this area relates to the percentage of time spent by our regions on directly attributable site activities.
The percentage of their time which is capitalised ranges between 63-85% (2017: 77-93%)} for the various functions. Overhead
costs capitalised at 31 August 2018 amount to £23.7m {2017 £23.2m). If the prior year cost capitalisation rates were to be used,
the value of the overhead costs capitalised wouid have increased by £0.2m.

McCarthy & Stone ple Aanual Repart 159



Bl Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements continued

4. Revenue
2018 . 2007
£m £m
Unit sales 642.8 6318
FRI revenue 28.8 291
671.6 660.9

All unit sales revenue arose from the sale of properties. All revenue was generated within the UK. No individual customer is
significant to the Groug's revenue in any period.

Proceeds received from the disposal of part-exchange propertiss, which are not included in revenus were £88.1m (2017: £11.6m).
These are recognised on a ret basis within cost of sales on the basis that they are incidental to the main revenue-generating
activities of the Group. The net loss on disposal of these properties was £1.0m {2017; profit of £0.1m).

5. Profit before tax
Profit before tax has been arrived at after charging:

2018 2017
Notes £m Em
Amoertisation of intangibles 13 2.6 2.4
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 14 14 1.1
Operating lease arrangements 24
Land and buildings 17 1.4
Piant and machinery 26 25
Caost of inventories recognised as an expense 480.0 4571
Staff costs 6 94.0 88.4
Share-based payments charge to profit or loss . 28 08 0.9
Movement in inventory provision (including part-exchange properties) 1.5 1.2
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5. Profit before tax continued

Reconciliation to underlying operating profit and profit before tax

The following tables present a reconciliation between the statutory profit measures disclosed on the Consclidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income and the underlying measures used by the Board to appraise performance.

Exceptional items are items which, due to their one-off, non-trading and non-recurring nature, have been separately classified by
the Directors in gr¢er to draw them to the attention of the reader.

Adjusted cost items are items which are quantitively or qualitatively material and are presented separately within the Consalidated
Staternent of Comprehensive Income. The Directors are of the opinion that the separate presentation of these items provides
helpful information about the Group's underlying business performance. Amortisation of brand has been adjusted in order to
recencile to underlying operating profit and underlying profit before tax given the Directors do not belfieve this cost reflects the
underlying trading of the business.

Exceptionals

Exceplional Adiusted cost
Administiative Amortisation
Slatlory costs ot brand Underlyng
Year anded 31 August 2318 Noles £m Em £m £m
Operating profit 83.5 2.0 2.0 675
Finance income 8 0.4 - - 04
Finance expense g (5.8} - - (5.8)
Profit betore tax 58.1 2.0 2.0 62.1
Income tax expense (11.6) (0.49) (0.4) {12.9)
Profit for the year 46.5 16 1.6 49.7
Attributable 10 non-controlling interest ‘ 0.3 - - 03
Attributable to owners of the Company 46.2 1.6 1.6 494
Earnings per share
Basic {p per share} 8.6 0.3 0.3 9.2
Diluted (p per share) 8.6 0.3 0.3 9.2

The exceptional administrative costs in 2018 represent third-party advisory fees and redundancy costs incurred in relation to the
strategic review. Total costs for the strategic review are expected 1o be ¢.£25.0m and therefore deemed to be a material exceptional
itern (see note 31).

The net cash outflow from exceptional administrative expenses described above was £0.4rm (2017 Enil).

Exceptional Adjusted cost
Administr ative Amortisation
Statulory 0s1s of brand Underlying
Year ended 31 August 2017 Notes £m £m £m £m
Operating profit 94.2 - 20 962
Finance income 8 1.6 - - 1.6
Finance expense 2] {(3.7) - - 3.7
Profit before tax 921 - 20 941
Income tax expense (17.7) - (0.4) (18.1}
Profit for the year 74.4 - 16 76.0
Attributable 1o non-controlling interests 0.2 - - 02
Attributable 10 owners of the Company 74.2 - 1.6 758
Earnings per share
Basic {p per share) 13.8 - 04 14.2
Dituted (p per share) ‘ 138 - 04 14.2
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5. Profit before tax continued
Key profit refated metrics, undetlying operating profit rmargin and return on capital employed (ROCE"), have been reconciled below:

Underlying operating profit margin: calculated as underlying operating profit (being operating profit adding back amortisation of
brand and exceptional administrative expenses) divided by revenue.

ROCE: calculated by dividing underlying operating profit by the average of opening and closing tangible gross asset value (TGAV
- caleulated as tangible net asset value less net cash) in the year.

2018 2m7
£m Em
Revenue €716 660.9
Operating profit 63.5 94.2
QOperating profit margin 9% 14%
Amaortisation of brand 290 20
Exceptional administrative expenses 2.0 -
Underlying operating profit 67.5 96.2
Underlying operating profit margin 10% 15%
Cpering net assets 745.7 698.1
QOpening goodwill {note 12) {41.7) (41.7)
QOpening intangible assets (note 13) (27.6) {29 6)
Opening tangible net asset value 676.4 626.8
Opening net cash (note 22) {30.7) (52.8)
Opening tangible gross asset value 645.7 5740
Closing net assets 763.4 7457
Closing goodwill {note 12) {41.7) 417
Closing intangible assets (note 13) {26.9) (276)
Closing tangible net asset value 695.6 676.4
Closing net cash {note 22) {4.0) {30.7)
Closing tangible gross asset value 691.6 645.7
Average tangible gross asset value 668.7 609.9
Underlying operating profit 675 96.2
ROCE 10% 16%
Auditor’'s remuneration
2018 2047
Lm £m

Fees payable to the Group's auditor
Audit of the Company and Consotidated Financial Statements 0.2 0.2
Audit of the Compary's subsidiaries ’
Audit-related assurance services - -
Other services - -

0.2 0.2

Audit of the Company's subsidiaries amounted to £30,000 (2017: £30,000). Audit-related assurance services amounted to £37,500
{2017: £35,000) in respect of a review of the half year results. Other services amounted to £1,600 (2017: £nil) in respect of room hire
at the Deloitte Academy. There were no other fees payable to the Group auditor in the year.
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6. Staff costs -
Staff costs for the year include Directors' emoluments, which are detailed within this note:

2018 207

£m £m

Wages and salaries’ 798 762
Social security costs 8.4 80
Other pension costs 4.1 26
Share-based payments ’ 0.8 09
Termination payments 0.9 07
94.0 88.4

'The 2017 wages and salaries figure has been updated in the table above following the identification of an error reflecting
a double counting of an agjustment in the preparation of this nete in the prior year.

The average monthly number of persons, including Exegutive Directors, employed by the Group during the year was as follows:

2018 2017

Number Number

Office management and staff 995 902
House managers 1,166 1,024
Construction staff 241 219
2,402 2145

Staff costs include an average of 842 persons employed during the year from YourlLife Management Services Limited {2017: 823),
a 50% subsidiary held by the Graup.

At 31 August 2018 the Group employed 2,512 peaple (2017: 2,264},
Directors’ emoiluments

Amounts recognised in respect of Board Directors’ emoluments:

2018 2017

£m £m

Wages and salaries 19 17
Social security casts 03 0.2
Share-based payments - 0.3
Qther pension ¢costs' 0.2 0.2
Termination payments 0.5 -
2.9 24

' Includes salary supplements in lieu of pension

The emoluments of the highest paid Director was £1.3m {2017 £1.0m), including pension contributions of nil {2017: ).
The number of Directors in the Company pension plan was one (2017: two).

7. Other operating income

2018 2017

£&m £m

Net rental income 0.3 0.3
Other income 9.5 77
Non-core business revenye t.5 08
11.3 8.9

Other income arises on the services provided by Group subsidiaries to manage certain developments. Non-core business
revenue relates to income such as customer extras. Within net rental income, there are gross ground rents received and paid
of £5.6m (2017: £4.4m),
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8. Finance income

2008 2017
£m £m
Gain in fair value of shared equity receivables 0.3 1.5
Imerest income received 01 01
0.4 1.6
9. Finance expense
2018 2017
£m €m
Loan interest and overdraft fees 3.6 3.1
Promissory note interest and fees 0.1 01
Refinancing issue costs 0.6 05
Loss in fair value of shared equity receivables 1.5 -
5.8 37

The total interest expense, determined using the effective interest method, for financial liabilities that are not classified as at fair
value through profit of loss was £3.0m (2017: £2.3m).

10. Income tax expense

2018 2m7
Notes £m £m
Corporation tax charges
Current year 1.3 17.7
Adjustments in respect of prior years - (0.3
Deterred tax charges
Current year 18 0.3 0.3
1.6 17.7

The tax charge for each year can be reconciled to the profit before tax per the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

as follows:
2018 2017
£m £m
Profit before tax 58.1 921
Tax charge at the UK corporation tax rate of 19.00% (2017: 19.58%) _11.0 18.0
Tax effect of
Expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit . 0.3 0.1
Income not taxable in determining taxable profit - 01
Adjustments in respect of previous periods - (0.3)
Share cptions timing difference 0.3 0.2
Other reconciling items - (0.2)
Tax charge for the year 1.6 17.7

The rate of corporation tax was lowered to 19% from 1 April 2017 and to 17% with effect from 1 April 2020. The UK deferred tax
liabilities at 31 August 2018 have been calcutated based on the appropriate rate at which the liability will unwingd,
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11. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated as the profit for the financial period attributable to owners of the Company divided by the
weighted average number of shares in issue during the periog. The actual weighted average number of ordinary shares during the
full year ended 3t August 2018 was 537.3m for the basic and 538.6m for the diluted calculations, giving a statutory earnings

per share for the year ended 31 August 2018 of 8.6p for basic and 8.6p for diluted.

2018 2017
Profit attributable to owners of the Company [£m) 46.2 742
Weighted average no. of shares (m} 537.3 537.3
Basic earnings per share (p) 8.6 138

For diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of shares in issue is adjusted to assume the conversion of al!
potentially dilutive ordinary shares. At 31 August 2018, the Company had two categories of potentially dilutive ordinary shares:
5.8m nil cost share options under the LTIP and 4.1m 167.4p share options under the SAYE.

A calcuiation is done to determine the number of shares that could have been acquired at fair value based on the aggregate of
the exercise price of each share option and the farr value of future services to be supplied to the Group, which is the unamortised
share-based payments charge. The difference between the number of shares that could have been acquired at fair value and the
total number of options is used in the diluted earnings per share calculation.

28 2m7
Profit used to determine diluted EPS ({£Em) 46.2 74.2
Weighted average number of shares {m) §37.3 537.3
Adjustments for
Share options - LTIP {m) 1.3 0.3
Shares used to determine diluted EPS {m) 538.6 5376
Diluted earnings per share (o) 8.6 138
12. Goodwill
£m
Cost
At 1 September 2016 and 31 August 2017 and 2018 a7
Carrying amount
At 1 September 2016 and 31 August 2017 and 2018 917

No impairment losses have been recagnised in any of the reperting petiods presented herein.

Goodwill arose as a result of an acquisition in 2009 of the assets and kabilities of Monarch Realisations 1 plc. As the goodwill relates
to the business as a whole, it is allocated to the single CGU as defined in note 1. For key assumptions in determining recoverable
amounts in goodwill impairment testing, refer to note 15.
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13. Intangible assets

Brand Sottware Toial
£m £m £m

Cost
At 1 September 2016 414 4.3 457
Additions - 0.4 04
At 31 August 2017 414 47 461
Additions - 11 11
At 31 August 2018 414 5.8 42.2
Amortisation
At 1 September 2016 {15.3) {0.8) {16.1)
Charge for the year (20) (0.4) (2.4}
At 31 August 2017 (17.3} 12) (18.5)
Charge for the year (2.0} (0.5) (2.6}
At 31 August 2018 (19.3) (1.8) 211
Carrying amount
At 31 August 2017 24.1 a5 27.6
At 31 August 2018 221 4.0 26.1

Brand assets represent the McCarthy & Stone brand name purchased as part of the business combination in 2009. Brand assets
have 10 years and 7 months of useful lite remaining.

All amortisation charged is recognised in administrative expenses in the Consclidated Statement of Comprehensive income.

14. Property, plant and equipment

£m
Cost
At 1 September 2016 7.2
Additions o7
Disposals {0.1)
At 31 August 2017 7.8
Additions 0.8
Disposals (2.4}
At 31 August 2018 6.2
Accumulated depreciation and impairment N
At 1 September 2016 {4.3)
Charge for the year (1.1}
Eliminated on disposals )
At 31 August 2017 (5.4)
Charge tfor the year {1.1)
Eliminated on disposals 2.4
At 31 August 2018 a.n
Carrying amount
At 31 August 2017 : 24
At 31 August 2018 21
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15. Impairment testing

Curing the periods reported in the financial statements, no impairments have been recognised against the Group's assets.

Far each reported period, management have performed an impairment review of goodwill, being an indefinitely fived asset.

The Group only has one CGL, as defined in note 1.

The recoverable amount (value in use) was determined by discounting the forecast future cash flows of the CGU. Three years of
net operating cash flows were calculated using the Group’s three year business plan for FY19-21. The cash flows for FY22 reflected
additional investment in land and build compared to FY21 and were extrapolated in perpetuity assuming no growth rate in line with
the new steady stale business strategy. The key assumptions for the value in use calculation were:

* Discount rate: this is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the
business. Accordingly, the rate of 10.0% (FY17: 11.3%) is considered by the Directors to be the appropriate pre-tax risk adjusted
discount rate, being the Group’s estimated long-term pre-tax weighted average cost of capital

= Sales completion valumes: these are calculated on a site-by-site basis for the first three years dependent upon regional market
conditions, taking intoc account histeric sales curves and expected reservation rates

* Expected changes in selling prices: these are calculated on a site-by-site basis for the first three years dependent upon regional
market conditions, pricing for existing pipeling sites and product type. Consistent with FY18, no house price inflation has been
assumed

* FRiincome: this is based on the assumption that the Group will continue selling FRI during FY18-21

* Expected build costs: these are calculated on a site-by-site basis for the first three years dependent upon the expected costs of
completing all aspects of each individual development and management best estimate to deliver build cost reductions as part of
the new strategy. Build cost inflation is expected to continue at 3-4%

These assumptions are reviewed and revised annually in light of current economic conditions and the future outiock for the business.
The result of the vatue in use exercise concluded that the recoverable amount of the CGU exceeded its carrying value by £407.8m
and there has been no impairment to goodwill.

Management has modelled two scenarios by applying reasonably possible downsides to each of the key assumptions applied in
the value in use calculations.

Scenario 1: Management have performed a sensitivity analysis based on an increase in the pre-ax discount rate by 1% reflecting
a potentiai change in the market assessments of the time value of money. This sensitivity analysis showed that na goodwil
impairment would arise under this scenario.

Scenario 2: Management have performed a sensitivity analysis by combining several downsides assuming that the appropriate
steps are taken to mitigate the impact of the downsides. These were as follows:

= Based on continuing subdued secondary housing market and current reservation rates, management have applied 10.3%
volume downside in FY19 and 5.4% downside in FY20-21

* Management have applied a 7.5% downside on pricing in the South East and North London region from March 2019, reflecting
pressures in the market in these geographical regions and a 2.5% downside in all other regions in FY20 and FY21

* Additionally, management have modelled the removal of FR! income in FY20 and FY21 given the uncartainty over the long-term
sustainability of this revenue stream

* All build cost savings targeted as part of the strategic review have been removed from the mode!
+ Management have assumed that this scenario will be mitigated by aborting uncommitted land purchases and related build costs

This sensitivity analysis showed that no goodwill impairment would arise under this scenario.

No impairment charges were recorded on items of property, plant and equipment throughout the current or pricr year.

16. Inventories

2018 2017

m £m

Land held for development 99.6 148.6
Sites in the course of construction 290.3 3412
Finished stock ‘ 385.9 2387
Part-exchange properties 1.7 319
B817.5 760.4

Days in inverttory amounted to 530 days in 2018 {2017: 582 days).

Inventory days are calculated by taking year end inventory {excluding part-exchange properties) divided by cost of inventories
recognised as an expense.
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17. Trade and other receivables

2018 2017
£m €m
Trade and other receivables due in less than one year

Trade receivables 1.9 2.1
COther debtors and prepayments 10.5 74
224 a5
2018 2007
£m £m

Trade and other receivables due in greater than one year
Secured maortgages 2.8 32
Shared equity receivables 25.0 289
2r.8 321

Secured mortgages disclosed above are classified as loans and receivables and are measured at amortised cost. Shared equity
receivables are classified as financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss.

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of trade and other receivables and non-current receivables approximates their
fair value.

18. Deferred tax
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities recognised by the Group:

Other
Iempaorary
diflerences Total
£m £m
At 1 Septernber 2016 (1.5} (1.5)
Statement of Comprehensive Income charge (0.3) {0.3)
At 31 August 2017 . (1.8) (1.8)
Staternent of Comprehensive Income charge (0.3} (0.3)
At 31 August 2018 {2.1) (2.1)

The movement in other temporary differences mostly relate to tax and accounting differences in the treatment of share-based
payments.

Deferred tax assets of £0.1m (2017: £0.1m) in relation to capital losses carried forward of £0.3m (2017; £0.3m) were not recognised
as, despite there being no expiry date for these losses, there is insufficient evidence that they will ever be utilised.

19. Trade and other payables

2018 207

£m £m

Trade payables 259 227
Cther taxes and social security costs 21 1.9
Accrued expenses 58.0 426
Other creditors and deferred income 28,9 18.2
114.9 854

Trade payab'es and accrued expensas principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing costs.
The average credit period taken for trade purchases was 18 days during 2018 (2017, 20 days).

No material interest costs have been incurred in relation te such payables. The Group policy is to ensure that payables are paid
within the pre-agreed credit terms and to avoid incurring penalties and/or interest on late payments. Other creditors include sales
taxes, property taxes and customer deposits. The Directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates their
fair value.

No trade payables are purchased on extended payment terms.
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20. Land payables

018 2017
£m Em
Land payables 56.9 67.4

Land payabies relate to payments due in respect of land which has been purchased under an unconditional contract.

21. Borrowings

2018 2017
Long-term borrowings im Em
Loans (Revolving Credit Facility) 43.0 100
Unamortised issue costs (1.6) (2.0)
Promissory notes 10.0 -

51.4 8.0

Quistanging at 31 August

2018 207
Matytdy £m £m
Revolving Credit Facllity May 2021 43.0 10.0

The Group has in place a Revelving Credit Facllity (RCF') which during the year has been extended from £200m to £250m for a
period of 12 months from February 2018 and matures in May 2021.

The RCF imposes financial govenants which test the Group's ‘interest cover’, ‘net tangible assets® and 'gearing’ all of which the
Group is compliant with,

The nominal interest rate of the £250m RCF is 1, 3 or 6 menth LIBOR + 1.6% (2017: 1, 3 or 6 month LIBOR + 1.6%) depending on
the length of the drawdown. As at 31 August 2018, £43.0m (2017: £10.0m} was drawn. The RCF is secured by a floating charge

over the assets of McCarthy & Stone plc, McCarlhy & Stone Retirement Lifestyles Limited, McCarthy & Stone (Oevelopments)
Limited, McCarthy & Stone (Extra Care Living) Limited and McCarthy & Stone Total Care Management Limited.

. Areconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities has been detailed beiow:

2017
£m
oo
Amortigation of lesue of
At1 5 2018 Net cash flow fssue casts proimiaaory notes At 31 August 2017
Long-term borrowings .
Loans 55.0 (45.0} - - 10.0
Unamortised issue costs (2.5) - 05 - (2.0)
Short-term borrowings
Promissory notes 1.3 (1.3} B - -
Total llabllities from
financing actlvities 63.8 {56.3) 0.5 - 8.0
2018
£m

Amorlisation of izsue of
At 1 September 2017 Natcash flow jasums costs promissory notea AL 31 August 2018

Long-term borrowings

Loans 100 ' 33.0 - 43.0

Unamortised issue costs (2.0) 04 - (1.6}

Promissory notes - - 10.0 10.0
Total liabilities from
finaneing activities a0 - 330 0.4 10.0 51.4

McCarihy & Stone plc Annual Report 169



Bl Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements coninued

22. Net cash
2018 207
tm m
Loans and borrowings 51.4 8.0
Add back unamortised issue costs 1.6 20
Cash and cash equivalents (57.0} {40.7}
Net cash {4.0) (36.7)
Add back land-refated pramissary notes (10.0) -
Net cash excluding fand-related promissory notes (14.0) (30.7)

Net cash is a non-GAAP measure and is calculated as cash and cash equivalents less long-term and short-terrn borrowings
(excluding unamortised debt issue costs and land-related promissory notes).

23. Share capital
The Company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income. There is no limit to authorised share capital.

2018 2017

Allotted and Issued ordinary shares £m m
8p each fully paid: 537,329,434 ordinary shares {2017; 537.329,434) 43.0 43.0
2018 207

Number Number

Allotment of shares during the year 000 000
At 1 Septernber 537,329 537,314
Issuance to satisty early exercises under the SAYE - 15
At 31 August 537,329 537,329

Dividends on equity shares

The interim dividend of 1.9p {2017: 1.8p) was approved by the Board on 10 April 2018 and paid on 8 June 2018 to afl ordinary
sharehalders on the register of members at the close of business on Friday 4 May 2018. The ex-dividend date was 3 May 2018.
The final dividend proposed by the Beard is 3.5p (2017: 3.6p) per share resulting in a total ordinary dividend for the year of 5.4p
(2017: 5.4p). It will be paid cn 1 February 2019 to thoss shareholders who are on the register at 4 January 2019 subject to approval
at the Company's Annual General Meeting. The ex-dividend date is 3 January 2019. These financial statements do not reflect the
final dividend payment.

The cost of the dividends paid within the financial year amounted to £29.6m (2017: £28.5m).
24. Operating lease arrangements

2018 2007
£m £m

Minimum lease payments under operating leases recognised as an expense during the year 4.3 39

At year end the Group had cutstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases,
which fall due as follows:

2018 2007

£m £m

Within one year 4.2 43
In the secand to fifth years inclusive 55 6.9
After five years 1.0 i1
Outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments 10.7 12.3

Operating lease payments typically represent rentals payable by the Group for its office propertles and cars. Rent reviews and
break clauses apply to leased property agreements,
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25. Notes to the cash flow statement

Reslaled
2018 2017
Notes £m Em
Profit for the financial year 46.5 74.4
Adjustments for
Income tax expense 10 1.6 177
Amortisation of intangible assets 13 26 2.4
Share-based payments charge 28 0.8 09
Depreciation of property, piant and equipment 14 11 11
Finance expanse a9 58 37
Finance income 2! (0.4) (1.6}
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 68.0 98.6
{Increase)decrease in trade and other receivables {9.8) (A
Increase in inventories (471} (74.6)
Increase in tfrade and other payablas 19.1 54
. Cash generated by operations 30.2 295
Intgrest received - 01 01
Interest paid (4.0) (2.9)
Income taxes paid {11.5) {192.2)
Net cash flow from operating activities 14.8 7.5
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and bank bajlances 57.0 4.7

Prior year comparatives have been restated whereby the repayment of £11.3m of promissory notes, which are classified as
borrowings in the balance sheet, has been reclassified. Previously the repayment was classified as an operating cash flow.
The restatement arose falfowing an enquiry by the Financial Reporting Council as a result of which the Group concluded that,
in order to comply with 1AS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows', these movernent should be classified as financing activities.

The raview conducted by the FRC was based solsly on the Group's published Annual Report and does not provide any assurance
that the report and financial statements are correct in ail material respects.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances and short-term bank deposits with an criginal maturity of three
months or less, net of cutstanding bank cverdrafts.

The increase in trade and other payables includes the movement in land payables.

26. Retirement benefit schemes
The Group operates a defined contribution retirement benefit scherme which is open to all employees.

Other than amounts that are deducted from employees' remuneration and accrued pending payment to the Denefit scheme, no
further obligations fall on the Group as the assets of these arrangements are held and managed by third parties entirely separate

from the Group.

The benefit scheme charge for the period represents contributions payable to the benefit scheme and amounted to £4.1m for
the year ended 31 August 2018 (2017: £2.6m). Unpaid contributions amounted to £0.4m as at 31 August 2018 (2017: £0.3m).
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27. Financial risk management
The Group's financial instruments comprise cash, bank loans and overdrafis, trade receivables, other financial assets and trade and

other payables.
2018 2017
Categorles of financial instruments £m Em
Financial assets
Fair value through profit or loss
Shared equity recsivables 25.0 28.9
Loans and receivables
Cash and cash equivatents 570 40.7
Trade and other receivables - 13.3 27
Secured mortgages 2.8 3.2
981 755
Financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities
Trade and other payables 89.5 77.2
Land payables : 56.9 67.4
Loans 41.4 . 80
Land-related prormissary notes 10.0 -
197.8 152.6

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital {pbeing debt, cash and cash equivalents and equity} 1o ensure entities within the Group have a strong
capital base in order to continue as going concerns, to maintain investor and creditor confidence and to provide a basis for the
future development of the business while maximising the return to stakeholcers.

The RCF imposes financia! covenants, which is normal for such agreements, ali of which the Group is campliant with. The Group
manages a robust internal forecasfing and review process to ensure it operates within these capital requirements.

The Group does not rautinely make additional issues of capital, other than for the purpese of raising finance for the management
of the cast of capital of the Group or to lund significant developments designed to grow value in future.

Share-basec payment schemes allow senior employees of the Group to participate in the ownership of the Group in order to
ensure the senior employees are focused on growing the value of the Group to achieve the aims of all shareholders.
Financial risk management

The Group’s finance function is responsible for all aspects of corporate treasury. It co-ordinates access to financial markets and
monitors and manages the financial risks relating to the operations of the Group through internal reports which analyse exposures
by degree and magnitude. The risks reviewed include market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk and price risk),
credit risk, liquidity risk and cash flow interest rate rigk. .

Housing market risk management

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to macroeconomic risks such as deflation and the cyclical nature of UK property prices.
A deterioration in the eccnomic outlook could have a significant impact on the Group's financial performance and the Group has
the tollowing procedures which mitigate its market-related operational risk:

* The Group closely monitors industry indicaters and assesses the potential impact of different econermnic scenarios

+ Decisions to allocate new capital to land and build are managed centrally through the Group Investment Committee,
membership of which includes the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer and the Land & Planning Director

* The Group aims to maintain a geographical and product spread of developments to ensure that it is not reliant on ene particular
location, development or product
s The Group undertakes a weekly review of sales, reservations and incentives at regional and Group level
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27. Financial risk management continued .
The vaiue of the Group's house price linked financial assets is sensitive to UK house prices since the amount repayable is
depandent upon the market price of the property to which the asset is linked. At 31 August 2018 if UK house prices were 1% lower
for a cne-year period and all other variables werg held constant, the Group's house price linked financial assets would decrease in
value, excluding the effects of tax, by £1.7m (2017: £2.1m) with a corresponding reduction in both the resuit for the year and equity.

Credit risk management

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obiigations resulting in financial loss te the Group.
The Group has a low exposure to credit risk due to the nature and legal framework of the UK housing industry.

In certain circumstances the Group offers sales incentives resulting in a long-term debt being recognised under which the Group
will receive a proportion of the resale proceeds of an apartment. The Group's equity share is protected by a registered entry on the
title and usually reprasents the first interest in the property. A reduction in property values leads to an increase in the credit rigk of
the Group in respect of such sales.

The credit risk refating to shared equity receivables is deemed immaterial as the value is recovered though subsequent disposal of

the related asset. As a result, management consider the credit quality of these receivables to be good in respect of the amounts
outstanding, resulting in low credit risk. Exposure to house price sensitivity is built into the fair value calculation.

The Group does not have any significant credit risk exposure to any single counterparty or group of counterparties having similar
characteristics. The Group defines counterparties as having similar characteristics if they are related entities. There is no material
concentration of credit risk in respect of one individual customer.

The carrying ameunt recarded for financial assets in the financial statements is net of impairment losses and represents the
Group's maximurn exposure tc credit risk. No guaraniees have been given in respect to third parties.

Liquidity risk management

Liquidity risx is the risk that the Group wili encounter difficulty in meeting obligations asscciated with financial fiabilities. The Group's
stratagy in relation to managing liquidity risk is to ensure that the Group has sufficient cash flow liquid funds to meat zll its potentiat
liabilities as they fall due. The Group produces cash flow forecasts to monitor the expected requirements of the Gronip against the
available tacitties. 1he principal risks with these cash flows relate to achieving the level of sales volumes and prices in ling with

current forecasts.
The matutity of the financial liabilities of the Group at 31 August 2017 and 2018 are as follows:

07
Carrying. Cortaca Wilthin 1 yedr 1-5 years
value Em cash llows £m £€m £m
Loans (net of borrowing costs} 8.0 15.2 1.4 138
Financial liabilities carrying no interest 144.6 1445 144.6 -
Total 152.6 159.8 146.0 138
e
Carrying Contractual Within 1 yaar 1-5 years
valus Em cash flows £m £m £m
Loans (net of berrowing costs) 41.4 48.7 2.2 46.5
Other financial liabilties carrying interest 10.0 10.3 0.2 101
Financial liabilities carrying no interest 146.4 146.4 146.4 -
Total 197.8 205.4 148.8 56.6

Cther financial fiabilities carrying interest are promissory notes, which attract avaiisation and discount fees. Financial liabilities
carrying no interest are trade and other payables and land payabiles. The timing and amount of future cash flows given in the table
above is based on the year end position.
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27. Financial risk management continued
Interest rate risk management

Interest rate risk reflects the Group’s exposure to fluctuations to interest rates in the market. The risk arises because the Group's
RCF is subject to floating interest rates based on LIBOR.

In the year ended 31 August 2018, if UK interest rates had been 0.5% higher or lower, as this is a reasonably possible change, and
all other variances were held constant, the Group's pre-tax profit would decreasefincrease by £0.7m (2017: £0.5m). Calculations
have been based on borrowing values at each month end.

Fair value of financial instruments
Vaiuation technigues and assumptions applied for the purposes of measuring fair value
Fair value of financial instruments carried at amortised cost

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amertised cost in the
financial statements approximate their fair values.

Bank and other loans

Fair value is calculated based on discounted expected future principal and interest flows.
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27. Financial risk management continued

Fair value measurements recognised in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

All financial instruments are grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which their fair value is observable:

* Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived from quoted prices (Unadjusted) in active marksts for identical assets
or liabilities

* Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are cbservable
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices} or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) .

* Level 3 fair value measurernents are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are
not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)

The financial instruments held by the Group that are measured at fair value are the shared equity receivables which are measured
at fair value through profit or loss using methods associated with Level 3. At the year ended 31 August 2018, these were valued at
£25.0m (2017: £28.6m).

Financial assets are recorded at fair value, being the estimated amaount raceivable by the Group, discounted to present day values.

The fair value of future anticipated cash receipts takes into account the Directors’ views of an appropriate discount rate, a new
build premium, future house price movements and the expecled timing of receipts. These assumptions caver a variety of different
schemes and the range of assumptions used are stated below. The assumptions are reviewed at each period end.

Assumptions 201 2017
Discount rate 38t044% 38tod.4%
New build premium Dto 5% Cto5%
House price inflation 0 to 6%’ 0to 5.75%
Timing of receipt Sto 11 yrs S5ta 14 yrs

' We apply future HPI over the next five years based on industry forecasts. The 2019 HPI used in the calculation varies between
2.5 - 3.5% dependent upon geographica! location,

2me 2018

lm:rgna Ducrguu

e . . R by 1% yeoar by 1%A year
Sensitivity-effect on value of other financial assets (less)/more £m £m
Discount rate {2.0) 2.2
New build premium (0.2) 0.2
House price inflation 19 7
Timing of receipt " {0.9) 0.4

The fair value of the shared equity receivable is based on the external available data. The sensitivity-effect of a 1%/1 year change
is representative of our best estimate of a reasonably possible change based on management's expectations cf changes in
economic conditions.

The Directors review the anticipated future cash receipts from the assets at each reporting date and the difference between the
anticipated future receipt and the initial fair value is credited to finance income/expense.
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27. Financial risk management continued
The following tables present the changes in Level 3 instruments for the years ended 31 August 2017 and 2018:

2017

Shared

equily

receivables

£m

Cpening balance 29.3
Additions 0.8
Disposals (2.7}
Revaluation gains recognised in the statement of comprehensive income 15
Closing balance 289
2018

Shared

equity

receivables

Opening balance 28.9
Additions -
Disposals {(2.7)
Revaluation gains and (losses) recognised in the statement of comprehensive income (1.2)
Closing balance 25.0
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28. Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payment plans
The Group operates three share-based payment schemes as set out below:

Long Term incentive Plan {"LTIP’}

The Group’s LTIP is open to key management at the discretion of the Board. Awards under the scheme are granted in the form of
nil-priced share options. LTIP awards will normally vest, and LTIP options become exercisable, on the thirg anniversary of the dats
of the grant of the LTIP award to the extent that any applicable performance conditions have been satisfied. LTIP options will remain
exercisable for ten years after the date of the grant. Awards are to be settled by the issue of new shares or acquisition of shares in
the market. The performance conditions for the LTIP grants are earnings per share ('EPS’), comparative total sharesholder return
['TSR") and return on capital employed {ROCE"). The EPS and ROCE perfermance conditions are priced using the Black-Scholes
model. The TSR performance condition is a market-based condition. In order to value the TSR performance conditions against the

FTSE 250 and peer group, a Monte Carlo simulation model is required which can simulate correlation between companies.

LTIP FYiaLTIP FY17LTIP FY16LTIP Total
Date of grant 17 Novemnber 2017 21 December 2016 25 Novemnber 2015
Options granted 1,916,777 1,933,352 1,930,524
Fair value at measurement date” (£} 1.49 1.32 212
Share price on date of grant (£) 1.65 1.56 2.32
Exercise price (£) - - -
Vesting period 3years 3 years 3 years
Expecled dividend yield n/a nja nfa
Expected volatility 40.00% 29.21% 26.07%
Risk free interest rate 0.82% p.a. 0.23% pa. 080% p.a.
Valuation model Black-Scholes Black-Scholes Black-Scholes

Movements in the year:

and Monte Carlo

and Monte Carlo

and Monte Carlo

QOptions at baginning of the year - 1,876,209 1,508,310 3,384 519
Granted during the year 1,916,777 - - 1,916,777
Exercised during the year - - - -
Lapsed during the year (43,232) (153,449} (183,330} (380,011)
Expired in the year - R N .
Options at the end of the year 1,873,545 1,722,760 1,324,980 4,921,285

Exercisable at ena of the year

* This Is the average fair value for the three tranches of the LTIP scheme

For the FY16 LTIP and FY17 LTIP, due to the fact that there was limited share price history for McCarthy & Stone, the Company's
share price volatility was estimated as an average of the volatilities of the FTSE 250 over a historic period commensurate with the

expected [ife of @ach award immediately prior to the date of grant.

For the FY18 LTiP, there is now sufficient share price history for McCarthy & Stone and therefore the expected volatiity uses the
Company's share price volatifity betwesn the date of listing (S Novembber 2015} and the date of grant.
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28B. Share-based payments continued

Sharesave Plan ('SAYE’)

The SAYE Fian is an all-employee savings reiated share option plan. Employees are invited to make regular manthly contributions to
a SAYE scheme operated by Link Asset Services. On completion of the contract period (three or five years) employees are able to

purchase ordinary shares in the Company based an the average closing middle market price over the three days prior to the award,
less 20% discount. There are no performance conditions.

SAYE Total
Date of grant 10 December 2015 10 December 2015
Options granted 2,912,247 1,167,514
Fair value at measurement date (€} 0.68 075
Share price on date of grant (£) 234 234
Exercise price (£) 1674 1674
Vesting period 3 years Syears
Expected dividend yield 26.20% 2B.16%
Expected volatility 26.07% 26.07%
Risk free interest rate C.8% p.a. 1.2%p.a.
Valuation model Black-Scholes Black-Scholes

Movements in the year:
Options at beginning of the year 1,897,215 926,846 2,824,061
Granted during the year - - -
Exercised during the year

Lapsed during the year {604.774) (229.203) (833,977)
Expired in the year - - -
Options at the end of the year 1,292 441 697,643 1,990,084

Exercisable at end of the year - -

Expected volatility was determined by calculating the average historical volatility over a period commensurate with the expected life
of the savings term for the SAYE options, based on the FTSE 250.

Share Incentive Plan ('SIP’)

The SIP allows all employees to purchase shares each manth from pre-tax pay, which are then held in frust. These shares can be
sald or taken from the SIP or be left within the trust for as long as the plan remains open. All plan shares and any other asssts held
by the trustees will be held upon trust for the participants; there is therefore no impact to the Group's financial statements in raspect
of this plan.

Annual and Deferred Bonus Plan ('ABP’)

The ABP incorporates the Company's executive bonus scheme as well as a mechanism for the deferral of bonus into awards

over ordinary shares. The Committee can determine that part of the bonus under the ABP is provided as an award of deterred
shares, which takes the form of a £nil cost option. All employees (including the Executive Directors) of the Group are eligible to
participate in the ABP at the discretion of the Board. At 31 August 2018 three Executive Directors were participating in the scheme.
For the year ended 31 August 2018, one-third of the bonus earned by the previous CEO and 100% of the bonus earned by the
CFO and the newly appointad CEO in the financial year, totaling £0.2m {2017: £0.1m), wil be deferred in the form of deferred shares
for three years, during which no performance conditions will apply. The amount deferred will be recognised over the three year
deferral period.

Total share-based payment schemes

2019 2017

Analysis of the income charge: £m £rm
Equity-settlied share-based peyments

SAYE 0.8 0.5

LTP - 04

0.8 09
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29. Related undertakings

The entities listed below are subsidiaries or joint ventures of the Campany or Group in accordance with section 409 of the
Companes Act 2006. All entities, unless noted below, are registered in England and Wales with a registered address of:
4th Floor, 100 Holdenhurst Road, Bournemouth, Dorset, BHB BAQ.

2018 2017

Gompany % pfshargs % of shares

Name Notas number Principal activity owned awned
McCarthy & Stone (Developments) Limited 06622183 Holding company 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Retirement Lifestyles Limited 06622231 Developer 100 100
McCarthy & Stone (Equity Interests) Lirmited 05663330 Property investment 100 100
McCarthy & Stone (Home Equity Interests) Limited 05984851 Property investment 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Investment Properties No. 23 Limited 1 06496130 Property investment 100 100
McCarthy & Stone (Total Care Living) Limited 1 06069509 Property investrment 100 100
McCarthy & Stone (Alnwick) Limited 1 Q7517812 Property investment 100 100
McCarthy & Stone (Extra Care Living} Limited 06897363 Property investment 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Total Care Management Limited 06897301 Property investment 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Rental Interests No. 1 Limited . t 06897272 Property investrnent 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Management Services Limited 07166051 Development management 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Lifestyle Services Limited 1 07165986 Holding cormpany 100 100
McCarthy & Store Financial Services {imited 1 07798214 Financial services 100 100
Keyworker Properties Limited 04213618 Darmant 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Estates Limited 1 07165352 Dormant 100 100
YourLife Management Services Limited 5 07153519 Development management 50 50
McCarthy & Stone Properties Limited 1,2 01925738 Dormant 100 100
The Planning Bureau Limited 1,2 02207050 Dormant 100 100
Ortus Hemes Limited 1,2 0B658235 Dormant 100 100
McCarthy & Stone Resales Limited 1 10716544 Property resales 100 100
Linden Court Limited 4 04322139 Dormant n/a 160
Kindle Housing (Chrisichurch) Limited 3.5 Q4737739 Affordable housing rental 50 50
Kindle Housing (Exeter) Limited 35 05692813 Affordable housing rental 50 - 50
Kindfe Housing (Worthing) Limited 3.5 04239574 Aftorgable housing rental 50 50
Kindle Heusing Limited 3.5 4088162  Affordabie housing management 50 50
Advantage Apartments Limited 2,345 03697251 Cormant 50 50
Advantage Housing Limited 2,35 03697230 Dormant 50 50
Advantage Homes Limited 2,35 03697079 Dormant 50 50

1 These subsidiaries will lake advantage of the audit exermption set aut within section 479A of the Companies Act 2006 Tor the
year ended 31 August 2018

2 These subsidiaries are considered dormant for the year ended 31 August 2018 and have taken advantage of the section
394A exemption from preparing individual financial statements

3 These subsidiaries are registerad at Cosmopoiitan House, Old Fore Street, Sidmouth, Devon, EX10 8LS
4 This subsidiary has been dissolved during the financial year
5 These entities are joint ventures

McCarthy & Stone (Developments) Limited is directly owned by the Company. All other subsidiaries and joint ventures are
indirectly owned by McCarthy & Stone plc.

Each of the shareholdings gives the immediate parem company 100% voting rights unless stated above. YourLife Management
Services Limited provides the parent with 50% of the voting rights, but also has the power 10 appoint the majonty of the
Direciors. Accordingly, this gives the Group power over the relevant activities of this entity

All shares above are classified as ‘ordinary’.
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30. Related party transactions

Balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed in this note, Transactions between the Group and cther related parties are disclosed below.,
Remuneration of key management personnel

The key management personnel are the Board and the Executive Board, including Non-Executive Directors. The remuneraticn
that they have received during the year is set out below in aggregate for each of the categories specified in 1AS 24 ‘Refated

Party Disclosures’.
2018 2017
£m £m
Shart-term employee benefits N 2.8 27
Social security costs 0.4 0.4
Share-based payments - 0.4
Pension contributions 04 0.3
Termination payments 0.5 -
4.1 38
Aggregate emoluments of the highest paid director 1.3 1.0

31. Events after the balance sheet date

The following events after the reporting period required disclosure in the financial statements:

On 25 September 2018 the Group announced its new business strategy aimed at improving margins, rightsizing the operational
cost base and evolving the business model to meet the changing needs of our customers. Total exceptional costs of ¢.£25.0m
are expected across the life of the business transformation programme, with £2.0m already incurred in FY18. The majority of
the exceptional costs are expected to come through in the first half of FY19, representing the cost of land that will no konger be
developed, reduncancy costs and further consultants’ fees.

There were no events after the reporting period that required adjustment in the FY18 financial statements.

180  McCarthy & Stone pic



STRATEGIC REPQRT CORPORATE GOVERNANGE 1 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Company Statement

of Financial Position
As at 31 August 2018

2008 2017

Notes £m £m
Assets
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries 4 439.4 4394
Total non-current assets 439.4 4394
Current assets
Trade and gther receivables 3 50.0 773
UK corporation tax - 06
Total current assets 50.0 779
Total assets 489.4 517.3
Equity and fabilitles
Capltal and reserves
Share capital 43.0 43.0
Share premium 101.6 1018
Retained earnings 3378 3674
Equity attributable to owners ot the Company 482.4 512.0
Current labllities )
Trade and cther payabies B 70 53
Total current llabliitles 7.0 53
Total liabilities 7.0 53
Total equity and flabilitles 489.4 5173

Netes 1 to 10 farm part of the firancial statements shown above.

The Compary has elected to take exemption $408 of the Companies Act 2006 not to present the Company Statement of
Comprehensive income. The Company recorded a ioss for the year of £0.8m (2017: profit of £0.7mi.

These financial statements of McCarthy & Stone plc (06622199) were approved by the Board on 12 November 2018 and signed
on i1s behalf by

John Tonkiss Rowan Baker
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer

BE [k
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B Company Statement

of Changes in Equity
For the year ended at 31 August 2018

Share Share Ratained
capital pramium eamings Total
tm £m fm

Balance at 1 September 2016 43.0 100.8 394.3 538.1
Profit for the year - - 0.7 07
Total comprehensive income for the year - - a.7 0.7
Transactions with owners of the Company:
Share based payments - 09 09
Dividends - (28.5) (28.5)
Share issue related costs - tax credit 08 - 08
Balance at 31 August 2017 43.0 101.6 3674 512.0
Loss for the year . - (0.8) {0.8)
Total comprehensive lass for the year - - {0.8) (0.8)
Transactions with owners of the Company:
Share based payments - 08 08
Dividends - (29.6) {29.6)
Balance at 31 August 2018 43.0 101.6 337.8 482.4

Notes 1 to 10 form part of the financial statements shown above,
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B Notes to the Company
Financial Statements

1. Accounting policies

McCarthy & Stone plc is a public Company limited by shares incorporated in England and Wales. The Registered Office is 4th Fleor,
100 Holdenrurst Road, Bournemouth, Dorset, BH8 BAQ. The following accounting policies have been applied sonsistently in
dealing with the items that are considered material in relation to the financial statements, on an ongoing pasis and in accordance
with the Companies Act 2008.

Basis of preparation

The separate Cornpany financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost accounting rules and in accordance
with FRS 102, The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of Ireland.

The Company is exempt from the requirement to present its own Statement of Comprehensive income. The Company recorded
a loss for the year of £0.Bm (2017: profit of £0.7m).

As permitted by FRS 102, the Company has taken advantage of the disclosure exemnptions available in relation to presentation of
a Cash Fiow Staternent, standards not yet effective and related party transactions.

The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.

Investments in subsidiaries
Investments in Group undertakings are included in the Statement of Financial Position at cost less any provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, net of
outstanding bank overcirafts.

Share-based payments

The cost of equity-settied transactions with employees is measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted and is recognised as an expense over the vesting period. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no account is taken of any
non-market-based vesting conditions and no expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest as a result of a failure to
satisfy a non-market-based vesting condition.

Further details regarding the schemes are set out ir note 28 to the consolidated financial statements.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distributions to McCarthy & Stone plc’s shareholders are recognised in the Company's financial statements in the pariods
in which the final dividends are approved at the Annual General Meeting, or when paid in the case of an interim dividend.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabifities are recognised in the Corﬁpany's Statement of Financial Position when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument,

Financial assets

All financial assets are normally recognised and derecognised on the date that an agreement has been entered into where
the purchase or sale of a financial asset is under a contract. They are initially measured at fair value, plus transaction costs,
except for those financial assets classified as at far value through profit or loss, which are initially measured at far vaive.

Financial assets are classified as 'loans and receivables'. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial
assets and is determined at the time of initial recogniticn.

Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market are classified as 'loans and receivables’ Loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. less any impairment. Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for
short-term receivables whert the recognition of interest would be immaterial.
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1. Accounting policies continued

Financial liabilities and equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilties or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangement.

Equity Instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct 1ssue costs.

Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as ‘other financial liabilities'.

Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initialty measured at fair value, net of transaction costs.

Cther financial liabilities are subsequently measured at armortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense
recognised on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest method is @ method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Related parties

The Company discloses transactions with related parties which are not wholly owned within the same Group. Where appropriate,
transactions of a similar nature are aggregated unless, in the opinion of the Directors, separate disclosure is necessary to understand
the effect of the transactians on the financial statements.

2, Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company's accounting policies, which are described in note 1, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assurmptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions t¢ accounting estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised it the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future
periods if the revision affects bath current and future periods.

There are no specific critical judgements or key assumptions the Company makes about the future, or other major sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that are deemed to have a significant risk of resulting in a material
adjustment to the cairying amounts of assets and liabilities at the year end and within the next financial period.

3. Staff costs

The Company had no employees during the period covered by these financial statements {2017: no employees). A management fee
relating to time incurred by Directors for Group activities is recharged to McCarthy & Stone ple.
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4. Investment in subsidiaries

2018 w7
Cost £m £m
Opening 429.4 4394
Additions - -
Closing 439.4 4394
Net book value 4394 439.4

Investment in subsidiary undertakings relate to a 100% ownership interest in McCarthy & Stone (Developmerits) Limited.
The Group's subsidiary undertakings are listed in nole 28 1o the consolidated financial statements.

5. Trade and other receivables

2018 27
£m £m

Amounts falling due within one year:
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings 50.0 773
§0.0 77.3

Amounts repayable from McCarthy & Stone Retirement Lifestyles Limited are repayable on demand and carry interest of 2.2%
(2017: 2.2%)} at the year end date.

6. Trade and other payabies

2008 20t7
£m £m
Amounts falling due within one year:
Amounts owed 1o subsidiary undertakings 59 5.3
Crher creditors and deferred income 11
7.0 53

Amounts payable to McCarthy & Stone (Developments) Limited are repayable on demand and carry interest of 2.2% (2017 2.2%)
at the year end date.

7. Share capital
The Company has ore class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income. There is ne limit to authorised share capital.

2018 am7

Allotted and Issued ordinary shares £m Em
8p each fully paid: 537,329,434 ordinary shares (2017: 537,329,434} 43.0 430
2018 2017

Number Numier

Allotment of shares during the year '000 ‘000
At 1 September 537,329 537,314
issuance to satisfy early exercises under Sharesave plan - 15
At 31 August 537,329 537,329

Dividends on equity shares

The interim dividend of 1.9p (2017: 1.8p) was approved by the Board on 10 April 2018 and paid an 8 June 2018 to all ordinary
shareholders on the register of members at the tlose of business on Friday 4 May 2018. The ex-dividend date was 3 May 2018.
The final dividend proposed by the Board is 3.5p (2017: 3.6p) per share resulting in a total ordinary dividend for the year of 5.4p
(2017: 5.4p). It will be paid on 1 February 2019 to those shareholders who are on the register at 4 January 2019 subject to approval
at the Company's Annual General Meeting. The ex-dividend date is 3 January 2019. These financial statements do not reflect the
final dividend payment.
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8. Financial instruments
The Company has the fallowing financial instruments:

2018 2017
£m m
Financial assets
Loans and receivables measured at amortised cost:
Trade and other receivables 50.0 773
Cash and bank balances - -
50.0 773
Financial ligbilities
Loans and payables measured at amortised cost:
Trade and other payables 7.0 53
7.0 53

The Company has no derivative financial instruments. The fair value of the financial instruments is equal to their carrying values.

9. Related party transactions

The Company is exermpt from disclosing related party transactions with other companies that are wholly owned within the Group,
under FRS 102 33.1A. See note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

Remuneration to key management personnel has been disclosed within note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

10. Events after the balance sheet date
Events after the balance sheet date have been disclosed within note 31 to the consolidated financial statemants.
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B \Warning to Shareholders

Share, bond and boiler room scams

The Financial Conduct Authority (FCA'} advises that share and
bond scams are often run from "boiler rooms’ where fraudsters
cold-call investors offering them worthless, overpriced or even
non-existent sharas or bonds. Boiter rooms use increasingly
sophisticated tactics to approach investors, offering to buy or
sell shares in a way that wifl bring a huge return. But victims are
often left out of pocket - sometimes losing all of their savings
or even their family home. Even seasoned investors have been
caught out, with the biggest irdividual loss recorded by the
police being £6m.

How share and bond scams work

Share and bond fraud usuaily comes out of the blue,

with scammers cold-calling investors after taking their
phone number from publicly available shareholder lists.

The high-pressure sales actics can also come by emai,
post, word of mouth or at a seminar. These scams are
sarmetimes advertised in newspapers, magazines or online
as genuine investment opportunities. They may even offer

a free research report into a company, or a free gfft or
discount on their dealing charges. You will often be told that
you need to make a quick decision or miss out on the deal.

The scammers might also try 1o sell you shares or bonds in
a company that doesn't exist. If you already own shares in a
company, you may receive a call from someone offering to
buy thern at a higher price than their market value. The scam
will request the money upfront as a bond or other form of
security, which they say they'll pay back if the sale doesn't
go ahead - but you'll never hear from them again.

Beware of clone firms

Many bogus trading and brokerage firms wiil use the name,
"firm registration number' (FRMN') and address of firms and
individyals who are FCA authorised. This is called a ‘clone firm".
The scammers then give their own phone number, address
and website details, sometimes claiming that a firrm’s contact
details on the Register ara out of dale. Scammers might also
claim to be an overseas firm, which don’t always have their full
contact and website details listed on the Register. Scarmmers
may even copy the website of an authorised firm, making
subtle changes such as the phone number.
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How to protect yourself

FCA-authorised firms are unlikely to contact you out of
the blue with an offer to buy or sell shares or bonds.

You should only deal with financial services firms that are
authorised by the FCA and check the FCA register 1o ensure
they are. You can also check the FCA Warning List of firms
to avaid at: www.scamsmart.fca.org.uk/warninglist/
You shoufd check the firm isn't a elone firm by asking for
their firm reference number {'FRN') and contact details and
then calling them back an the switchboard number on the
Register - never use a link in an email or website from the
firm offering you an investment. Always be wary if you're
contacted out of the blue, pressured to invest quickly or
promised returns that sound too good to be true.

‘You should seriousty consider seeking financial advice or
guidance before investing. You should make sure that any
firm you deal with is reguiated by the FCA and never take
investment advice from the company that contacted you,

as this may be part ot the scam. The Money Advice Service
has informaticn on invasting and about how to find a financial
adviser at: www.moneyadviceservice.org.uk/en/articltes/
choosing-a-financial-adviserfhow-to-find-a-financial-
adviser. Alternatively, you could get further infarmation from
a group that represents advisers such as The Personal
Investment Management and Financial Advice Association
(PIMFA’). www.pimfa.co.uk/

Read more about how to find a financial adviser at:
www.thepfs.org/yourmoney/find-an-adviser/

If you have been scammed

You can report the firrm or scam to the FCA by contacting the
FCA Consumer Helpline on: 4800 111 6768 or using the FCA
reporting form at: www.fca.org.uk/consumers/report-scam-
unauthorised-firm

If you have already invested in a scam, fraudsters are likely to
target you again or sell your details to other criminals. The
folfow-up scam may be completely separate or related to the
previous fraug, such as an offer to get your money back or to
buy back the investment after you pay a fee.

if you have any concerns at all about a potential scam,
contact the FCA at: www.fca,org.uk

If you have already paid money to share fraudsters you should
contact Action Fraud on: 0300 123 2040 or report via: www.
actionfraud.police.uk/Report-a-fraud-including-online-
crime-questions



STRATEGIC REFORT CORPORATE GOVERNANCE | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B Historical statistics

FY18 FY17 FY16' FYi5t Fy14
Legal completions? 2,134 2302 2,296 1,823 1,677
Average selling price £300k £273k £264k £245k £222k
Revenue £671.6m £660.9m £635.8m £485.7m £387.8m
Prefit before tax £58.1m £82.1m £92.9m £80.9m £57.1m
Shareholders' funds ' £762.4m £744.7m £697.3m £541,8m £477.2m
ROCE 10% 16% 20% 20% 17%
Tangible gross asset value £691.6m £645.7m £574.m £5613.5m £451,2m
Tangible net asset value £695.6m EB7E.4Am £626.8m £469.1m £402.3m
Basic earnings per share 8.6p 13.8p t3.9p 13.5p* nfa*
Dividends for the year? S5.4p 5.4p 4.5p nil nil
Number of shares in issue 537,329,434 537,320,434 537,314,069 n/a® n/a®
Number of shareholders 747 B63 705 n/aé n/a®

1 FY15 and FY'14 financial statements were produced prior to our Stock Exchange histing which took pface on 11 November 2015
2 Excludes cornmercial units

3 The dividends in respect of any financial year are the interim dividend which has been paid and the final dividend which has
been proposed

4 The figure for the FY18 EPS was recaiculated in the FY16 Annual Report and adjusted to reflect the 4.1 consolidation of our
share capital that took place in FY16; prior years have not been adjusted

&5 The Company's share capital at 31 August 2015 and 31 August 2014 was 1,905,548,751 ordinary shares of 20p each. As part
of the preparation for listing, the nominal value of the shares was reduced o 2p; additional shares were allatted and the shares
were consolidated on a 4:1 basis becoming ordinary shares of 8p nominal valug

& The number of shareholders prior to our listing on 11 November 20715 has not been disclosed on the grounds of irrelevance

Cautionary statement regarding forward-looking statements

Some of the information in this document may contain projections or other forward-looking statements regarding future events

or the future financial performance of McCarthy & Stone plc and its subsidiaries {the Group). You can identify forward-looking
statements by terms such as 'expect’, 'believe’, ‘anticipate’, 'estimate’, ‘intend’, ‘will’, ‘could’, ‘may" or ‘might’, the negative of such
terms or other similar expressions. McCarthy & Stone plc (the Company} wishes to caution you that these statements are only
predictions and that actual events or results may differ materially. The Company does not intend to update these statements

to reflect events and circumstances occurring after the date hereof or to reflect the occurrence of unanticipated events. Many
factors could cause the actual results to differ materially from those contained in projections or forward-locking statements of the
Group, including among others, general economic conditions, the competitive environment as well 5 many other risks specifically
related to the Group and its operations. Past performance of the Group cannct be relied on as a guide to future performance.

McCarthy & Stone pic Annual Report 189




B General Information

McCarthy & Stone ple is a public Company limited Advisers
by shares and registered in England and Wales, i i . .
registered number 06622199. Financial adviser Registrar
. Rothschid Link Asset Services
Our registered and head office s situated at: The Registry
4th Floor Financial and corporate 34 Beckenham Road
100 Holdenh:rst Road communications Beckenham
Bournemout Kent BR3 4TU
Dorset Powerscourt
BH8 BAG Banker Statutory auditor
Telephone: 01202 292480 HSBC Bark pic Deloitte LLP
Corporate website: www.mccarthyandstonegroup.co.uk Jeint corporate brokers
. " Deutsche Bank
Consumer website: www.mccarthyandstone.co.uk Peel Hunt
Emaitl. investor-relations@meccarthyandstone.co.uk
Qur ordinary shares are listed on the London Stock Exchange
{premium listing) and we are in the FTSE 250 Index.
Legal Entity Identifiar (LEI): Contact details for our registrars, Link Asset Services:
213800CEJ40Q5YPUBZIT7
Calls from the UK: 0871 664 0300 (calls cost 10p per
international Securities Identification Number [SIN}; minute, plus any network extras;
GBOOBYNVDO082 lines are open Monday to Friday
from 9am to 5.30pm, excluding
Ticker Symbol: MCS UK public holidays).

Calls from outside the UK:  +44 208 639 3399

Email: enquiries@linkgroup.co.uk
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2 Divisions
7 Regions

NORTH WEST

Unit 3, Edward Court
Altrincham Business Park
Altrincharmn WA14 5GL
Tel 01819 416 255

WEST MIDLANDS
Ross House

Harry Weston Road
Binley Business Park
Coventry CV3 2TR
Tel: 02476 441 199

STRATEGIC REPORT

@ NORTH DIVISION

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE | FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

lan Wilkins Divisional Managing Director
lan.wilkins@mccarthyandstone.co.uk

@ SOUTH DIVISION

Brendon O'Neili Divisional Managing Director
Brendon.oneil@mccarthyandstone.co.uk

Graphic removed

HEAD OFFICE

4th Floor, 100 Holdenhurst Road
Bournemouth, Dorset BH8 BAQ
Tel: 01202 292 480

NORTH EAST

Aspen House

Wykeham Road
Northminster Business Park
Upper Poppleton

York YO26 6QW

Tel: 01904 444 200

EAST MIDLANDS
Orion House, Orion Way
Kettering NN1& 6PE
Tel: 01536 220 700

NORTH LONDON
Prospect Place

B5 Great North Road
Hatfield ALS S5DA
Tel: 01707 446 000

SQUTH EAST

2 Genesis Business Park
Albert Drive

Woeking GU21 SRW

Tel: 01483 908 600

SOUTHERN

Southern House

J 1 Embankment Way
Ringwood BH24 1EL)

Tel. 01425 322 000
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'ASP’

‘asG’

‘Capital turm’

‘CGYr’
‘ci

‘Company’

‘cQc’

‘DCLG’

‘EPS’

‘FRI

‘FTSE’

‘Gearing'

‘Group’

‘Interest cover’

‘PO
‘Land bank’

B Glossary

average selling price - the average price
agreed for sales of apartments in the year
after deducting list price discounts and
part-exchange top-ups

the Building Safety Group is a not-for-profit
organisation which specialises in providing
Health, Safety and Environmental advice
for the construction industry

calculated by diviging revenue by the
average opening and closing tangible
gross asset value in the year

cash generating unit

the Community (nfrastructure Levy of
the Community Infrastructure Levy
Regulations 2010

McCarthy & Stone pic

the Care Quality Comrmission is an
executive non-departmental public
body of the Department of Health which
ragulates and inspects health and sacial
care services in England

the Department for Communities and
Local Government

profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
(excluding exceptional iterns) divided by
the weighted average nurnber of ordinary
shares in issue during the financial year

freehold reversionary interest - the freehcld
of each of the Group's developments in
England and Wales which include the
future incorne stream of ground rents
which ¢an be sold to third parties

the Financial Times Stock Exchange

gearing is calculated by dividing net debt
by net assels

the Company and its consolidated
subsidiaries and subsidiary undertakings

calculated by dividing a underlying
operating profit before depreciation and
intangibles amortisation by the net interest
expensss (excluding revaluations) for the
same period

Initial Public Cffering
includes owned sites and exchanged sites

192 MeGarthy & Stone plc

‘LIBOR’
‘MSMS!

‘Net assets’

‘Net debt/cash’

‘NHBC’
'PRS’
‘ROCE’

‘Section 106’

'TGAV

‘TNAV'

‘TSR’

‘Underlying
profit before
tax'

‘YLMS'

the London interbank offered rate

McCarthy & Stone Management Services
Limited - a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company that provides management
services to homeowners in the Group's
Retirement Living and Lifestyle

Living developments

net assets is calculated as total assets less
total liabilities

cash and cash equivalents less long-term
and short-term borrowings {excluding
unarnortised debt issue costs)

National House Building Council
Private Rented Sector

return on capital employed - calculated by
dividing underlying operating profit by the
average opening and closing tangible gross
asset value in the year

the legally-binding agreements or planning
obligations entered into between a
landowner and a local planning authority,
under section 106 of the Town and Country
Pianning Act 1990

tangible gross asset value - calculated
as TNAV [ess net debt/cash

tangible net asset value - calculated as
net assets excluding goodwill and
intangible assets

total shareholder return - is a measurement
of the performance of the Group's share
price since the IPQ. it combines the share
price appreciation and dividends paid

to show the total return to the sharehofders
expressed as a percentage

calculated by adding amortisation of brand
and exceptional adminisirative expenses to
profit before tax

Yourlife Management Services Limited

- & subsidiary of MSMS owned 50/50 by
MSMS and Somerset Care Group Limited,
that provides management services,
domestic assistance, personal care

and additional support to homeowners

in the Group’s Retirement Living PLUS
developments



Financial KPI's

‘Revenue’

‘Underying
operating profit
margin %’

‘Underlying
operating profit’

‘Profit hefore tax'

‘Return on capital
employed %’

‘TGAV'

‘TNAV'

‘Year end net
cash/{debt)

‘Earnings per share’

‘Operating

profit margin’

‘Cost saving'

'Cash saving’

STRATEGIC REPORT

Detfinition

Represents the consideration received from

the sale of leasehold interetst in retirement
apartments, freehold interests in houses and
bungalows and income from the sale of freehaold
reversionary interasts. Revenue is recognised
on legal completion

Calculated by dividing underlying cperating
profit for the year by revenue

Sea note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements tor reconciliation

Calculated by adding amortisation of brand and
exceptional administrative expenses to operating
profit for the year

See note 5 to the consclidated financial
statements for reconciliation

Profit before tax of the Group including
share of profits from joint ventures

Calculated by dividing underlying operating profit
for the previous 12 manths by the average TGAV
at the beginning and end of the 12 month pericd

See note 5 to the consolidated financial
statemants for reconciliation

Tangible gross asset value, calculated
as TNAV less nat debt

Ses note 5 to the consolidated hnancial
statements for reconciliabon

Tangible net asset vaiue, calculated as net
assets excluding goodwill and intangible assets

See note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements for reconcitiation

Caiculated as cash and cash equivalents less
fotal barrowings

See note 22 1o the consalidated financial
statements far reconciliation

Calculated by dividing the profit for the year
attributable to ordinary shareholders by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue during the year

See note 5 to the consalidated financial
statements far reconciliation

Operating profit divided by total revenue,
expressed as a percentage

Reduction in costs incurred on existing
operations compared tc the previous pericd

Reduction in cash spent on existing operations
campared to the previous periocd

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Why we use

Key driver for the business.
Tracks progress on strategy

Details profitabilty of our business before
finance costs, tax and exceptional items.
Measures the efficiency of our business
operations

Details profitabilty of our business beiore
finance costs, tax and exceptional items.
Measures the efficiency of our business
operations

Measures the profitability of the business
after adminstrative costs and other cperating
income and expenditure

Ensures efficient and effective use of capital
and is a key measure for assessing the
performance of the Executive Directors

Represents total amount of physical assets
owned by the Group

Represents total amount of physical assets
owned by the Group minus liabiities

To ensure effective liquidity and cash
management is a focus of the business to
fund its ongoing operational commitments

Shows profit attributable to each share and used
to calculate the amount of dividend per share.
Also used as a key measure for assessing
performance of the Executive Directors

Demonstrates profitability of our business
before finance costs and tax. Used 10 assess
the efficiency of our operations

Demcnstrates whether we are on track to
optimise our cperations for strong financial
performance

Demoenstrates whether we are on track to
optimise our operations for strong financial
performance
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MNon-Financial KPI's

‘Legal compietions’

‘Average
selling price'

‘Land bank’

‘First occupation’

'‘Build cycle time’

‘Customer
Satisfaction’

‘Growth of
Management and
Care services’

‘Shared ownership
offering’

‘Rental offering’

‘Lower cost product’

‘Meals served’

‘Number of
residents’

‘Developments
under management’

‘Hours of care
and support’

‘New Retirement
Living developments
sales releases’
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I Glossary continued

Definition

The Group recognises a legal completion at
the point of compietion of a sale of a property
to a purchaser

Average list price less cash discounts
and part-exchange top-ups

Includes owned sites and exchanged sites

A mifestone in a cycie of our developrnent
being the date of the first legal completion
within a given development

Defined as the length of time from the date
of build start to the date of first occupation

Customer satisfaction survey of new
homeowners by the National Housebuilder
Council and Home Builders Federation.
The percentage of hcmebuyers who would
recommend McCarthy & Stone to a friend

Revenue generated by the Management
and Care Services function as a percentage
of total Group revenue

Number of properties sold on a shared
ownership basis as a percentage of total
compietions during a given period

Number cf McCarthy & Sione properties
occupied on a rental basis as a percentage
of total completions during a given period

A product range reflecting streamlined,
contemporary and compact design at
mass market average prices

Number of meals served to our customers
at Retirement Living PLUS developments
to existing customers

Number of customers currently residing
in the developments that are managed
by McGarthy & Stone

Number of developments which are managed
by our in-house Management and Care
Services function

MNumber of hours that have been provided

to customers for care and support within our
developments by our in-house Management
and Care Services function

Shows the number of new Retirement Living sites
that have become available for reservation by the
prospective customers during the given period

Why we use

Reflects sales activity and growth of the
business and also used as a method by
which the business capacity is monitored

A driver of revenue, reflects competitive
position against other homebuilders and
change in regional and product mix

Drives the ownership of the optimum amount
af land to support the business and long term
prospects and sustainability

Demonstrates the efficiency of the development
and build cycles of the business and effectively
increases stock turn

The measure is used to determine the efficiency
and effectiveness of the build process and the
draw on working capital

Used as a benchmark against our peers in relation
to build quality, customer satisfaction and is also
used as a8 measure for Executive Remuneration.
Customer satisfaction is of the highest importance
to the Group

Management and Care Services is fundamental
to achieving our vision and purpose

Shared ownership is part of the mult! tenure
offering and strategic objective of capitalising
on wider market opportunities

Rental option is part of the multi tenure offering
and strategic objective of capitalising on wider
market opportunities

Lower cost product is part of our strategic
objective to improve product affordability

Demcnstrates the number and growth
of customers who are benefiting from
our Management and Care services

Demonstrates the number and growth
of customers that are living in one of
our developments

Demonstrates the number and growth of
developments that are currently being managed
by our in-house Management and Care Services

The number and growth of hours that have been
provided to customers for care and support within
our developments by cur in-house Management
and Care Services function

Demonstrates the capacity, efficiency and
effectiveness of our Development and Build
cycles and effective use of our working capital
tor our Retirerment Living sites



Nen-Financial KPI's

‘Retirement Living
units sold’

‘New Retirement
Living PLUS
developments
sales releases’

‘Retirement Living
PLUS units sold’

‘Number of land
exchanges’

‘Investment in land’

‘Detailed planning
consents’

‘Development
cycle time'

‘Build starts
in the year’

*Off plan
reservations’

‘Customer Quality
Care {CQC] scare’

STRATEGIC REPORT

Definitlon

Units legally completed during the given
period at our Retirement Living cevelopments

Shows the number of new Retirement Living
PLUS sites that have become available for
reservation by the prospective customers
during the given period

Units legally completed during the given period
at our Retirement Living PLUS developrments

Number of fand sites for which purchase
contracts have been exchanged but not
{egally completed

Represents the amount of capital invested
in the purchase of land

Planning cansent from local pianning authorities
required in the UK in order to be allowed to build
on land or change the use ot land or buildings.
Detailed ptanning consents grant permission for
all aspects of a proposed development, generally
subject to the local planning authorities conditions
(such as undertakings regarding environmental or
noise issues), as opposed to outline planning
consents which do not give permission 1o all
aspects of a proposed devetopment and typically
represent an agreement in principle without a
determination of the particular form of design or
layout of the proposed development

Time taken between land exchange and build
start for our developments

Defined as the number of sites where building
has commenced during the year

Number of properties that have been sold subject
to contract prior to first occupation

Public bedy independent inspection of health
and social care standards of cur Management
and Care function

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Why we use

Reflects sales activity and growth of the
business and also used as a method by which
the business capacity is monitored at Retirernent
Living preduct level

Demoenstrates the capacity, efficiency and
effectiveness of our Development and Build cycles
and effective use of our working capital for our
Retiremnent Living PLUS sites

Reflects sales activity and growth of the business
and also used as a method by which the business
capacity is monitored at Retirement Living PLUS
product level

Demonstrates the capacity and efficiency of
our land buying function

Demonstrates how we use our capital and is
an indicator of the amount of investment in land

Demonstrates effectiveness of our ptanning
process and warkflow

Demenstrates efficiency of our planning
and design process for our developments
and working capital draw

Indication of our workflow compared to
previous years

Indicator of effectiveness of our Sales and
Marketing function and an indicator of the
desirability and demand of our units

irmportant regulatory score of our compliance with
Health and Sociat care standards used to ensure
we are campliant with applicable standards
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4th Floor : '
100 Hoidenhurst Road
Bournemouth
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Tek 01202 292 480

Website: www.mccarthyandstonegroup.co.uk
Email; investor-relations@mccarthyandstone.co.uk

Twitter: twitter.com/mccarthystone
Facebook: facebook.com/mecarthystone




